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PART I

NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995.  All statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K other than statements of historical fact, including statements
regarding our future results of operations and financial position, our business strategy and plans, and our objectives for future
operations, are forward-looking statements.  The words "believe," "may," "will," "estimate," "continue," "anticipate," "intend," "expect,"
and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.  We have based these forward-looking statements largely on
our current expectations and projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our financial condition, results of
operations, business strategy, short-term and long-term business operations and objectives, and financial needs.  These forward-looking
statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties, and assumptions, including those described in Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors" in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  It is not possible for our management to predict all risks, nor can we assess the impact of all factors
on our business or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those
contained in any forward-looking statements we may make.  In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the future events and
trends discussed in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may not occur and actual results could differ materially and adversely from those
anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements.

We assume no obligation to revise or publicly release the results of any revision to these forward-looking statements, except as required
by law.  Given these risks and uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.

Unless expressly indicated or the context requires otherwise, the terms “6D Global,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to
6D Global Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and, where appropriate, its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Item 1. – Business

Company Overview

6D Global Technologies, Inc. is a digital business solutions company serving the digital marketing and technology needs of global
organizations.  6D Global’s services and products enable clients to create, measure, and optimize digital experiences for their audiences
across marketing channels and devices.  These solutions help clients reduce the cost of content delivery and increase the return on their
investments in digital communication.  6D Global’s digital technology services include consulting, web experience and content
management, analytics, creative interfaces, mobile solutions, managed marketing services, and IT infrastructure staffing.

Strategically, 6D Global is focused primarily on becoming a deep subject matter expert across multiple touchpoints in the digital
marketing and technology ecosystem, helping Chief Marketing Officers and Chief Information Officers drive critical change and growth
for their organizations.

Company History

6D Global’s roots are in IT consultancy. Founded and incorporated in California in 2004 under the name Initial Koncepts, Inc., we
served the enterprise management systems market, specializing primarily in supporting market-leading software applications of
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) systems, such as PeopleSoft.  From 2010 to 2014, the Company evolved to encompass a broad set
of digital solution practices, each providing critical technical expertise to capitalize on rapidly growing market sectors.

In 2014, seeking to finance its continued growth, the Company entered into a series of transactions intended to facilitate outside
investment.  On June 25, 2014, Initial Koncepts, Inc. converted from an S-Corporation to a California limited liability company and
changed its name to Six Dimensions, LLC. On June 27, 2014, Six Dimensions, LLC converted to a Nevada C-Corporation and changed
its name to Six Dimensions, Inc. (“Six Dimensions”).  The Company then became a public entity via a transaction with CleanTech
Innovations Inc. (“CleanTech”).  CleanTech was incorporated on May 9, 2006, in the State of Nevada, through its wholly owned
operating subsidiaries in China, Creative Bellows Co., Ltd. and Liaoning Creative Wind Power Equipment Co., Ltd. CleanTech
designed, manufactured, tested, and sold structural towers for on-land and off-shore wind turbines. 
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On September 29, 2014, CleanTech consummated an Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange (the “Exchange Agreement”) with Six
Dimensions.  Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, CleanTech acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Six Dimensions
in exchange for shares of common stock of CleanTech at an exchange ratio of approximately 1.3 shares of CleanTech common stock for
each share of Six Dimensions common stock (the “Exchange”).  Following the issuance of the Exchange shares, Six Dimensions became
our wholly-owned subsidiary and Six Dimensions’ shareholders owned approximately fifty percent (50%) of our outstanding common
stock.  Accordingly, the Exchange represented a change in control of CleanTech. Simultaneous with the Exchange, CleanTech completed
a private placement equity offering.  In conjunction with the Exchange, CleanTech converted into a Delaware corporation, whereby it
changed its name to 6D Global Technologies, Inc.

Also on September 29, 2014, in connection with the Exchange and pursuant to a Debt Conversion Agreement (“Debt Conversion
Agreement”) between CleanTech and its largest creditor—NYGG (Asia) Ltd. (“NYGG Asia”)—CleanTech’s indebtedness to NYGG
Asia was cancelled in exchange for the issuance of common stock to NYGG Asia.  The Debt Conversion Agreement further provided that
CleanTech could not, without NYGG Asia’s prior written consent, issue any additional equity or debt securities or incur any additional
indebtedness (other than in the ordinary course of business) for thirteen (13) months following September 29, 2014.  This conversion of
debt to equity is accounted for as part of a reverse recapitalization, reflected as an increase in stockholders’ equity as of September 30,
2014.

The Exchange is being treated as a reverse recapitalization effected by a share exchange for financial accounting and reporting purposes,
since substantially all of CleanTech's operations were disposed of prior to the consummation of the transaction. 6D Global is treated as
the accounting acquirer, as its stockholders control 6D Global after the Exchange Agreement, even though CleanTech was the legal
acquirer.  As a result, the assets, liabilities, and historical operations reflected in these financial statements are those of 6D Global, as if
6D Global had always been the reporting company and, on the date of the Exchange Agreement, changed its name and reorganized its
capital stock.  Since CleanTech had no operations when the Exchange Agreement took place, the transaction was treated as a reverse
recapitalization for accounting purposes, and no goodwill or other intangible assets were recorded by us as a result of the Exchange
Agreement.  Historical common stock amounts and additional paid-in capital have been retroactively adjusted using the exchange ratio of
approximately 1.3 shares of CleanTech common stock for each share of Six Dimensions common stock.

All references in these financial statements to common stock, common stock equivalents, and per share amounts related to dates prior to
August 22, 2014, have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to all reverse stock splits.

Addressable Market

Consumers today increasingly demand personalized content and experiences in their online interactions, across multiple digital channels
and devices.  Accordingly, any entity with an online presence must determine how best to attract, engage, acquire, and retain customers. 
Delivering the broadest digital reach and best consumer experiences at any given moment requires the right combination of data, insights,
and content.  Marketing executives are increasingly demanding technical solutions to optimize their customers’ experiences, demonstrate
the success of their programs with objective metrics, and deliver the greatest return on their marketing spend.
 
We believe there is a significant opportunity to address these digital challenges and help clients transform their businesses.  Chief
Marketing Officers, digital marketers, advertisers, and publishers are dramatically increasing their digital media budgets.  Internet
advertising grew more than 20% in 2015—to nearly $60 billion—as reported by industry reports.  In 2016, digital media revenue is
expected to exceed television advertising spending for the first time, according to published reports.  Industry analysts note that
corporate marketing budgets in North America increased approximately 10% in 2015, to 11% of revenue, with approximately one-third
of that budget dedicated to technology.  To help marketers navigate this transition to the digital environment, solution providers with
deep technical expertise—like 6D Global—have a significant opportunity for rapid growth.

Our market today includes predominantly mid-sized to Fortune 500 commercial, nonprofit, and public sector enterprises across virtually
all industries, including, but not limited to, healthcare, consumer, education, government, manufacturing, and high tech.  Because
organizations in virtually every sector of the economy perform or need the functions we support, we pursue opportunities across nearly
all sectors.

5



Table of Contents

Business Strategy and Solution Pillars

6D Global’s business strategy is to provide business-to-business (B2B) and business-to-business-to-consumer (B2B2C) solutions that
address most major aspects of digital operations, including web interfaces/content management, mobile applications/integration, creative
design, data analytics, and integrated marketing campaign consulting/execution.  Our business units provide expert professional and
managed services across industries.  6D Global offers both deep technical solutions within each specialized area and integrated
combinations of solutions to address a wide range of client needs across the digital landscape.
 
By combining creativity with science, we help our clients develop, personalize, manage, measure, optimize, and monetize their digital
marketing content more efficiently and effectively—across every channel, with an end-to-end workflow and feedback loop. 6D Global’s
present portfolio of service offerings includes:

1. 6D Web Experience We help organizations unify, integrate, and personalize their web content management systems
(WCMS) to help them drive customer experiences that build brand loyalty, create demand, and
increase revenue.

  
2. 6D Analytics We deliver data that gives customers a deeper understanding of their customers and how best to

reach and convert them.
  
3. 6D Creative We increase brand awareness and market share for our customers through creative solutions that are

responsive, intuitive and engaging.
  
4. 6D Mobile We build extraordinary mobile experiences for customers that tell a unique story and engage with

the fast-growing mobile audience.
  
5. 6D Marketing We help customers create smarter digital engagements with their customers, increase demand and

conversions, and build better brand experiences across all channels.
  
6. IT Infrastructure Staffing We provide IT infrastructure staffing to support our clients’ needs during times of change, growth,

or increased demand on day to day operations.
 
The business units numbered 1 to 5, above, comprise our digital solutions operating in our CMS operating segment, which provides our
clients with professional and managed services for web content management, marketing cloud operations, mobile applications, analytics,
front-end user experience and design, and marketing automation.
 
The IT Infrastructure Staffing business unit constitutes our IT Staffing operating segment, which provides our clients with contract and
contract-to-hire IT professional staffing services.

To support our strategic positioning and business strategy, we have expanded our geographical operations—including opening an office in
Dublin, Ireland, in 2015—to facilitate 24-hour, seven-days-a-week support for our clients.

Growth Strategy

Our five-year growth strategy is to significantly expand our client base in the North American and European markets, while also
expanding into new geographic areas, such as Asia and South America to provide our clients with global coverage and around the clock
services since digital marketing never shuts off.  We intend to do this by focusing on our five current core digital solutions business units,
leveraging our deep expertise and track record of successful engagements in these areas.  We believe the quality of our work and unique
technical skills will attract new clients as well as win repeat projects with past and current clients.  At the same time, we intend to expand
our core offerings and grow our brand with new service capabilities and software products that produce significant value for our clients. 
We actively research acquisitions that will expand our geographical and service offerings or significantly add to our existing product
lines.
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Our multi-faceted product growth strategy includes:
 

· developing products in-house and building a multi-year recurring revenue offering;
· acquiring products to own and sell under our own brand;
· becoming a value-added reseller (VAR) for other companies’ products; and
· acquiring companies or business units with synergistic service and product lines.

We believe that software products will become a primary revenue source for us over time and that a growing portfolio of software
products will generate profitable demand for associated maintenance, support, implementation, consulting, and education services that
we, and possibly a channel of licensees and VARs, can provide.  We hope to create innovative software products and also acquire rights
to, or ownership of, new products developed by other companies.

To add value for our clients, we established an internal center of excellence called “6D Labs.” 6D Labs is a suite of consulting and support
services from a wide pool of experienced digital marketing professionals.  6D Labs provides flexible, on-demand solutions for virtually
any type or volume of work.  Unlike traditional project work, where clients may pay for significant overhead and be bound to a rigid
contract, 6D Labs offers clients simple staff augmentation.  Additionally, 6D Labs provides digital assessments and digital maturity tests,
project management, requirements gathering, and business analysis. 

6D Global’s operating strategy also entails acquiring compelling and profitable small-to-mid-size agencies with an impressive portfolio, or
building its own digital agency by hiring the best talent in disciplines such as web design/web development, search engine marketing,
internet advertising, e-business/e-commerce consulting, and specialized advertising and marketing services for the digital space (Internet,
kiosks, and lifestyle devices such as iPod, tablets, and mobile devices).

Acquisitions

During the first quarter of 2015, we acquired Topaz Interactive, LLC, an Oregon limited liability company doing business as “Storycode,”
and SwellPath Inc., an Oregon corporation (“SwellPath”), both of which were highly synergistic to our business model and customer
expansion strategy.  These acquisitions are more fully described in Note 3 – Acquisitions.

Storycode On March 4, 2015, 6D Global Technologies, Inc., acquired all of the issued and outstanding membership interest of Storycode
pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement of that date.  Storycode provides mobile development and creative design services for
medium and large businesses. Storycode creates mobile applications for the Adobe DPS/AEM Mobile platforms, featuring award-winning
UX (user experience) and UI (user interface) designs.  Storycode was founded by accomplished entrepreneurs and technology industry
executives who have over 45 years of combined experience in creative and digital marketing. Storycode employees joined us as part of
our expanding team of technology experts.

SwellPath On March 20, 2015, 6D Global Technologies, Inc., entered into and consummated a Securities Purchase Agreement to acquire
all of the issued and outstanding shares of SwellPath.  SwellPath is a professional services firm that delivers analytics consulting, search
engine optimization, and digital advertising services to medium and large enterprises across North America.  SwellPath enables clients to
align and maximize their digital marketing initiatives by tracking both on- and off-line campaigns and performing more effective targeting
to enhance return on investment.  SwellPath complements our strategy to provide full-service digital marketing solutions for our clients,
while leveraging our partnership with Adobe Systems Incorporated to expand our Adobe Analytics offering.

Competition

The market for all of our services is highly competitive.  We compete principally with systems consulting and implementation firms,
boutique consulting firms that maintain specialized skills and/or are geographically focused, offshore consulting and outsourcing
companies, and clients’ own IT departments.  We believe that the principal competitive factors in our markets include the ability to solve
problems; the ability to provide creative concepts and solutions; expertise and talent with advanced technologies; availability of resources;
the quality and speed of solutions; a deep understanding of user experiences; and the price of solutions.  We believe that we compete
favorably when considering these factors and that our ability to deliver business innovation and outstanding value to our clients on time
and on budget, along with our successful track record, distinguishes us from our competitors.
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Research and Development

Because the industries in which we compete are characterized by rapid technological change, our ability to compete successfully depends
upon maintaining expertise in our core business segments.  To enable our employees to provide expert, timely, competitive services to the
marketplace, we provide ongoing training to enhance their skills and knowledge of key third party software.  Because these expenses are
not categorized as Research and Development expense, we had no Research and Development expense for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014.

Employees

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had 104 and 53 employees, respectively, all of which were employed on a full-time
basis, and none of which were unionized.

Item 1A. – Risk Factors

The following discussion of risk factors contains forward-looking statements.  These risk factors may be important to understanding any
statement in this Form 10-K or elsewhere.  The following information should be read in conjunction with Part II, Item 7, “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial statements and related notes in
Part II, Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Form 10-K.

The business, financial condition and operating results of 6D Global can be affected by a number of factors, whether currently known or
unknown, including but not limited to those described below.  Any one or more of such factors could directly or indirectly cause our
actual results of operations and financial condition to vary materially from past or anticipated future results of operations and financial
condition.  Any of these factors, in whole or in part, could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and stock price.

Because of the following factors, as well as other factors affecting our financial condition and operating results, past financial
performance should not be considered to be a reliable indicator of future performance, and investors should not use historical trends to
anticipate results or trends in future periods.

Risks Related to our Digital Marketing Business (Content Management Systems)

We rely on the availability of licenses to third-party software and other licensed intellectual property.

Many of our products and services utilize software or other intellectual property licensed from third parties, and we otherwise use
software and other intellectual property licensed from third parties in our business.  This exposes us to risks over which we may have little
or no control.  For example, a licensor may have difficulties keeping up with technological changes or may stop supporting the software
or other intellectual property that it licenses to us or our clients.  Also, it will be necessary in the future to renew licenses, expand the
scope of existing licenses, or seek new licenses relating to various aspects of these products and services or otherwise relating to our
business, which may result in increased license fees.  These licenses may not be available on acceptable terms, if at all.  The inability to
obtain or maintain certain licenses or other rights, or to obtain or maintain such licenses or rights on favorable terms, could result in
delays in releases of products and services and could otherwise disrupt our business until equivalent technology can be identified, licensed
or developed, if at all, and integrated into our products and services or otherwise in the conduct of our business.  Moreover, the inclusion
in our products and services of software or other intellectual property licensed from third parties on a nonexclusive basis may limit our
ability to differentiate our products from those of our competitors.  Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
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Our future performance depends in part on support from independent software vendors, system integrators and other third-party
software developers.

We depend on independent software vendors, system integrators and other third-party software vendors to create applications that will
integrate with our own products and services.  This presents certain risks to our business, including that:

· we cannot provide any assurance that these applications meet the same quality standards that we apply to our own development
efforts, and to the extent they contain bugs or defects, they may create disruptions in our customers’ use of our software or
negatively affect our brand;

· these independent software vendors, system integrators and third-party software developers may not possess the appropriate
intellectual property rights to develop and share their applications; and

· some of these independent software vendors, system integrators and third-party software developers may use the insight they
gain from using our software and from documentation publicly available to develop competing products or product features.

Many of these risks are not within our control to prevent, and our brand may be damaged if these applications do not perform to our
customers’ satisfaction and that dissatisfaction is attributed to us.

The success of our business depends in large part on our ability to develop solutions and service offerings that keep pace with the
changes in the markets in which we provide our services.
 
The professional services markets in which we operate are characterized by rapid technological changes, evolving industry standards,
changing customer preferences and new product and service introductions.  Our future success will depend on our ability to develop
solutions and service offerings that keep pace with changes in the markets in which we provide services.  We cannot be sure that we will
be successful in developing new services addressing evolving technologies in a timely or cost-effective manner or, if these services are
developed, that we will be successful in offering and deploying them in the marketplace.  In addition, we cannot be sure that products,
services or technologies developed by others will not render our services non-competitive or obsolete.  Our failure to address the demands
of the rapidly evolving technological environment could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.  Our ability to remain competitive will also depend on our ability to design and implement, in a timely and cost-effective
manner, solutions for clients that both leverage their legacy systems and appropriately utilize newer technologies.  Our ability to
implement solutions for our clients incorporating new developments and improvements in technology which translate into productivity
improvements for our clients and to develop service offerings that meet current and prospective clients’ needs are critical to our success.
 
If we do not attract and retain qualified professional staff, we may be unable to adequately perform our client engagements and could
be limited in accepting new client engagements.
 
Our business is labor intensive, and our success depends upon our ability to attract, retain, train and motivate highly skilled
employees.  The improvement in demand for marketing and business and technology consulting services has further increased the need
for employees with specialized skills or significant experience in marketing, business and technology consulting, particularly at senior
levels.  We are expanding our operations, and these expansion efforts will be highly dependent on attracting a sufficient number of highly
skilled people.  We may not be successful in attracting enough employees to achieve our expansion or staffing plans.  Furthermore, the
industry turnover rates for these types of employees are high, and we may not be successful in retaining, training and motivating the
employees we attract.  Any inability to attract, retain, train and motivate employees could impair our ability to manage adequately and
complete existing assignments and to bid for or accept new client engagements.  Such inability may also force us to increase our hiring of
expensive independent contractors, which may increase our costs and reduce our profitability on client engagements.  We must also
devote substantial managerial and financial resources to monitoring and managing our workforce and other resources.  Our future success
will depend on our ability to manage the levels and related costs of our workforce and other resources effectively.
 
Our business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially impacted by economic conditions and related
fluctuations in client demand for marketing, business, technology and other consulting services.

The market for our consulting services and the technologies used in our solutions is prone to fluctuation with economic cycles —
particularly in the United States, where we earn the majority of our revenues.  During economic cycles in which companies experience
financial difficulties or uncertainty, clients and potential clients may cancel or delay spending on marketing, technology and other
business initiatives, which could result in reduced demand for our services, assignment cancellations or delays, lower revenues and
operating margins resulting from price reduction pressures for our services, and payment and collection issues with our clients.  Our
efforts to down-size in a manner intended to mirror downturned economic conditions, could be delayed and costly, and could also result in
us having inadequate people resources as economic conditions improve.  Any of these events could materially and adversely impact our
business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Our profitability will be adversely impacted if we are unable to maintain our pricing and utilization rates as well as control our costs.
 
Our profitability derives from and is impacted by three primary factors: (i) the prices for our services; (ii) our professionals’ utilization or
billable time; and (iii) our costs.  To achieve our desired level of profitability, our utilization must remain at an appropriate rate, and we
must contain our costs.  Should we reduce our prices in the future as a result of pricing pressures, or should we be unable to achieve our
target utilization rates and costs, our profitability could be adversely impacted.

Our services may infringe the intellectual property rights of third parties, and create a liability for us as well as harm our reputation
and client relationships.
 
The services that we offer to clients may infringe the intellectual property (“IP”) rights of third parties and result in legal claims against
our clients and us.  These claims may damage our reputation, adversely impact our client relationships and create substantial liability for
us.  Moreover, we generally agree in our client contracts to indemnify the clients for expenses or liabilities they incur as a result of third
party IP infringement claims associated with our services, and the resolution of these claims, irrespective of whether a court determines
that our services infringed another party’s IP rights, may be time-consuming, disruptive to our business and extraordinarily
costly.  Finally, in connection with an IP infringement dispute, we may be required to cease using or developing certain IP that we offer to
our clients.  These circumstances could adversely impact our ability to generate revenue as well as require us to incur significant expense
to develop alternative or modified services for our clients

We may be unable to protect our proprietary methodology.
 
Our success depends, in part, upon our proprietary methodology.  We rely upon a combination of trade secrets, nondisclosures and other
contractual arrangements.  We enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees, contractors, vendors and clients, and limit access
to and distribution of our proprietary information.  However, we cannot be certain that the steps we take in this regard will be adequate to
deter misappropriation of our proprietary information.
 
We are dependent on, and may be adversely impacted by, the performance of third parties on certain complex engagements.
 
Certain complex engagements may require that we partner with specialized software or systems vendors or other partners to perform
services.  Often in these circumstances, we are liable to our clients for the performance of these third parties.  Should the third parties fail
to perform timely or satisfactorily, our clients may elect to terminate the engagements or withhold payment until the services have been
completed successfully.  Additionally, the timing of our revenue recognition may be affected or we may realize lower profits if we incur
additional costs due to delays or because we must assign additional personnel to complete the engagement.  Furthermore, our relationships
with our clients and our reputation generally may suffer harm as a result of these third parties’ unsatisfactory performance.

We may be liable to our clients for substantial damages caused by our unauthorized disclosures of confidential information, breaches
of data security, failure to remedy system failures or other material contract breaches.
 
We frequently receive or have access to confidential information from our clients, including confidential client data that we use to develop
or support solutions.  If any person, including one of our employees, misappropriates client confidential information, or if client
confidential information is inappropriately disclosed due to a breach of our computer systems, including an attack by computer
programmers or hackers who may develop or deploy viruses, worms, or other malicious software programs, system failures or otherwise,
we may have substantial liabilities to our clients or their customers.  Further, any such compromise to our computer systems could disrupt
our operations, as well as our clients’ operations.
 
Further, many of our assignments involve technology applications or systems that are critical to the operations of our clients’ businesses
and handle very large volumes of transactions.  If we fail to perform our services correctly, we may be unable to deliver applications or
systems to our clients with the promised functionality or within the promised time frame, or to satisfy the required service levels for
support and maintenance.  Any such failures by us could result in claims for substantial damages by our clients against us.

We may be liable for breaches of confidentiality or data security, defects in the applications or systems we deliver or other material
contract breaches that we may commit during the performance of our services (collectively, “Contract Breaches”).  In certain
circumstances, we agree to unlimited liability for Contract Breaches.  Additionally, we cannot be assured that any insurance coverage will
be applicable and enforceable in all cases, or sufficient to cover substantial liabilities that we may incur.  Further, we cannot be assured
that contractual limitations on liability will be applicable and enforceable in all cases.  Accordingly, even if our insurance coverage or
contractual limitations on liability are found to be applicable and enforceable, our liability to our clients for Contract Breaches could be
material in amount and could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.  Moreover, such
claims may harm our reputation and cause us to lose clients.
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Risks Related to our Temporary Employee Staffing Business (IT Staffing Business)
 
We face significant employment-related legal risk.
 
We employ people internally and in the workplaces of other businesses.  Many of these individuals have access to client information
systems and confidential information.  An inherent risk of such activity includes possible claims of errors and omissions; intentional
misconduct; release, misuse or misappropriation of client intellectual property, confidential information, funds, or other property; cyber
security breaches affecting our clients and/or us; discrimination and harassment claims; employment of undocumented aliens; criminal
activity; torts; or other claims.  Such claims may result in negative publicity, injunctive relief, criminal investigations and/or charges, civil
litigation, payment by us of monetary damages or fines, or other material adverse effects on our business.  To reduce our exposure, we
maintain insurance coverage for professional malpractice liability, fidelity, employment practices liability, and general liability in amounts
and with deductibles that we believe is appropriate for our operations.  Our insurance coverage, however, may not cover all potential
claims against us, may require us to meet a deductible or may not continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost.
 
In this regard, we face various employment-related risks not covered by insurance, such as wage and hour laws and employment tax
responsibility.  U.S. Courts in recent years have been receiving large numbers of wage and hour class action claims alleging
misclassification of overtime eligible workers and/or failure to pay overtime-eligible workers for all hours worked.  In addition, there
appears to be a heightened state and federal scrutiny of independent contractor relationships, which could adversely affect us given that
we utilize a significant number of independent contractors to perform our services.  An adverse determination of the independent
contractor status of these firms could result in a substantial tax or other liabilities.
 
We may be adversely affected by government regulation of the staffing business, and of the workplace.
 
Our business is subject to regulation and licensing in many states.  There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to obtain all
necessary licenses or approvals or that the cost of compliance will not prove to be material.  If we fail to comply, such failure could
materially adversely affect our financial results. 
 
A large part of our business entails employing individuals and placing such individuals in clients’ workplaces.  Increased government
regulation of the workplace or of the employer-employee relationship could have a material adverse effect on us.

Significant legal actions could subject us to substantial uninsured liabilities.
 
Professional service providers are subject to legal actions alleging malpractice, breach of contract and other legal theories.  These actions
may involve large claims and significant defense costs.  We may also be subject to claims alleging violations of federal or state labor
laws. In addition, we may be subject to claims related to torts, intentional acts or crimes committed by our full-time employees or
temporary staffing personnel.  In some instances, we are contractually obligated to indemnify clients against such risks.  A failure to
observe the applicable standard of care, relevant 6D Global or client policies and guidelines, or applicable federal, state, or local laws,
rules, and regulations could result in negative publicity, payment of fines, significant damage awards, or settlement expense.  To reduce
our exposure, we maintain insurance coverage for professional malpractice liability, fidelity, employment practices liability and general
liability, in amounts and with deductibles that we believe are appropriate for our operations.  Our insurance coverage, however, may not
cover all claims against us or continue to be available to us at a reasonable cost.

Significant increases in payroll-related costs could adversely affect our business.
 
We are required to pay a number of federal, state and local payroll and related costs, including unemployment taxes, workers’
compensation and insurance premiums and claims, FICA, and Medicare, among others, related to our employees.  Significant increases in
the effective rates of any payroll-related costs would likely have a material adverse effect on us.  Over the last few years, many of the
states in which we conduct business have continued to significantly increase their state unemployment tax rates in an effort to increase
funding for unemployment benefits.  Costs could also increase as a result of health care reforms or the possible imposition of additional
requirements and restrictions related to the placement of personnel.  We may not be able to increase the fees charged to our clients in a
timely manner or in a sufficient amount to cover these potential cost increases.
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Risks Related to Our Business Generally
 
Our markets are highly competitive and we may not be able to continue to compete effectively.

The markets for the services we provide are highly competitive, rapidly evolving, and subject to rapid technological change.  We
compete principally with large systems consulting and implementation firms, traditional and digital advertising and marketing agencies,
offshore consulting and outsourcing companies, and clients’ internal information systems departments.  Other competitors include
boutique consulting firms that maintain specialized skills or are geographically focused.  Many of the larger regional and national
information technology consulting firms have substantially longer operating histories, more established reputations and potential vendor
relationships, greater financial resources, sales and marketing organizations, market penetration, and research and development
capabilities, as well as broader product offerings, greater market presence, and name recognition.  We may face increasing competitive
pressures from these competitors.  This may place us at a disadvantage to our competitors, which may harm our ability to grow, maintain
revenues, or generate net income.

In addition, a significant amount of information technology services are being provided by lower-cost non-domestic resources.  The
increased utilization of these resources for U.S.-based projects could result in lower revenues and margins for U.S.-based information
technology companies.  Our ability to compete utilizing higher-cost domestic resources and/or our ability to procure comparably priced
offshore resources could adversely impact our results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, there are relatively low barriers to entry in these markets.  Therefore, new entrants may compete with us in the future.  For
example, due to the rapid changes and volatility in our market, many well-capitalized companies, including some of our partners, that
have focused on sectors of the software and services industry that are not competitive with our business may refocus their activities and
deploy their resources to be competitive with us.

In recent years, there has been consolidation in our industry and we expect that there will be additional consolidation in the future.  As a
result of this consolidation, we expect that we will increasingly compete with larger firms that have broader product offerings and greater
financial resources than we have.  We believe that this competition could have a negative effect on our marketing, distribution and
reselling relationships, pricing of services and products, and our product development budget and capabilities.  One or more of our
competitors may develop and implement methodologies that result in superior productivity and price reductions without adversely
affecting their profit margins.  In addition, competitors may win client engagements by significantly discounting their services in
exchange for a client’s promise to purchase other goods and services from the competitor, either concurrently or in the future.  These
activities may potentially force us to lower our prices and suffer reduced operating margins.  Any of these negative effects could
significantly impair our results of operations and financial condition.

If we cannot keep pace with the intense competition in our marketplace, our business, financial condition and results of operations will
suffer. 

We depend on the proper functioning of our information systems.
 
We are dependent on the proper functioning of information systems in operating our business.  Critical information systems are used in
every aspect of our daily operations, most significantly, in the identification and matching of staffing resources to client assignments and
in the customer billing and consultant or vendor payment functions.  Our information systems are vulnerable to fire or casualty theft,
technical failures, terrorist acts, cyber security breaches, power loss, telecommunications failures, physical or software intrusions,
computer viruses, and similar events.  If our critical information systems fail or are otherwise unavailable, we would have to accomplish
these functions manually, which could prove difficult or impossible, causing a material adverse effect on our business.
 
Also, any theft or misuse of information resulting from a security breach could result in, among other things, loss of significant and/or
sensitive information, litigation by affected parties, financial obligations resulting from such theft or misuse, higher insurance premiums,
governmental investigations, negative reactions from current and potential future customers (including potential negative financial
ramifications under certain customer contract provisions) and poor publicity and any of these could adversely affect our financial results
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We may be unable to achieve anticipated benefits from the Exchange.

The Exchange involved changing our name and transitioning our core business.  We are devoting significant management attention and
resources to transitioning 6D Global.  However, the Exchange may present certain risks to our business and operations including, among
other things, risks that:

· the transition of our core business may take longer, be more difficult, time-consuming or costly to accomplish than expected;
· we may be unable to avoid unforeseen increased expenses associated with the Exchange;
· there may be unanticipated changes in the markets for our core business;
· branding or rebranding initiatives may involve substantial costs and may not be favorably received by customers;
· there may be unanticipated downturns in business relationships with customers; and
· there may be increases in the cost of material, energy and other production costs, or unexpected costs that cannot be recouped in

product pricing.

Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the following eventualities will occur: (i) the Exchange will result in the realization of the
full benefits of transitioning our core business that we currently expect; (ii) the potential benefits of transitioning will be achieved within
the anticipated timeframe; or (iii) we will be able to implement new strategies to transform the newly renamed and rebranded company. 
Failure to successfully transition the businesses may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results.

Acquisitions could have negative consequences, which could harm our business.
 
As discussed in Part I, Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Business,” part of our business strategy entails
acquiring companies or business units along with their synergistic product lines.  This strategy could require significant capital infusions
and could involve many risks including, but not limited to, the following:
 

· difficulty integrating the acquired company’s personnel, products, product roadmaps, technologies, systems, processes and
operations, including product delivery, order management, and information systems;

· difficulty in forming the acquired company’s financial policies and practices to our policies and practices and in implementing
and maintaining adequate internal systems and controls over financial reporting and information systems of the acquired
company;

· diversion of management’s attention and disruption of ongoing business;
· difficulty in combining service and technology offerings and entering into new markets or geographical areas in which we have

no or limited direct experience and where our competitors may have stronger market positions;
· loss of management, sales, technical or other key personnel;
· revenue from the acquired companies not meeting our expectations, and the potential loss of the acquired companies’

customers, distributors, resellers, suppliers, or other partners;
· delays or difficulties and the attendant expense in evaluating, coordinating, and combining administrative, sales, research and

development and other operations, facilities, and relationships with third parties in accordance with local laws and other
obligations while maintaining adequate standards, controls and procedures, including financial controls and controls over
information systems;

· incurring amortization expense related to intangible assets and recording goodwill and non-amortizable assets that will be
subject to impairment testing and possible impairment charges; 

· dilution of existing stockholders as a result of issuing equity securities, including the assumption of any stock options or other
equity awards issued by the acquired company;

· overpayment for any acquisition or investment or unanticipated costs or liabilities;
· responsibility for the liabilities of the acquired company, including any potential intellectual property infringement claims or

other litigation; and
· incurring substantial write-offs, restructuring charges, and transactional expenses.

Our failure to manage these risks and challenges could materially harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
Further, if we do not successfully address these challenges in a timely manner, we may not fully realize all of the anticipated benefits or
synergies on which the value of a transaction was based.  Future transactions could cause our financial results to differ from expectations
of market analysts or investors for any given year, which could, in turn, cause a decline in our stock price.
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The loss of one or more of our key personnel could harm our business.
 
Our success depends in large part upon the continued services of a number of key personnel, including our Chief Executive Officer.  The
loss of the services of any of our key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.  Our employment arrangements with key personnel provide that employment is terminable at will by either
party.  Competition for such personnel is intense.  If our key personnel resign to join a competitor or to form a competing company, the
loss of such personnel and any resulting loss of existing or potential clients or employees to any such competitor could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.  We cannot be certain that any agreements we require our
employees to enter into will be effective in preventing them from engaging in these actions or that courts or other adjudicative entities will
substantially enforce these agreements.
 
We may not be able to recognize revenue in the period in which our services are performed, which may contribute to fluctuations in
our revenue and margins.
 
We provide our services primarily under time-and-materials contracts.  All revenue is recognized pursuant to generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).  These principles require us to recognize revenue once evidence of
an arrangement has been obtained, services are delivered, fees are fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.  If we
perform our services prior to the period in which we are able to recognize the associated revenue, our revenue and margins may fluctuate
from year to year.

We have significant fixed operating costs, which may be difficult to adjust in response to unanticipated fluctuations in revenues.
 
A high percentage of our operating expenses, particularly salary expenses, rent, depreciation expenses and amortization of purchased
intangible assets, are fixed in advance of any particular year.  As a result, an unanticipated decrease in the number or average size of, or an
unanticipated delay in the scheduling for, our assignments, may cause significant variations in operating results in any particular year, and
could have a material adverse effect on operations for that year.

An unanticipated termination or decrease in size or scope of a major assignment, a client’s decision not to proceed with an assignment we
anticipated or the completion during a year of several major client assignments could require us to maintain underutilized employees and
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.  Our revenues and earnings may also
fluctuate from year to year because of such factors as:
 

· the contractual terms and timing of completion of assignments, including achievement of certain business results;
· any delays incurred in connection with assignments;
· the adequacy of provisions for losses and bad debts;
· the accuracy of our estimates of resources required to complete ongoing assignments; and
· general economic conditions.

 
We rely on short-term engagements with most of our clients, and our clients may terminate their contracts with short notice.

Most of our customer relationships are not exclusive and most of our contracts may be terminated by our clients with limited advance
notice and without significant penalty.  Our customers can reassess their commitments to us at any time in the future and/or develop their
own competitive services.  Accordingly, our business agreements with these customers may not reduce the risk inherent in our business
that customers may terminate their relationships with us in favor of relationships with our competitors, or for other reasons, or might not
meet their contractual obligations to us.  A client’s termination of a contract for our services could result in a loss of expected revenues
and additional expenses for staff that were allocated to that client’s assignment.  We may be required to maintain underutilized employees
who were assigned to terminated contracts.  The unexpected cancellation or significant reduction in the scope of any of our large
assignments, or client termination of one or more recurring revenue contracts, could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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We face certain risks in collecting our trade accounts receivable and we have a small number of customers who account for a
significant amount of our revenues.
 
We generate a significant amount of trade accounts receivable from our customers.  Delays or defaults in payments owed to us could have
a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.  Factors that could cause a delay or default include business
failures, turmoil in the financial and credit markets, sluggish or recessionary U.S. economic conditions, our exposure to customers in high-
risk sectors such as the financial services industry, and declines in the credit worthiness of our customers.

For each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had two significant customers that individually accounted for more than
10% of our total revenues.  During 2015, for both clients we provided consultants to develop and install a value adding digital
solution.  Our sales to our top five customers accounted for approximately 56% and 52% of revenues for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had approximately 56% and 57% of our accounts receivable balance held by five
customers, respectively.  During each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had three customers accounting for more than
10% each of its accounts receivables balances, respectively.

We may not be able to maintain sufficient cash flow or borrowing capacity to support operations, and  we cannot be certain that
additional financing will be available on reasonable terms when required, or at all.
 
We may require additional financing from time to time to implement our growth strategy.  Any equity or debt financing, if available at all,
may be on terms that are not favorable to us.  Even if we are able to raise capital through equity or debt financings, as to which there can
be no assurance, the interest of existing stockholders in our company may be diluted, and the securities we issue may have rights,
preferences and privileges that are senior to those of our common stock or may otherwise materially and adversely affect the holdings or
rights of our existing stockholders.  If we cannot obtain adequate capital, we may not be able to fully implement our business strategy, and
our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

We could be party to litigation that could adversely affect us by distracting management, increasing our expenses or subjecting us to
material money damages and other remedies.

As discussed in Item 3 – Legal Proceedings, we have been sued in shareholder class action and derivative lawsuits regarding our financial
disclosures and our Board’s oversight of our business, and as a publicly-traded company we cannot be assured that similar actions will not
be brought against us in the future.  Regardless of whether any claims against us are valid, or whether we’re ultimately held liable for
such claims, they may be expensive to defend and may divert time and money away from our operations and hurt our performance.  A
significant judgment for any claims against us could materially and adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations.  Any
adverse publicity resulting from these allegations may also materially and adversely affect our reputation or prospects, which in turn could
adversely affect our results.
 
Our failure to remediate the material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting or our identification of any other
material weaknesses in the future may adversely affect the accuracy and timing of our financial reporting.

As further described in Item 9A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as of March
31, 2016. Based on that evaluation and the material weaknesses described below, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective such that the information relating to our company
required to be disclosed in our Securities and Exchange Commission reports (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms and (ii) is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure as a result of material weaknesses
in our disclosure controls and procedures. The material weaknesses relate to our inability to timely file our reports and other information
with the SEC as required under Section 13 of the Exchange Act, together with material weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting. Material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting are (i) ineffectiveness of the Board of Directors, (ii) our
lack of the quantity of resources and personnel with an appropriate level of knowledge and experience in the application of U.S. GAAP
commensurate with our financial reporting requirements, and (iii) our lack of information technology (“IT”) governance, physical
safeguards and access to programs and data.
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As further described in Item 9A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we have implemented remediation measures and we are in the
process of identifying any additional appropriate remediation measures. There is the potential that our remediation efforts may not be
successful. Until our remediation plan is fully implemented, our management will continue to devote significant time and attention to
these efforts. If we fail to complete our remediation plan in a timely fashion, or at all, or if our remediation plan is inadequate or we
encounter difficulties in the implementation or maintenance of our internal control over financial reporting or disclosure controls and
procedures, there will continue to be an increased risk that we will be unable to timely file future periodic reports with the SEC. In
addition, any failure to implement our remediation plan or any difficulties we encounter with our remediation plan could result in
additional material weaknesses or deficiencies in our internal control or future material misstatements in our annual or interim financial
statements. Further, if any other material weakness or deficiency in our internal control exist and go undetected, our financial statements
could contain material misstatements that, when discovered in the future, could cause us to fail to meet our future reporting obligations.
Moreover, our failure to remediate the material weakness identified above or the identification or additional material weaknesses, could
adversely affect our stock price and investor confidence.
 
Risks Related to our Common Stock

NASDAQ has determined to delist our common stock

Trading of our common stock on NASDAQ was halted in September 2015 as a result of the criminal and civil allegations made against
Benjamin Wey and others relating to allegedly improper trading activities involving predecessor companies.  Subsequently, NASDAQ
determined to delist our common stock pursuant to its discretionary authority, as well as due to our failure to timely file our annual and
quarterly reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and pay NASDAQ’s annual fee.  On June 20, 2016 we
were notified that our appeal of NASDAQ’s delisting decision had been denied, and we expect that our common stock will be delisted
from NASDAQ.

When our common stock is delisted from NASDAQ and transferred to the over-the-counter market, the spreads between the bid and ask
prices for our common stock may increase and the execution time for orders may be longer.  The delisting of our common stock from
NASDAQ may result in decreased liquidity, thereby making the trading of our common stock more difficult.  In addition, delisting from
the NASDAQ might negatively impact our reputation and, as a consequence, our business.

Our stock price may be volatile, which could result in substantial losses for investors.

Our common stock does not have substantial trading volume.  As a result, relatively small trades of our common stock may have a
significant impact on the price of our common stock and, therefore, may contribute to the price volatility of our common stock.  Because
of the limited trading volume in our common stock and the price volatility of our common stock, stockholders may be unable to sell their
shares of common stock when they desire or at the price they desire.  The inability for our stockholders to sell their shares in a declining
market because of such illiquidity or at a price they desire may substantially increase their risk of loss.

Our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer has significant voting power and may effectively control the outcome of any
stockholder vote.
 
Tejune Kang, current Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of 6D Global, personally is in control of multiple
Limited Liability Corporations (“LLCs”) that hold in the aggregate, approximately 29.8% of the outstanding shares of our common stock
as of June 30, 2016.  NYGG (Asia), Ltd. holds, in the aggregate, approximately 44.9% of the outstanding shares of our common stock as
of June 30, 2016.  In addition, on January 14, 2016, NYGG Asia entered into an agreement and proxy with the Company that will result in
NYGG Asia’s shares being voted in the same proportion as the shares not held by NYGG Asia are voted.  This agreement will, however,
terminate upon the delisting of our common stock from NASDAQ.  As a result, Mr. Kang has the ability to substantially influence and, so
long as the NYGG Asia proxy remains in effect, effectively control the outcome of corporate actions requiring stockholder approval,
including the election of directors.  This concentration of ownership may also have the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control
of 6D Global, even if such a change in control would benefit other investors.
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Future sales or issuances of securities may dilute the ownership of existing stockholders and cause the market price of our common
stock to decline.
 
Pursuant to a stock purchase agreement, we have issued and sold to Discover Growth Fund 1,088 shares of Series A Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Stock of the Company.  Such shares of Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible into a
total of 2,072,381 shares of our common stock, and upon the conversion of such shares, we also will be required to pay the stockholder
dividends, as well as any applicable Conversion Premium, at our sole and absolute discretion, either in cash or in shares of our common
stock.  The number of shares of our common stock that may be issued pursuant to the Conversion Premium and if we elect to pay such
dividends in shares may be significant, but cannot be determined at this time because the applicable calculations are based on our stock
price during a period surrounding the date of the conversion.  In addition, the dividend rate has increased by 10 percentage points as a
result of the suspension and delisting of our common stock.  Any such issuances of our common stock as a result of the conversion of
Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock will dilute the proportionate ownership and voting power of existing stockholders
and may cause the market price for our common stock to decline.
 
The Company has reserved all available authorized, but unissued common stock

We are required to reserve three times the number of shares of common stock required to immediately issue all shares potentially
issuable in relation to the Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock.  This has resulted in us reserving all of our authorized, but
unissued, common stock for possible conversion.

Because we have reserved all of our authorized, but unissued common stock, we may have a reduced ability to consummate acquisitions
and may not be able to grant stock options (or other securities) convertible into common stock or satisfy an exercise of any existing
convertible securities.

Item 1B. – Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item 2. – Properties

Our principal executive offices are located in New York, New York in segregated offices comprising an aggregate of approximately
8,887 square feet.  We are occupying our offices under a 62-month lease that provides for monthly lease payments of $40,732 and a
$244,393 letter of credit serving as a security deposit.  All of the facilities used by us are used to house administrative, marketing and
professional services personnel.  We believe our facilities and equipment to be in good condition and reasonably suited and adequate for
our needs.
The following table sets forth certain information regarding our leased facilities as of December 31, 2015:
 

Location  
Size (Square

Feet)  
Cincinnati Ohio (1)   4,473 
Cincinnati Ohio (2)   1,250 
New York, New York (3)   2,254 
New York, New York (4)   8,887 
New York, New York (5)   834 
Pleasanton, California (6)   1,719 
Portland, Oregon (7)   1,162 
Portland Oregon (8)   2,931 
Portland, Oregon (9)   3,050 
Portland, Oregon (10)   9,000 
Minneapolis, Minnesota (11)   724 
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(1) This facility is leased pursuant to a 60-month lease that expires in August 2018 and provides for monthly payments of

$4,700 and annual increases of approximately 3% commencing on the anniversary date of the initial lease.
(2) This facility is lease pursuant to a 12-month lease that expires in June 2016 and provides for monthly payments of

$1,708for the term of the lease.
(3) This facility is leased pursuant to a 60-month lease that expires in August 2018 and provides for monthly payments of

$18,404 for the term of the lease.  We have sub-leased this lease to two unrelated parties for a period expiring in
August 2018.

(4) This facility is leased pursuant to a 62-month lease that expires in March 2020 and provides for monthly payments of
$40,732 for the term of the lease.

(5) This facility is leased pursuant to a 12-month lease that expires in November 2016 and provides for monthly payments
of $5,250 for the term of the lease.

(6) This facility is leased pursuant to a 36-month lease that expires in August 2017 and provides for monthly payments of
$3,266 and annual increases of approximately 3% commencing on the anniversary date of the initial lease.

(7) This facility is leased pursuant to a 12-month lease that expires in April 2016 and provides for monthly payments of
$3,245 for the term of the lease.

(8) This facility is leased pursuant to a 60-month lease that expires in November 2017 and provides for monthly payments
of $4,885 and annual increases of approximately 5% commencing on the anniversary date of the initial lease.

(9) This facility is leased pursuant to a 38-month lease that expires in December 2016 and provides for monthly payments
of $6,336 and annual increases of approximately 5% commencing on the anniversary date of the initial lease.

(10) This facility is leased pursuant to an 85-month lease that expires in March 2023 and provides for monthly payments of
$17,250 and varying increase ranging from 3% to 14% on the anniversary of the initial lease.

(11) This facility is leased pursuant to a 24-month lease that expires in May 2017 and provides for monthly payments of
$1,086 for the term of the lease.

 
Item 3. – Legal Proceedings

Occasionally, we may be involved in claims and legal proceedings arising from the ordinary course of its business.  We record a
provision for a liability when we believe that is both probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be reasonably
estimated.  If these estimates and assumptions change or prove to be incorrect, it could have a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.  Contingencies are inherently unpredictable and the assessments of the value can involve a series of complex
judgments about future events and can rely heavily on estimates and assumptions.

Discover Growth Fund v. 6D Global Technologies, Inc., et al., Case No. 15-cv-7618 (PKC) (S.D.N.Y.)

On September 28, 2015, Discover Growth Fund (“Discover”) filed an action in the United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York (the “District Court”) against 6D Global Technologies, Inc., its officers and directors, and certain third-parties.  In its
complaint, Discover alleges, among other things, that it was fraudulently induced into executing the Stock Purchase Agreement (the
“SPA”), because the Company allegedly made misrepresentations regarding Benjamin Wey - also a defendant in the pending action -
and his alleged involvement with the Company.  Discover’s complaint further asserts claims for violations of federal securities laws,
rescission, breach of contract, and fraud, all substantially arising out of the same factual allegations.
 
Discover’s suit was assigned to District Court Judge P. Kevin Castel.  Discover made a motion in the District Court for a pre-judgment
attachment of the Company’s assets in aid of arbitration, and for a temporary restraining order pending a decision on its motion for
attachment of the Company’s assets, which was initially granted by the court and then revised.  The Company opposed Discover’s
attachment motion and cross-moved to compel arbitration of Discover’s claims in accordance with the terms of the SPA.

On October 30, 2015, Judge Castel completely denied Discover’s motion for an attachment of the Company’s assets and vacated the
temporary restraining order.  The Court found that the plaintiff had not satisfied their burden of proof regarding any alleged wrongdoing
by the Company, or its officers and directors.  As of the date of this filing, Discover has not filed for arbitration of its underlying claims.

The Company vigorously disputes Discover’s underlying claims and intends to aggressively defend them if any arbitration is filed by
Discover.  The extent of the Company’s potential liability in this matter has not yet been determined.
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Puddu et al. v. 6D Global Technologies, Inc., et al., Case No. 15-cv-8061 (RWS) (S.D.N.Y.)

On October 13, 2015, an individual named Sixto Castillo IV filed a putative class action complaint in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York against the Company, certain officers and directors, and certain third-parties, putatively on behalf of
the Company’s stockholders.  The lawsuit seeks damages arising from alleged material misstatements and omissions concerning
defendant Benjamin Wey, in violation of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78t(a),
respectively) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder (17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5).  Plaintiffs Joseph Puddu, Mark Ghitis, Valery Burlak,
and Adam Butter, on behalf of the putative class, subsequently filed an amended complaint and second amended complaint on March 23,
2016 and April 4, 2016, respectively.

Plaintiffs allege, among other things, that defendants made false and/or misleading statements and/or failed to disclose: (1) the extent of
Benjamin Wey’s purported involvement in the Company’s operations, and (2) Benjamin Wey’s purported beneficial ownership of more
than 5% of the Company’s stock.  Plaintiffs seek an undetermined amount of compensatory damages allegedly sustained by the putative
class a result of these purported misstatements and omissions.

The Company vigorously disputes the allegations made in the complaint and intends to assert an aggressive defense.  The extent of the
Company’s potential liability in this matter has not yet been determined.

Scott v. Wei et al. and 6D Global Technologies, Inc., Case No. 1:15-cv-09691 (S.D.N.Y.)

On December 11, 2015, an individual named Allan Scott filed a shareholder action in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of New York derivatively on behalf of 6D Global Technologies Inc. against certain officers and directors of the Company,
certain third-parties, and the Company itself (as a nominal defendant).  Mr. Scott seeks damages and injunctive relief arising from
alleged breaches of fiduciary duties, unjust enrichment, and purported material misstatements and omissions in violation Section 14 of
the Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78n) and Rule 14a-9 promulgated thereunder (17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-9).

Specifically, the complaint alleges, among other things, that defendants have harmed the Company: (1) by permitting defendant
Benjamin Wei to manipulate the share price and trading volume of the Company’s stock, (2) by lacking adequate internal controls to
prevent such alleged manipulation, and (3) by failing to disclose Wei’s purported actions and involvement in the Company.  Mr. Scott
seeks an award to the Company in an undetermined amount for damages it allegedly sustained as a result of these alleged violations, as
well as injunctive relief requiring 6D Global to reform and improve its corporate governance and internal procedures.  The lawsuit has
been stayed by the Court pending the outcome of the motion to dismiss that defendants intend to file in the Puddu lawsuit.

The Company and the named directors and officers dispute the allegations made in the complaint and intend to amount an aggressive
defense.  The extent of the potential liability in this matter has not yet been determined.

Cottam v. Glob. Emerging Capital Grp. et al., Case No. 16-cv-04584 (S.D.N.Y.)

The Company has learned that on June 16, 2016, an individual named John Cottam filed a complaint in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of New York against the Company, its CEO, and certain third-parties.  To the Company’s knowledge, neither
the Company nor its CEO has been served with this complaint. 
With regard to the Company and its CEO, Mr. Cottam seeks damages arising from an alleged breach of contract, as well as purported
material misstatements or omissions in violation of Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)) and Rule 10b-5
promulgated thereunder (17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5).  Specifically, the complaint alleges, among other things, that defendants induced Mr.
Cottam to invest in a private offering of Company shares by misrepresenting (i) the nature of a reorganization facilitated by the offering;
(ii) certain restrictions on the selling of Company shares; and (iii) the involvement of non-party Benjamin Wey in the offering.  Mr.
Cottam further alleges that the Company and its CEO breached a subscription agreement by purportedly failing to issue Mr. Cottam the
contracted for number of shares.

Plaintiff seeks an undetermined amount of compensatory and punitive damages allegedly sustained as a result of defendants’ purported
breaches, misstatements, and omissions.

The Company and its CEO dispute the allegations made in the complaint and, if served, intend to mount an aggressive defense.  The
extent of the potential liability in this matter has not yet been determined.

Item 4. – Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. – Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Our common stock began trading in September 2014 under the symbol “SIXD”.  The following table sets forth the high and low closing
sales prices of our common stock for the periods indicated.  Information from the commencement of trading on the NASDAQ through the
year ended December 31, 2015 is the high and low closing sales prices of our common stock based upon reports of transactions on the
NASDAQ Capital Market.  Information for all periods prior thereto is the high and low last sales prices of our common stock on the
OTCQB Marketplace operated by the OTC Markets Group Inc. (the “OTCQB”) OTCQB based upon information provided by the
OTCQB.  Quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down commission, and may not represent actual
transactions.
 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014  High   Low  
First Quarter  $ -  $ - 
Second Quarter  $ -  $ - 
Third Quarter  $ 8.30  $ 7.00 
Fourth Quarter  $ 8.50  $ 4.50 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015  High   Low  
First Quarter  $ 8.70  $ 6.00 
Second Quarter  $ 9.55  $ 6.50 
Third Quarter  $ 12.20  $ 1.24 
Fourth Quarter  $ 2.90  $ 2.90 

As of June 30, 2016, the closing price of our common stock, as reported by the OTCQB was $0.15 per share.  The high and low closing
prices of our common stock during the fourth quarter of 2015 reflects the halt on the trading of our common stock as of September 10,
2015.

As of March 29, 2016, our common stock was traded over-the-counter as a grey market security.  These securities are not currently traded
on the OTCQX, OTCQB or OTC Pink marketplaces.  Broker-dealers are not willing or able to publicly quote grey market securities
because of a lack of investor interest, company information availability or regulatory compliance.

Holders

As of June 30, 2016 we had 192 record holders of our common stock.  The number of record holders was determined from the records of
our transfer agent and does not include beneficial owners of common stock whose shares are held in the names of various security
brokers, dealers or registered clearing agencies.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividend on our common stock.  We intend to retain any future earnings and do not expect to
pay dividends in the foreseeable future with the exception of dividends required to be paid with respect to the Series A Redeemable
Convertible Preferred stock.  Any future determination related to our dividend policy will be made at the discretion of our board of
directors with knowledge of conditions then-existing, including factors such as our results of operations, financial conditions and
requirements, business conditions and covenants under any applicable contractual arrangement.
 
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

None

Item 6. – Selected Financial Data

Not applicable
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Item 7. – Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Forward-Looking Statements

This section and other parts of this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  Forward-looking statements provide current expectations of future events based on certain
assumptions and include any statement that does not directly relate to any historical or current fact.  Forward-looking statements can
also be identified by words such as “future,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “predicts,” “will,”
“would,” “could,” “can,” “may,” and similar terms.  Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and the
Company’s actual results may differ significantly from the results discussed in the forward-looking statements.  Factors that might cause
such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in Part I, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading
“Risk Factors,” which are incorporated herein by reference.  The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
 
Overview

6D Global Technologies, Inc. is a digital business solutions company serving the digital marketing and technology needs of global
organizations.  6D Global’s services and products enable clients to create, measure, and optimize digital experiences for their audiences
across marketing channels and devices.  These solutions help clients reduce the cost of content delivery and increase the return on their
investments in digital communication.  6D Global’s digital technology services include consulting, web experience and content
management, analytics, creative interfaces, mobile solutions, managed marketing services, and IT infrastructure staffing.

Strategically, 6D Global is focused primarily on becoming a deep subject matter expert across multiple touchpoints in the digital
marketing and technology ecosystem, helping Chief Marketing Officers and Chief Information Officers drive critical change and growth
for their organizations.  Expanding our geographical operations including a new office in Dublin, Ireland opened in 2015 to facilitate
twenty-four hour seven days a week support for our clients.

6D Global offers holistic information technology (“IT”) solutions for almost every aspect of its clients’ operations from supply chain, to
analytics, to content management, and information security.  6D Global began as an IT consultancy serving the enterprise resource
planning, or ERP, market – specializing primarily in the market-leading software applications vendor at that time, PeopleSoft.  We have
since evolved into new focus areas, particularly since 2012, increasing the breadth of our offerings to include other essential information
technology needs of today’s enterprises.  Each new practice we have launched is in a growing or emerging technology sector.  Currently,
6D Global’s business units provide business-to-business IT solutions in the form of professional services and managed services in the IT
solutions industry.  6D Global’s present portfolio of service offerings includes: Mobile Application Development; Digital & Content
Management; Marketing Data Analysis; Marketing and Creative Solutions; and IT Infrastructure Staffing.  We predominantly provide our
services under time-and-material contracts and recognize revenues as services are provided.

Our market today includes predominantly mid-sized to Fortune 500 commercial, nonprofit, and public sector enterprises across virtually
all industries, including, but not limited to, healthcare, consumer, education, government, manufacturing, and high tech.  Because
organizations in virtually every sector of the economy perform or need the functions we support, we pursue opportunities across nearly
all sectors.  Our contractual arrangements can vary in length of time based on our client’s requirements and our services are extended on a
regular basis as client’s needs change and grow.  We continually recruit to increase our workforce and enhance our ability to staff existing
and new contracts.  The effectiveness of our utilization of the workforce and continued investment in future growth may impact overall
results.

On September 29, 2014, CleanTech consummated a share exchange (the “Exchange”) with Six Dimensions, Inc. pursuant to the
Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange, dated as of June 13, 2013 between CleanTech, Six Dimensions and the shareholders of Six
Dimensions.  The Exchange is being treated as a reverse recapitalization effected by a share exchange for financial accounting and
reporting purposes, since substantially all of CleanTech's operations were disposed of prior to the consummation of the transaction.  6D
Global is treated as the accounting acquirer as its stockholders control 6D Global after the Exchange Agreement, even though CleanTech
was the legal acquirer.  As a result, the assets and liabilities and the historical operations that are reflected in these financial statements
are those of 6D Global as if 6D Global had always been the reporting company and, on the date of the Exchange Agreement, changed its
name and reorganized its capital stock.  Since CleanTech had no operations upon the Exchange Agreement taking place, the transaction
was treated as a reverse recapitalization for accounting purposes and no goodwill or other intangible assets were recorded by us as a result
of the Exchange Agreement.
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On September 29, 2014, in connection with the Exchange, we completed a private placement equity offering to accredited investors from
which we received $4,556,100 in gross proceeds and issued 2,201,031 shares of Common Stock.  On November 21, 2014, 6D Global
completed an additional private placement equity offering to accredited investors from which we raised $1,052,498 in gross proceeds, and
issued 508,453 shares of Common Stock.
 
On August 10, 2015, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a single institutional investor pursuant to
which the Company agreed to issue and sell 1,088 shares of the Company’s newly designated Series A Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock of the Company, par value $0.00001 per share (the “Redeemable Preferred Stock”), convertible into shares of the
Company’s Common Stock, at a fixed conversion price of $5.25 per share, at a purchase price of $10,000 per share with an 8% original
issue discount, for total gross proceeds of $10.0 million, or the sale of approximately $10.88 million.  The agreement carries a dividend
rate that amounts to 8.5% per annum subject to certain upward or downward adjustments based upon the market value of the Company’s
Common Stock, with a maximum dividend rate of 17.0% and a minimum dividend rate of 0.0%.  In addition, the dividend increased by
10 percentage points as a result of the suspension and delisting of our common stock.  Upon conversion, the Company shall pay the
holders of the Redeemable Preferred Stock being converted a conversion premium equal to the amount of dividends that such shares
would have otherwise received if they had been held through the dividend maturity date.  The Redeemable Preferred Stock will mature
seven years following the issuance date, at which time such shares will automatically convert into shares of Common Stock. 
 
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with U.S. GAAP, and our discussion and analysis of its
financial condition and operating results require our management to make judgments, assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts
reported in its consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.  Note 4, “Significant and Critical Accounting Policies and
Practices” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K describes the
significant accounting policies and methods used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.  Management bases its
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities.  Actual results may differ from these
estimates and such differences may be material.

Management believes our critical accounting policies and estimates are those related to revenue recognition, allowances, leases and
income taxes, complex financial instruments, business combinations and related goodwill and intangible assets.
 
Revenue Recognition

We provide our services primarily under time-and-materials contracts.  Revenues earned under time-and-material arrangements are
recognized as services are provided.  We recognize revenue from the provision of professional services when it is realized or realizable
and earned.  We consider revenue realized or realizable and earned when all of the following criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists, (ii) the services have been rendered to the customer, (iii) the sales price is fixed or determinable and (iv)
collectability is reasonably assured.  Appropriate allowances for returns and discounts are recorded concurrent with revenue recognition.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP guidance, Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursement Received for Out-of-Pocket Expenses,
we classify reimbursed expenses as revenue and the related expense within cost of revenue in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations.

For fixed price service arrangements, we apply the proportional performance model or a ratable model to recognize revenue.  When
customer acceptance provisions exist, we are generally able to reliably demonstrate that the service meets, or will meet upon completion,
the customer acceptance criteria.  If circumstances exist which prevent us from verifying compliance with the acceptance provisions until
the service has been completed, revenue is not recognized until compliance can be verified.

Revenues recognized in excess of the amounts invoiced to clients are classified as unbilled revenues in our consolidated balance sheets.

We may record deferred revenue in circumstances where the customer’s contract calls for pre-billing of services.  Amounts in deferred
revenue are realized when the services are performed and the criteria noted above are met.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
 
Management’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical sales, historical loss levels, and an analysis of the
collectability of individual accounts, and general economic conditions that may affect a client’s ability to pay.  We evaluated the key
factors and assumptions used to develop the allowance in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.  Although we believe the estimates we have made are reasonable, because they are based on estimates and judgment, they are
inherently uncertain.  We have not experienced any significant adjustments; however, unknown factors or changes in the economy may
affect our client’s ability to process payments timely in the future.
 
Leases

Lease agreements are evaluated to determine if they are capital leases meeting any of the following criteria at inception: (a) transfer of
ownership; (b) bargain purchase option; (c) lease term is equal to 75 percent or more of the estimated economic life of the leased
property; or (d) present value at the beginning of the lease term of the minimum lease payments, excluding that portion of the payments
representing executory costs such as insurance, maintenance, and taxes to be paid by the lessor, including any profit thereon, equals or
exceeds 90 percent of the excess of the fair value of the leased property to the lessor at lease inception over any related investment tax
credit retained by the lessor and expected to be realized by the lessor.

If at its inception a lease meets any of the four lease criteria above, the lease is classified by the lessee as a capital lease; and if none of the
four criteria are met, the lease is classified by the lessee as an operating lease.
 
Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method.  This approach requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities of the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and
liabilities.  The U.S. GAAP guidance for income taxes prescribes a two-step approach for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of income tax positions taken or expected to be taken in an income tax return.  The first step evaluates an income tax
position in order to determine whether it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, based on the
technical merits of the position.  The second step measures the benefit to be recognized in the financial statements for those income tax
positions that meet the more likely than not recognition threshold. U.S. GAAP also provides guidance on derecognition, classification,
recognition and classification of interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosers and transition.  Under U.S. GAAP, we
may recognize a previously unrecognized tax benefits if the tax position is effectively (rather than “ultimately”) settled through
examination, negotiation or litigation.  We reevaluate these uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis.  This evaluation based on factors
including, but not limited to, changes in facts and circumstances, changes in tax law, effectively settled issues, and new audit
activity.  Any changes in these factors could result in changes to a tax benefit or tax provision.
 
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

We account for our Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock (“Redeemable Preferred Stock”) under the provisions of
Accounting Series Release 268, SEC Comments and Interpretations (“ASR 268”), ASC 505 – Equity, ASC 480 – Distinguishing
Liabilities from Equity and ASC 815 – Derivatives and Hedging. Accordingly, these shares along with the embedded conversion feature,
the redemption feature, and the conversion feature are all part of temporary equity (“mezzanine equity”) in our Consolidated Balance
Sheets based upon the terms and conditions of the Stock Purchase Agreement (“SPA”).  In accordance with ASC 480 the initial carrying
amount of Redeemable Preferred Stock is equal to the amount of proceeds received upon issuance, as reduced for the derivative liability
associated with the dividend anti-dilution protection and a conversion premium which has been bifurcated.

Business Combinations

We account for business combinations under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 805-10, Business
Combinations ("ASC 805-10"), which requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business combinations.  Assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, including non-controlling interests, are recorded at the date of acquisition at their respective fair
values.  ASC 805-10 also specifies criteria that intangible assets acquired in a business combination must meet to be recognized and
reported apart from goodwill.  Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of the tangible net assets and intangible
assets acquired in a business combination.  Acquisition-related expenses are recognized separately from the business combinations and
are expensed as incurred.  If the business combination provides for contingent consideration, we record the contingent consideration at
fair value at the acquisition date and any changes in fair value after the acquisition date are accounted for as measurement-period
adjustments.  Changes in fair value of contingent consideration resulting from events after the acquisition date, such as earn-outs, are
recognized as follows: 1) if the contingent consideration is classified as equity, the contingent consideration is not re-measured and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity, or 2) if the contingent consideration is classified as a liability, the changes in fair
value are recognized in earnings.
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The estimated fair value of net assets acquired, including the allocation of the fair value to identifiable assets and liabilities, was
determined using established valuation techniques.  The estimated fair value of the net assets acquired was determined using the income
approach to valuation based on the discounted cash flow method.  Under this method, expected future cash flows of the business on a
stand-alone basis are discounted back to a present value.  The estimated fair value of identifiable intangible assets, consisting of
customer relationships, the trade names and non-compete agreements acquired were determined using the multi-period excess earnings
method, relief of royalty method and discounted cash flow methods, respectively.

The multi-period excess earnings method used to value customer relationships requires the use of assumptions, the most significant of
which include: the remaining useful life, expected revenue, survivor curve, earnings before interest and tax margins, marginal tax rate,
contributory asset charges, discount rate and tax amortization benefit.

The most significant assumptions under the relief of royalty method used to value trade names include: estimated remaining useful life,
expected revenue, royalty rate, tax rate, discount rate and tax amortization benefit.  The discounted cash flow method used to value non-
compete agreements includes assumptions such as: expected revenue, term of the non-compete agreements, probability and ability to
compete, operating margin, tax rate and discount rate.  Management has developed these assumptions on the basis of historical
knowledge of the business and projected financial information of the Company.  These assumptions may vary based on future events,
perceptions of different market participants and other factors outside the control of management, and such variations may be significant
to estimated values.

The discounted cash flow valuation method requires the use of assumptions, the most significant of which include: future revenue
growth, future earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, estimated synergies to be achieved by a market participant
as a result of the business combination, marginal tax rate, terminal value growth rate, weighted average cost of capital and discount rate.

Goodwill and Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill, which represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired, is carried at cost.  Goodwill is not
amortized; rather, it is subject to a periodic assessment for impairment by applying a fair value based test.  Goodwill is assessed for
impairment on an annual basis as of October 1st of each year or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
asset might be impaired.  When conducting its annual goodwill impairment assessment, Management initially performs a qualitative
evaluation of whether it is more likely than not that goodwill is impaired. If it is determined by a qualitative evaluation that it is more
likely than not that goodwill is impaired, we then apply a two-step impairment test. In the first step, we determine the fair value of the
Company’s reporting units using a discounted cash flow analysis.  If the net book values of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, we
would then perform the second step of the impairment test which requires allocation of the reporting unit's fair value to all of its assets
and liabilities using the acquisition method prescribed under authoritative guidance for business combinations.  Any residual fair value
is being allocated to goodwill.
 
An impairment charge is recognized only when the implied fair value of the Company’s reporting unit’s goodwill is less than its
carrying amount.
 
Long-Lived Assets, Including Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

Long-lived assets, other than goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangibles, are evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable through the estimated undiscounted future cash
flows derived from such assets.

Definite-lived intangible assets primarily consist of trade names, non-compete agreements and customer relationships.  Definite-lived
assets are principally amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  For long-lived assets used in
operations, impairment losses are only recorded if the asset’s carrying amount is not recoverable through its undiscounted, probability-
weighted future cash flows.  Management measures the impairment loss based on the difference between the carrying amount and the
estimated fair value.  When an impairment exists, the related assets are written down to fair value.
 
Results of Operations

The following paragraphs set forth our results of operations for the periods presented.  The period-to-period comparison of financial
results is not necessarily indicative of future results.
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Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014

The following table sets forth the summary statements of operations for the periods indicated:
 
  Years Ended December 31,      

  2015   2014   
Dollar

Increase/(Decrease)  
Percentage

Increase/(Decrease) 
             
Revenues  $ 12,789,892  $ 11,797,813  $ 992,079   8%
Cost of revenues   7,728,244   7,425,857   302,387   4%
Gross margin   5,061,648   4,371,956   689,692   16%
Operating expenses   13,056,284   3,878,075   9,178,209   237%
Other expense, net   9,568,512   184,571   9,383,941   5,084%
Income tax benefit   451,858   161,255   290,603   180%
Net (loss) income  $ (17,111,290)  $ 470,565  $ (17,581,855)   (3,736)%

Revenues

Our revenue increased by approximately 8% to $12,789,892 during the year December 31, 2015, from $11,797,813 during the year ended
December 31, 2014.  Revenues generated by two major segments of our business, Content Management Systems (“CMS”) and
Information Technology Staffing (“IT Staffing”), were 88% and 12% respectively.  The increase in revenue was primarily due to an
increase in the number of professional service projects and contracts with newly added clients as well as clients of the acquired businesses
of 28% offset by the decrease in revenues from existing clients of 20% predominately related to the decrease of IT Staffing clients as we
focus on the digital marketing service offerings.   We continue to expand our services being offered in multiple areas of the digital
marketing segment through organic efforts and acquisitions and our sales and marketing efforts continue to lend to our ability to win more
business.  6D Global is primarily focused on digital technology solutions and becoming a one stop provider to Chief Marketing
Officers.  We anticipate these digital marketing service offerings will continue to drive growth in our client base and sales results.

Cost of revenues

Our cost of revenues increased by approximately 4% to $7,728,244 during the year ended December 31, 2015, from $7,425,857 during
the year ended December 31, 2014.  The increase in cost of revenues was primarily a result of additional consultative staff hired through
recruiting efforts and acquired companies to increase our ability to provide service to our clients reflected by increase in sales and share
based compensation related to employee stock option grants.  We continually monitor the utilization of our salaried billable consultants.
 
The cost of revenues for the CMS and IT staffing segment were $6,492,446 and $1,235,798, respectively, for the year ended December
31, 2015.  The cost of revenues for the CMS and IT staffing segment were $3,620,396 and $3,805,461, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2014.

Gross Margin

Our gross profit margin was 40% and 37% during the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.  Our gross margin increased
due to a change in the mix of professional services in the project-based work provided to our clients in digital market space that realize
higher gross margins, versus staffing solutions and service in other markets, partially offset by additional expense related to share based
compensation from employee stock option grants.  We continually monitor the utilization of our salaried billable consultants as changes
will directly affect the number of billable hours in a billing cycle, therefore causing fluctuations in gross margin percentages.
 
The gross margin for the CMS and IT staffing segment were $4,737,208 and $324,440, respectively, for the year ended December 31,
2015.  The cost of revenues for the CMS and IT staffing segment were $3,243,563 and $1,128,393, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2014.
 
Operating Expenses

Our operating expenses encompass selling general and administrative expenses consisting primarily of compensation and related costs for
personnel and costs related to our facilities, finance, human resources, information technology and fees for professional
services.  Professional services are principally comprised of outside legal, audit, information technology consulting, marketing and
outsourcing services as well as the costs related to being a publicly traded company.
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Our operating expenses during the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 were $13,056,284 and $3,878,075, respectively.  The
overall $9,178,209 increase in operating expenses was primarily attributable to the following increases and decreases in operating
expenses:

· An increase in compensation and related expenses of $2,981,000, related to additional executive, management, and sales
positions to provide proper infrastructure and foster growth as well as additional staff from the acquired companies. Also
additional compensation expense associated with the acquisitions to the principals for remaining employed for the first year.

· An increase of selling general and administrative expenses due to an increase of $929,558 in costs relating to travel, sales
activity, and marketing associated with efforts to grow our business.

· An increase in insurance costs and fees for services related to preparing public filings and other activities associated with
being a publicly traded company of $169,235.

· An increase of stock based compensation of $1,424,672 related to stock grants and stock options under the Company’s
Omnibus Incentive Plan implemented in 2015.

· An increase in costs related to rent from acquisitions and office expansions of $618,496.
· An increase in costs related to office expenditures from the acquisitions and office expansions, employee training, and

software systems used by us associated with efforts to grow the business.
· An increase of approximately $1,291,958 in professional fees for the use of outside services, consultants, accounting firms

and legal firms to assist with the acquisitions, completion of Form S-3 Registration Statement, on-going legal matters, and
company activities related to being a publicly traded company.

· An increase in one-time legal and consulting fees of $911,456 related to inquiries received and suspension procedures from
NASDAQ and legal matters regarding the on-going litigation.

· An increase in depreciation expense and amortization of intangibles expense of $482,497 also related to the acquisitions and
office expansion.

Other Expenses, net

Other expenses, net consisted primarily of interest expense primarily related to our promissory notes and capital leases, accretion
associated with acquisition related contingent consideration, loss on debt extinguishment, loss on derivative liability and other income
(expense).
 
Other expenses, net increased by $9,383,941 to $9,568,512 for the year ended December 31, 2015 as compared to other expenses, net of
$184,571 during the year ended December 31, 2014, which included an interest income entry related to the settlement of the related
party note.  For the year ended December 31, 2015, other expenses, net consisted of $135,414 interest expense, $145,997 of interest
expense related to the change in the fair value of our contingent consideration, $9,292,720 related to the loss on our derivative liability
offset by $5,619 of other income.  For the year ended December 31, 2014, other expenses, net consisted of $147,069 interest expense
and $57,502 in loss on debt extinguishment offset by $20,000 of other income.
 
Income Taxes

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we were organized as a California limited liability company, and elected to be taxed as an S-
Corporation under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and applicable state statutes.  As a result of our S-Corporation status,
the income of 6D Global flowed through to the stockholders, and was taxed at the individual, rather than the corporate-level. 
Accordingly, we had no tax liability at the federal level (with limited exceptions) during the period that the S-Corporation election was in
effect.  In addition, we elected to be treated as a Subchapter S-Corporation for corporate income tax purposes.  This treatment imposed
individual income taxes on our stockholder’s respective shares of corporate profits, and resulted in a significantly reduced corporate-level
state income tax.
 
The income allocable to each stockholder is subject to examination by federal and state taxing authorities.  In the event of an examination
of the income tax returns of our stockholders, the tax liability of the stockholders could be changed if an adjustment in the income is
ultimately determined by the taxing authorities.

In conjunction with our reorganization from a California LLC to a Nevada C-Corporation, effective June 27, 2014, we became subject to
federal and state income taxes and had to recognize income tax expense and deferred taxes for financial statement purposes.  As a result,
we recorded an income tax benefit as a deferred tax asset of $0 and $161,255 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, principally accounting for the difference in financial reporting and tax reporting as it relates to the deductibility of expenses
and depreciation.  Minimum franchise taxes assessed by states and local agencies are reported in selling, general and administrative
expenses in the statement of operations.

For certain transactions, we may be subject to accounting methods for federal income tax purposes that differ significantly from the
accounting methods used in preparing our financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  Accordingly, the taxable income of 6D
Global reported for federal income tax purposes may differ from the net income set forth in these financial statements.
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We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions.  Our income tax returns are open to
examination by federal, state and foreign tax authorities, generally for the years ended December 31, 2011 and later, with certain state
jurisdictions open for audit for earlier years.  We had no amount recorded for any unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, nor did we record any amount for the implementation of ASC 740.  Our policy is to record estimated
interest and penalties related to the underpayment of income taxes or unrecognized tax benefits as a component of our income tax
provision.  We did not recognize any interest or penalties in its Consolidated Statements of Operations and there are no accruals for
interest or penalties for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.  We are not currently under examination by any tax jurisdiction.

Net (Loss) Income

For the foregoing reasons, we had a net loss of $17,111,290 for the year ended December 31, 2015, or $(0.22) per share (basic and
diluted), compared to net income of $470,565 for the year ended December 31, 2014, or $0.01 per share (basic and diluted).
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that we will continue as a going concern, which
contemplates, among other things, the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company entered the public market as a listed company on NASDAQ: SIXD.  While we had shown
early stage losses which management believed was reasonably consistent with an emerging technology company, internal forecast
indicated we would begin transitioning into an operating breakeven in future periods.

In 2014, we completed multiple private placements amounting to $5,809,598 in gross proceeds.  In addition, we completed a Stock
Purchase Agreement for Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock in August 2015 amounting to $10,000,000 of gross proceeds to fund
expanding the business, potential mergers and acquisitions, and on-going operations.  We experienced larger losses as a result of
increased legal and professional fees beginning in September 2015 through December 31, 2015 related to the NASDAQ halt of trading
of our shares and delisting procedures, along with costs associated with defending claims against us and certain members of the
management team from the Discover Growth Fund and Class Action suits of various shareholders.

During the period from September through December 2015, the litigation matters did impair management’s ability to execute on
growth initiatives and consumed significant liquidity resources.  As a result, we continued to sustain net losses and relied on the
proceeds of the capital raises to supplement cash needs for operations.

As of December 31, 2015, we had a cash balance of $6,096,417, accounts receivable of $1,713,112 and $3,242,910 in current liabilities
as well as an immaterial amount of notes payable.  At the current cash consumption rate, we may need to consider additional funding
sources toward the end of fiscal 2016.  We are taking proactive measures to reduce operating expenses, drive growth in revenue and
expeditiously resolve any remaining legal matters.

The successful outcome of future activities cannot be determined at this time and there is no assurance that, if achieved, we will have
sufficient funds to execute our intended business plan or generate positive operating results.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments related to this uncertainty and as to the recoverability and
classification of asset carrying amounts or the amount and classification of liabilities that might result should we be unable to continue as
a going concern.
 
Capital Resources 

The following table summarizes total current assets, liabilities and working capital for the periods indicated:
 

  
For the Year Ended

December 31,     
  2015   2014   Increase/(Decrease)  
          
Current Assets  $ 8,716,815  $ 6,594,456  $ 2,122,359  
Current Liabilities  $ 3,242,910  $ 2,001,869  $ 1,241,041  
Working Capital  $ 5,473,905  $ 4,592,587  $ 881,318  

 
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, we had a cash balance of $6,096,417 and $4,888,797, respectively.
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In the first quarter of 2015, we acquired two businesses, Storycode and SwellPath, which acquisitions required cash payments, an
expansion of our office space in New York, which required an additional security deposit, and increased spending to position us for
future growth.  These costs were predominately funded by capital raised in private placement transactions during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2014.  In August 2015, we completed a Stock Purchase Agreement with a single institutional investor pursuant to which
we agreed to issue and sell 1,088 shares of our newly designated Redeemable Preferred Stock for total gross proceeds of $10.0
million.  We anticipate financing our future day-to-day operations and capital expenditures with cash flows from operations, and by
utilizing the remaining proceeds from such private placements and the proceeds received from the Stock Purchase Agreement.  We
will also continue to evaluate new sources of investments into the business.  We expect these sources of liquidity to cover cash needs
for working capital and general corporate purposes, including current liabilities, payment of contractual obligations, principal and
interest payments on our indebtedness, and capital expenditures.

We expect to incur additional expenses as a result of the on-going legal and the NASDAQ matters.  We also expect to continue to incur
additional expenses as a result of operating as a public company including costs to comply with rules and regulations applicative to
companies listed on a national securities exchange and costs related to compliance and reporting obligations pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the SEC.  In addition, as a public company, we expect to incur increased expenses related to additional insurance, investor
relations and other increases related to needs for additional human resources and professional services.

Liquidity

The following table sets forth a summary of our cash flows for the periods indicated:

Summary Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:
 

  Years Ended December 31,     
  2015   2014   Increase/(Decrease)  
          
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by
Operating Activities  $ (6,866,752)  $ 527,749  $ (7,394,501 )
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities  $ (1,011,433)  $ (61,570)  $ (949,863 )
Net Cash Provided by Financing
Activities  $ 9,085,805  $ 4,417,007  $ 4,668,798  

 
Cash (Used In) Provided by Operating Activities
 
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities consists of net (loss) income adjusted for certain non-cash items, including depreciation
and amortization, stock-based compensation, loss related to market adjustment of contingent consideration and derivative liabilities,
loss on debt extinguishment, as well as the effect of changes in operating assets and liabilities.
 
Cash used in operating activities was $6,866,752 for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to cash provided by operating activities
of $527,749 for the year ended December 31, 2014.  The change is principally attributable to net loss of $17,111,290 for the year ended
December 31, 2015 as compared to a net income of $470,565 for the year ended December 31, 2014, an increase of $396,664 in accounts
receivable due to the increase in sales and the timing of client payments which are monitored by us on a regular basis, an increase of
$105,799 in other receivables related to related to insurance proceeds recoverable, an increase in unbilled revenue of $429,665, an
increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets of $143,866, an increase of $545,008 in restricted cash (see Note 10 - Letter of Credit
and Restricted Cash), and an increase in deferred tax benefits of $459,512 due to the recording of a tax asset all offset by an increase of
$842,147 in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, an increase in deferred revenues of $61,832, an increase in deferred rent of $13,986,
an increase in stock based compensation of $1,424,672, an increase in the contingent consideration liability of $145,997, an increase in the
loss on our derivative liability of $9,292,720, and depreciation and amortization of $564,839 due to the purchase of computer equipment,
office expansion, and amortization related to acquired intangible assets during the year ended December 31, 2015.
 
Cash Used in Investing Activities
 
Cash used in investing activities primarily consists of cash paid to acquire businesses, the purchase of property and equipment and loans
to related parties.
 
Cash used in investing activities increased to $1,011,433 for the year ended December 31, 2015 from $61,570 for the year ended
December 31, 2014, and is primarily attributable to the purchase of property and equipment of $260,285, internally developed software
costs of $208,749, and consideration paid for our acquisitions of $542,399.  For the year ended December 31, 2014 cash used in
investing activities consisted of the repayment of loans to related parties of $46,433 and the purchase of property and equipment of
$15,137.
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We did make and will continue to make investments in our personnel, systems, corporate facilities, and information technology
infrastructure in 2015 and thereafter.  However, the amount of our capital expenditures has fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate on
an annual basis.
 
In addition, we expect to spend cash on acquisitions and other investments from time to time.  We anticipate that these acquisitions will
accelerate revenue growth, provide cost synergies, and generally enhance the breadth and depth of our expertise and service offerings,
but no assurances can be made that we will recognize any such benefits.
 
Cash Provided by Financing Activities
 
Cash provided by financing activities consists primarily of net proceeds from borrowings on lines of credit, proceeds from and
repayments of our factor agreement, proceeds from private placements of equity, the issuance and repayment of promissory notes, and
capital leases.

Cash provided by financing activities was $9,085,805 for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to cash provided by financing
activities of $4,417,007 for the year ended December 31, 2014.  The change is principally attributable to payments of $5,001,051 on our
factor agreement, $6,600 on notes payable and an $82,897 payment for capital leases.  These payments were offset by receipts of
$4,167,113 from our factor agreement payment, $623,642 from our short-term debt and the receipt of $9,385,598 from the issuance of
our preferred stock net of issuance costs.  During 2014, we received $4,798,553 from multiple private placement equity offerings to
accredited investors net of costs related to the raising of capital.  On September 29, 2014, we completed a private placement of
2,201,031 shares of our Common Stock from which we received $4,556,100 in gross proceeds.  On November 21, 2014, we completed a
private placement of 508,453 shares of our Common Stock from which we received $1,052,498 in gross proceeds.  For the year ended
December 31, 2014, we paid $11,320,036 and received $11,283,679 on our factor agreement and paid $261,600 on notes payable.
 
Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We present our operating results in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  We believe certain financial measures that are not prepared in
conformity with U.S. GAAP, such as EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA which are non -GAAP measures, provide users of our financial
statements with supplemental information that may be useful in evaluating our operating performance and liquidity.  We believe
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provide management and external users of our financial statements with supplemental information that
can be used to assess our performance from period to period and against performance of other companies in our industry, without regard
to financing methods, historical cost basis or capital structure.
 
We define EBITDA as earnings before interest expense net of interest income, income taxes, depreciation and amortization.  We define
Adjusted EBITDA as EBITDA, adjusted for stock based compensation, compensation expense of former principals of companies we
acquired, certain acquisition related expenses, one-time fees related to certain contingent considerations, legal matters, and NASDAQ
related proceedings fees. Loss on debt extinguishment, loss on derivative liability and other income items.
 
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered an alternative to net income, operating income, net cash provided by operating
activities or any other measure of operating performance or liquidity presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.  EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA exclude some, but not all, items that affect net income and net cash provided by operating activities, and the preparation of such
measures may vary among other companies.  Therefore, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures of other companies.
 
The following table presents reconciliations of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and Distributable Cash Flow to net income for each period
presented:
 
  For the Years Ended  

  
December 31,

2015   
December 31,

2014  
       
Net loss  $ (17,111,290)  $ 470,565 
Interest Expense   281,411   147,069 
Income tax benefit   (451,858)   (161,255)
Depreciation and Amortization   564,839   82,342 
EBITDA  $ (16,716,898)  $ 538,721 
         

        
Stock Based Compensation to Employees and Board of Directors   1,424,672   -  
Compensation Expense of Former Principals of Acquired Companies   250,000   -  

Acquisition Related Expenses
  169,191   -  

One-Time Professional and Legal Fees   911,456   -  
Loss on Debt Extinguishment   -    57,502 
Loss on Derivative Liability   9,292,720   -  
Other income   (5,619)   (20,000)
Adjusted EBITDA  $ (4,674,478)  $ 576,223 
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Management’s decision to use non-GAAP financial for financial and operational decision-making purposes and as a means to evaluate
period-to-period comparisons.  We believe that these non-GAAP financial measures provide useful information about our operating
results, enhance the overall understanding of past financial performance and future prospects and allow for greater transparency with
respect to key metrics used by our management in its financial and operational decision making.  In addition, these non-GAAP financial
align 6D Global’s performance closer in comparison to competitors’ operating results.

We have excluded stock-based compensation expense from our non-GAAP financial measures because it is non-cash in nature and
excluding this expense provides meaningful supplemental information regarding our operational performance.  In particular, because of
varying available valuation methodologies, subjective assumptions and the variety of award types that companies can use under the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 718, we believe that
providing non-GAAP financial measures that exclude this expense allows investors the ability to make more meaningful comparisons
between our operating results and those of other companies.  Further, stock-based compensation expense has been and will continue to
be for the foreseeable future a significant recurring expense in our business and an important part of the compensation provided to our
employees.  The non-GAAP financial measures are meant to supplement and be viewed in conjunction with U.S. GAAP financial
measures.

We have excluded the adjustments of the fair value of the derivative liability, compensation expense related to the principal
shareholders of the acquired companies, and acquisition related expenses since these are nonrecurring and do not clearly represent our
financial performance.  The extraordinary and nonrecurring nature of the One-Time Professional and Legal expenses are unrelated to
concurrent financial and operational performance.  In an effort to provide greater transparency of our operating expenses these have been
excluded from our non-GAAP results.
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 
We do not have any outstanding off-balance sheet guarantees, interest rate swap transactions or foreign currency forward
contracts.  Furthermore, we do not have any retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity that serves as
credit, liquidity or market risk support to such entity.  We do not have any variable interest in an unconsolidated entity that provides
financing, liquidity, market risk or credit support to us or that engages in leasing, hedging or research and development services with us.
 
Contractual Obligations

The following table lists our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2015:

Contractual
Obligations  Total   2016   2017   2018   2019   

2020
  Thereafter  

                      
Capital Lease
Obligations  $ 314,709  $ 129,857  $ 114,066  $ 70,786  $ -  $ -  $ - 
Notes payable   53,420   6,600   6,600   6,600   6,600   6,600   20,420 
Operating Lease
Obligations   5,270,662   1,148,759   1,117,905   968,639   792,846   476,112   766,401 
Total  $ 5,638,791  $ 1,285,216  $ 1,238,571  $ 1,046,025  $ 799,446  $ 482,712  $ 786,821 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) ASU No.
2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements-Going Concern-Disclosures of Uncertainties about an entity’s Ability to Continue as a
Going Concern.  ASU 2014-15 provides new guidance related to management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial
doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern by incorporating and expanding upon certain principles that are currently
in U.S. auditing standards and to provide related footnote disclosures. This new guidance is effective for the annual period ending after
December 15, 2016, and for annual periods and interim periods thereafter. We do not expect the adoption of ASU 2014-15 to have a
significant impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, “Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.”  ASU 2015-03 requires debt
issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the associated debt liability.  ASU 2015-03 is effective for
interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.  The new guidance will be applied on a retrospective basis
and early adoption is permitted.  We do not expect the adoption of ASU 2015-03 to have a significant impact on the Company's
consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
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In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, “Income Taxes (Topic 740) – Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes.” To
simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes, the amendments in this Update require that deferred tax liabilities and assets be
classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position.  The amendments in this Update apply to all entities that present a
classified statement of financial position.  The current requirement that deferred tax liabilities and assets of a tax-paying component of an
entity be offset and presented as a single amount is not affected by the amendments in this Update.  For public business entities, the
amendments in this Update are effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and
interim periods within those annual periods.  For all other entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for financial statements
issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15,
2018.  Earlier application is permitted for all entities as of the beginning of an interim or annual reporting period.  The amendments in this
Update may be applied either prospectively to all deferred tax liabilities and assets or retrospectively to all periods presented.  If an entity
applies the guidance prospectively, the entity should disclose in the first interim and first annual period of change, the nature of and
reason for the change in accounting principle and a statement that prior periods were not retrospectively adjusted.  If an entity applies the
guidance retrospectively, the entity should disclose in the first interim and first annual period of change the nature of and reason for the
change in accounting principle and quantitative information about the effects of the accounting change on prior periods.  We do not
expect the adoption of ASU 2015-17 to have a significant impact on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash
flows.
 
In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01 – “Financial Instruments – Overall (Subtopic 825-10) – Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.”  ASU 2016-01, among other changes, requires equity investments (except those accounted
for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee) to be measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in net income.  This Update also simplifies the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily
determinable fair values by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairment.  The amendments in ASU 2016-01 will become
effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal
years.  We are currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of ASU 2016-01 will have on our consolidated results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.
 
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 – “Leases (Topic 842).” Under ASU 2016-02, entities will be required to recognize of
lease asset and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases.  Among other changes in accounting for leases, a
lessee should recognize in the statement of financial position a liability to make lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term.  When measuring assets and liabilities arising from a lease, a lessee
(and a lessor) should include payments to be made in optional periods only if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease.  Similarly, optional payments to purchase the underlying asset should
be included in the measurement of lease assets and lease liabilities only if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that purchase option. 
The amendments in ASU 2016-02 will become effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods
with those fiscal years, for public business entities.  We are currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of ASU 2016-02 will have on
our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
 
In March 2016, the FASB issued ASC 2016-09 – “Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718) – Improvements to Employee Share-
based Payment Accounting.”  The areas for simplification in this Update involve several aspects of the accounting for share-based
payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on
the statement of cash flows.  In addition to these simplifications, the amendments eliminate the guidance in Topic 718 that was
indefinitely deferred shortly after the issuance of FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment.  This should not result
in a change in practice because the guidance that is being superseded was never effective.  The amendments in ASC 2016-09 will become
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods.  Early adoption is permitted
for any entity in any interim or annual period. If an entity early adopts the amendments in an interim period, any adjustments should be
reflected as of the beginning of the fiscal year that includes that interim period.  An entity that elects early adoption must adopt all of the
amendments in the same period.  We are currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of ASU 2016-09 will have on our consolidated
results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In April 2016 the FASB issued ASC 2016-10 – “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) - Identifying Performance
Obligations and Licensing.”  The core principle of the guidance in Topic 606 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.  To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply the following steps:

1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer.
2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract.
3. Determine the transaction price.
4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
5. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.
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The amendments in this Update do not change the core principle of the guidance in Topic 606. Rather, the amendments in this Update
clarify the following two aspects of Topic 606: identifying performance obligations and the licensing implementation guidance, while
retaining the related principles for those areas.  The amendments in this Update affect the guidance in Accounting Standards Update
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which is not yet effective.  The effective date and transition requirements
for the amendments in this Update are the same as the effective date and transition requirements in Topic 606 (and any other Topic
amended by Update 2014-09).  Accounting Standards Update 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of
the Effective Date, defers the effective date of Update 2014-09 by one year.  We are currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of
ASU 2016-10 will have on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2014, 6D Global had a loan outstanding to its largest stockholder with a loan balance of $456,563
was eliminated as we treated the loan balance as a stockholder distribution.  No amounts were due from the related party at December 31,
2015 or 2014.

Item 7A. – Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not applicable

Item 8. – Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements of 6D Global and its subsidiaries specified by this Item 8 together with the report thereon of
SingerLewak LLP, are presented following Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
 
Item 9. – Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
 
On March 17, 2016, BDO USA, LLP resigned as the auditors to the Company.  On April 18, 2016, The Company engaged
SingerLewak LLP as the Company’s new independent registered public accounting firm. SingerLewak LLP conducted the audit for
years ending December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2015.

On October 22, 2014, 6D Global Technologies, Inc., with the approval of the Audit Committee of the Board, engaged BDO USA,
LLP (“BDO”) as our new independent registered public accounting firm.
 
Marcum LLP (“Marcum”) had been previously engaged, at separate times from Li and Company, PC (“Li & Co.”), as the
independent accounting firm of Six Dimensions while it was a privately-held company and the acquirer, for accounting purposes,
under the Exchange.  On October 24, 2014, Six Dimensions notified and confirmed with Marcum that it had been dismissed as the
independent accounting firm of Six Dimensions.  Marcum was never engaged as 6D Global’s independent registered public
accounting firm at any time nor had Marcum had not issued any financial reports related to 6D Global prior to its dismissal.

Li & Co. had been previously engaged, at separate times from Marcum, as the independent accounting firm of Six Dimensions while
it was a privately-held company and the acquirer, for accounting purposes, under the Exchange.  On October 24, 2014 Six
Dimensions notified Li & Co. that it had been dismissed as the independent accounting firm of Six Dimensions.  Li & Co. was not
engaged as 6D Global’s independent registered public accounting firm at any time.
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Item 9A. – Controls and Procedures
 
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the
effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as of March 31, 2016. Based on that evaluation and the material weaknesses
described below, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
were not effective such that the information relating to our company required to be disclosed in our Securities and Exchange
Commission reports (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms and
(ii) is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure as a result of material weaknesses in our disclosure controls and procedures. The material
weaknesses relate to our inability to timely file our reports and other information with the SEC as required under Section 13 of the
Exchange Act, together with material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting. Material weaknesses in our internal
control over financial reporting as discussed below are (i) ineffectiveness of the Board of Directors, (ii) our lack of the quantity of
resources and personnel with an appropriate level of knowledge and experience in the application of U.S. GAAP commensurate with our
financial reporting requirements, and (iii) our lack of information technology (“IT”) governance, physical safeguards and access to
programs and data.  To remediate the material weaknesses in disclosure controls and procedures, we plan to hire additional experienced
accounting and other personnel to assist with filings and financial record keeping and to take additional steps to improve our financial
reporting systems and implement new policies, procedures and controls.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal controls over financial reporting as defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act.  The Company’s internal controls over financial reporting are a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”).

Because of their inherent limitations, internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements in a timely
manner.  Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Company’s Chief
Financial Officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting based on
the framework described in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Commission of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission, as revised in 2013.  Based on that evaluation, management has concluded that the Company did not maintain
effective internal control over financial reporting as of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 due to the existence of material
weaknesses in the internal control over financial reporting described below.

Material Weaknesses

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal controls over financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

Management has determined that we did not maintain effective internal controls over financial reporting as of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2015 due to the existence of the following material weaknesses identified by management:
 
Ineffective Board of Directors

We did not appear to have an effective Board of Directors that demonstrates independence from management and exercises oversight
responsibility and has the ability to discharge its responsibilities.  The following areas related to tone at the top are contributing factors
to the weaknesses described in the control environment that require remediation:

· We did not maintain appropriate controls relating to the issuance of stock grants, with a grant date of September 20, 2014,
by the CEO which caused misstatements in our 2015 consolidated statements of operations. The lack of adequate controls
over the granting of stock, the related documentation and recording of expense in the proper period constitute a material
weakness which resulted in material errors in the financial statements.

· We did not maintain appropriate governance and controls surrounding the CEO consulting with various advisors not
compensated by the Company. The lack of adequate controls surrounding review of the CEO's consultations with outside
advisors constitutes a material weakness.
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Remediation efforts to address the material weakness relating to ineffective Board of Directors
 
During 2016, management has replaced exiting board members in a timely fashion with knowledgeable replacements to further
enhance corporate governance.  In addition, management has implemented additional controls during 2016 to ensure that all stock
compensation programs are to be approved by the Board of Directors, in which limits of authority around grants are established and
appropriately carried out by management.

Insufficient number of personnel with an appropriate level of knowledge and experience in the application of U.S. GAAP

We did not maintain an effective control environment, as evidenced by: (i) an insufficient number of personnel appropriately qualified
to perform execution and monitoring activities and (ii) an insufficient number of personnel with an appropriate level of GAAP
knowledge and experience and ongoing training in the application of GAAP commensurate with external financial reporting
requirements.  As a result, there were adjustments to our financial statements were identified by our auditors. These findings and
adjustments then resulted in our inability to prepare and timely file the required 2015 10-K filing with the SEC. 

Remediation efforts to address the material weakness relating to insufficient number of personnel with an appropriate level of
knowledge and experience in the application of U.S. GAAP

Management intends to hire additional accounting support to further enhance the accounting review process as well as engage with
third-party consultants.  Management will look to provide existing staff with additional training, as deemed necessary by the annual
review process.

Lack of IT governance, physical safeguards and access to programs/data

We have inadequate design of IT general and application controls that could prevent the information systems from providing complete
and accurate information consistent with financial reporting objectives and current needs.  For a sufficient period of time during the
reporting period, we had decentralized systems, inadequate IT support staff, and adequate records and storage retention.

Remediation efforts to address the material weakness relating to lack of IT governance, physical safeguards and access to
programs/data

In late 2015, management hired an IT Director to oversee the department. In addition, we are looking at new accounting systems,
which will replace the existing accounting system and better support our control environment.  Many new IT policies and procedures
have been adopted by the Company in 2016, which include security, change and patch management and back-up procedures.  In
addition, network infrastructure systems have been safeguarded and a help desk system has been implemented to monitor significant
events in 2015.

The effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015 has been audited by SingerLewak LLP, the
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included in this Annual Report on Form
10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
6D Global Technologies, Inc.
New York, New York

We have audited 6D Global Technologies, Inc. 's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in 2013. 6D Global Technologies, Inc.’ s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying
Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (a) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (c) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis. The following material weaknesses have been identified and included in management's assessment: 1) The
absence of an effective Board of Directors which demonstrates independence from management, 2) an insufficient number of personnel
with an appropriate level of knowledge and experience in the application of U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and 3) lack
of Information Technology governance.  These material weaknesses were considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of
audit tests applied in our audit of the 2015 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated July 8,
2016, on those consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the material weaknesses described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control
criteria, 6D Global Technologies, Inc.  has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015,
based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission in 2013.
 
We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
consolidated financial statements of 6D Global Technologies, Inc. and our report dated July 8, 2016, expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ SingerLewak LLP
Los Angeles, California
July 8, 2016
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Item 9B. – Other Information

None
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PART III

Item 10. – Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Directors and Executive Officers

Our directors and executive officers and their respective ages, positions, and biographical information are set forth below.  Our bylaws
require not less than three independent directors and our current directors serve until our next annual meeting or until each is replaced by
a qualified director.  There are no existing family relationships between our executive officers or directors.

Name  Age  Position with the Company  Director Term
Tejune Kang  40  Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer  Since September 2014
Mark Szynkowski  48  Chief Financial Officer  Since December 2014
Bradley Timchuk  51  President and Chief Operations Officer  Since April 2016
Thomas J. Iaciofano  40  Vice President  Since May 2016
Piotr A. Chrzaszcz  52  Director  Since October 2015
Michael Bannout  57  Director  Since October 2015
Sarah Michael  29  Director  Since April 2016

Tejune Kang, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kang has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Six Dimensions, the predecessor company to 6D Global, since the Company’s
founding in 2004, and was appointed chairman of the Board of Directors of 6D Global in September 2014.  Before founding Six
Dimensions, Mr. Kang was a principal of Kang Management Group, a commercial real estate developer in Nevada, until 2009 when it
was closed down due to the global financial crisis that negatively affected the real estate markets in the West Coast.  In early 2010, Mr.
Kang filed a bankruptcy petition under Chapter 7 of Title 11 of the United States Code in connection with his personal guarantee of land
projects and the inability to refinance related indebtedness.  Since then, Mr. Kang has devoted his efforts to growing Six Dimensions. 
Prior to Kang Management Group, Mr. Kang was an engineer for five years with PeopleSoft (now Oracle Corporation). While at
PeopleSoft, Mr. Kang managed Human Resources, Financial, Supply Chain, and Enterprise Performance Management software
implementations for Fortune 500 companies including Boeing, Apple, AT&T, HP. Mr. Kang is a member of Harvard Business School’s
Owner President/Management Program (OPM 50), Inc. Business Owners Council (IBOC), Vistage, Entrepreneurs’ Organization (EO),
Alliance of CEOs, National Association of Asian American Professionals (NAAAP ) and Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT)
Key Executive Program and Entrepreneurial Masters Program (EO).  Mr. Kang graduated from The University of California, Davis with
a Bachelor of Science degree in Managerial Economics.
 
Mark Szynkowski, Chief Financial Officer

Prior to joining the Company, from December 2005 to July 2014, Mr. Szynkowski was Vice President of Finance for Epiq Systems, a
provider of integrated technology products and services for the legal profession.  Prior to his tenure at Epiq Systems, Mr. Szynkowski
served as Chief Financial Officer and Controller for multiple high-growth organizations and began his career with Ernst & Young.  Mr.
Szynkowski graduated from Alfred University with a Bachelor degree in Accounting.

Bradley Timchuk, President and Chief Operations Officer

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Timchuk was employed by TigerLogic Corporation, and served as its Chief Executive Officer from
September 2014 until March 2015, in which role he was responsible for TigerLogic’s restructuring, strategic partnerships, and growth
strategy.  Prior to that, Mr. Timchuk served as Executive Vice President of Worldwide Sales and Marketing at TouchCommerce, Inc., an
online customer engagements solution company, from May 2012 through November 2013, and in various capacities at Fuel Industries,
Inc., a private youth engagement agency, beginning in March 2010, including as Executive Vice President, Chief Executive Officer from
November 2010 through September 2011, and in an advisory capacity through April 2012.  Mr. Timchuk has also served as Senior Vice
President of Sales and Business Development for eFusion, Inc. Mr. Timchuk attended Mohawk College in Canada, where he studied
Computer Electronics Technology.
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Thomas J. Iaciofano, Vice President

Mr. Iaciofano is responsible for ensuring overall revenue and margin growth of 6D Global CMS segment, strategic acquisitions, product
development, partnerships, and operations.  Prior to being named to his current position Mr. Iaciofano is responsible for ensuring overall
revenue and margin growth of 6D Global CMS segment, strategic acquisitions, product development, partnerships, and operations.  Prior
to being named to his current position Mr. Iaciofano was Director of the Content Management System (CMS) and Digital Asset
Management (DAM) practice.  His team consists of solution delivery managers, technical architects, development leads, engineers, and
subject matter experts.  He is also responsible for the opening and managing of 6D Labs, the Company’s center of excellence focused on
solution delivery and support for technology implementations.  Mr. Iaciofano has over 13 years of experience in web and internet-based
solution delivery as well as leading enterprise-level web-based content management systems. Prior to joining Six Dimensions in 2011, he
held various leadership roles in web content management for higher education, commercial and the non-profit space.

Piotr A. Chrzaszcz, Director

Mr. Chrzaszcz has served as the CEO of Commercial Masterminds, Inc., a commercial real estate investment and advisory firm from
2007-2012 and holds the advanced real estate investor designation, Certified Commercial Investment Member (CCIM).  Mr. Chrzaszcz
was an active leader in the CCIM community and a guest lecturer for the UC Berkeley Extension, Personal Financial Planning Program
discussing due diligence in commercial real estate.  Mr. Chrzaszcz is currently a Vice President for a local California bank working as
their Corporate Real Estate Manager and an active investor trading his own portfolio.  Mr. Chrzaszcz is an Air Force veteran and holds a
Bachelor of Science in Aerospace Engineering from Boston University.  Mr. Chrzaszcz’s leadership experience gained while in
executive management and with his investment experience led the Board of Directors to conclude that Mr. Chrzaszcz should serve as a
director of the Company.

Michael Bannout, Director

Mr. Bannout has served as the CEO and President of M. London Group, Inc. for the past 25 years, a privately owned men’s and women’s
fashion accessories and apparel company, which he started in New York City as a small cut and sew manufacturing company and built
into a multi-million dollar enterprise with world-wide distribution.  Mr. Bannout attended Brooklyn College in Brooklyn, NY.  Mr.
Bannout’s substantial management, executive, and leadership experience gained from his extended service as CEO and President of his
own company led the Board of Directors to conclude that Mr. Bannout should serve as a director of the Company.

Sarah Michael, Director

Ms. Michael is currently a Project Director of Hospitality House where she administers the financial analysis of private equity firms,
REITs, hotel brands, and real estate owners and developers to reduce expenses and improve company efficiencies.  She provides
conceptual strategy, operational expertise, financial underwriting, landlord representation and operator sourcing.  Formerly, Ms. Michael
worked in the Commercial Real Estate Team at Nest Seekers International and served as the Vice President of healtheo360, an online
healthcare social media company.  Ms. Michael holds a Bachelor of Science in Psychology from St. John’s University.  Ms. Michael’s
strategic, operational, and financial underwriting experience led the Board of Directors to conclude that Ms. Michael should serve as a
director of the Company.

Corporate Governance

Board Leadership Structure and Risk Oversight

The Board oversees the Company’s management in the competent and ethical operation of the Company, and assures that the long-term
interests of the stockholders are being served.

Our Chairman of the Board is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.  We believe that by having this combined position, our
Chief Executive Officer serves as a bridge between management and the Board, ensuring that both act with a common purpose. In
addition, we believe that the combined position facilitates our focus on both long and short term strategies.  Further, we believe that the
advantages of having a Chief Executive Officer with extensive knowledge of the Company, as opposed to a relatively less informed
independent Chairman, outweigh potential disadvantages.  Additionally, we believe that our majority of independent directors provide
sufficient independent oversight of our management.  We do not have a lead independent director.
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We administer our risk oversight function through our Audit Committee as well as through our Board as a whole.  Our Audit Committee
is empowered to appoint and oversee our independent registered public accounting firm, monitor the integrity of our financial reporting
processes and systems of internal controls and provides an avenue of communication among our independent auditors, management, and
our Board.

Board Committees

The Board has a standing Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (the
“Nominating Committee”).  The Board has determined that the Chairs and all committee members are independent under applicable
NASDAQ and SEC rules for committee memberships.  The members of the committees are shown in the table below.

Director  
Audit

Committee   
Compensation

Committee   
Nominating
Committee  

Tejune Kang  --   --   --  
Sarah Michael  Chair   Member   Member  
Piotr A. Chrzaszcz  Member   Member   Chair  
Michael Bannout  Member   Chair   Member  

 
The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s corporate accounting, financial reporting practices, audits of financial
statements, and the quality and integrity of the Company’s financial statements and reports.  In addition, the Audit Committee oversees
the qualifications, independence and performance of the Company’s independent auditors.  In furtherance of these responsibilities, the
Audit Committee’s duties include the following: evaluating the performance and assessing the qualifications of the independent auditors;
determining and approving the engagement of the independent auditors to perform audit, reviewing and attesting to services and
performing any proposed permissible non-audit services; evaluating employment by the Company of individuals formerly employed by
the independent auditors and engaged on the Company’s account and any conflicts or disagreements between the independent auditors
and management regarding financial reporting, accounting practices or policies; discussing with management and the independent
auditors the results of the annual audit; reviewing the financial statements proposed to be included in the Company’s annual or transition
report on Form 10-K; discussing with management and the independent auditors the results of the auditors’ review of the Company’s
quarterly financial statements; conferring with management and the independent auditors regarding the scope, adequacy and effectiveness
of internal auditing and financial reporting controls and procedures; and establishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of
complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting control and auditing matters and the confidential and anonymous submission by
employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

The Compensation Committee is responsible primarily for reviewing the policies, practices and procedures relating to the compensation
of the officers and other managerial employees and the establishment and administration of employee benefit plans. It advises and consults
with the officers of the Company as may be requested regarding managerial personnel policies.  The Compensation Committee also has
such additional powers as may be conferred upon it from time to time by the Board.

The Nominating Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in identifying individuals qualified to become members of the Board
and executive officers of the Company; selecting, or recommending that the Board select, director nominees for election as directors by
the stockholders of the Company; developing and recommending to the Board a set of effective governance policies and procedures
applicable to the Company; leading the Board in its annual review of the Board’s performance; recommending to the Board director
nominees for each committee; making recommendations regarding committee purpose, structure and operations; and overseeing and
approving a managing continuity planning process.  During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, there were no changes to the
procedures by which holders of our common stock may recommend nominees to the Board.

The Audit Committee, Compensation Committee, and Nominating Committee operate under written charters adopted by the Board.
Copies of these charters are available at http://ir.6dglobal.com/governance-docs.

Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Board has determined that Sarah Michael qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” as defined under applicable SEC rules,
and that all members of the Audit Committee meet the additional criteria for independence of audit committee members set forth in Rule
10A-3(b)(1) under the Exchange Act.
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Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s officers and directors, and persons who own more than ten percent of a
registered class of the Company’s equity securities, to file reports of securities ownership and changes in such ownership with the SEC. 
Officers, directors and greater than ten percent stockholders also are required by SEC rules to furnish the Company with copies of all
Section 16(a) forms they file.

Based solely upon a review of the copies of such forms furnished to the Company, and on written representations from the reporting
persons, the Company believes that all officers, directors and beneficial owners of more than 10% of our common stock have filed their
initial statements of ownership on Form 3 on a timely basis, and the officers, directors and beneficial owners of more than 10% of our
common stock have also filed the required Forms 4 or 5 on a timely basis, with the exception of the following:

Name  
Number of late

Reports   
Transactions not
timely reported   

Known failures to
file a required

form  
Adam Hartung  1   1   0  
TJ Iaciofano  1   1   0  
Tejune Kang  1   1   0  
Matthew Sullivan  1   1   0  
Mark Szynkowski  1   1   0  

Code of Ethics

The Company has a code of business conduct and ethics (the “Code of Ethics”) that applies to all employees, including the Company’s
principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and principal accounting officer, as well as to the Board.  The code is available at
http://ir.6dglobal.com/governance-docs.  The Company intends to disclose any changes in, or waivers from, this code by posting such
information on the same website or by filing a Form 8-K.
 
Item 11. – Executive Compensation

The following table presents a summary of the compensation paid to our executive officers during the fiscal years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014.  Except as listed below, there were no bonuses, other annual compensation, restricted stock awards or stock options or any
other compensation paid to the named executive officers.
 

Name and principal
position  Year   

Salary
($)   

Bonus
($)   

Stock
awards

($)   

Option
awards

($)   

Nonequity
incentive

plan
compensation

($)   

Nonqualified
deferred

compensation
earnings

($)   

All other
compensation

($)   
Total

($)  
Tejune Kang
Chief Executive
Officer and
Chairman of the
Board  

2015
2014    

85,500
84,000    

-
-    

-
-    

172,350
-    

-
-    

-
-    

64,700
50,000    

322,550
134,000 

                                    
Mark Szynkowski
Chief Financial
Officer  

2015
2014    

185,434
12,570    

-
-    

-
-    

191,500
-    

-
-    

-
-    

-
-    

376,934
12,570  

                                    
Bradley Timchuk (2)
President and Chief
Operations Officer  

2015
2014    

-
-    

-
-    

-
-    

-
-    

-
-    

-
-    

-
-    

-
-  

                                    
Thomas Iaciofano
Executive Vice
President  

2015
2014    

146,684
136,250   

-
37,000    

158,700
-    

76,600
-    

-
-    

-
-    

-
-    

381,984
173,250 

                                    
Matthew Sullivan
Executive Vice
President (1)  

2015
2014    

132,693
107,900   

-
12,500    

158,700
-    

95,750
-    

-
-    

-
-    

-
80,000    

387,143
200,400 

(1) Matthew Sullivan Served as Executive Vice President until July, 2015.
(2) Bradley Timchuk was appointed as President and Chief Operations Officer effective on May 1st, 2016
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The Company offers competitive compensation packages to attract and retain executives who manage the day-to-day business of the
Company while fostering the further growth of the Company.  These compensation packages include a base salary and other incentives,
such as cash bonuses and stock options, determined on a case-by-case basis.  In the case of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer,
Tejune Kang, and its former Executive Vice President, Matthew Sullivan, this program is tied to the Company’s performance.  These
executives’ bonus payments vary based on meeting (or exceeding) both a revenue goal and a profitability margin.  Under this system, if
only minimum criteria are met, the executive does not receive a bonus.  Conversely, should the executive exceed the revenue expectations
and profitability margin, then he would be entitled to receive a cash bonus and a stock option grant.  By design, this compensation plan
rewards executives only for exceeding expectations.  The amounts payable in both instances have accelerators for different target points. 
For example, revenue of $20,000,000 would equate to no bonus payment or stock option grant, while achieving a revenue target of
$20,000,001 with a 5% profit margin would result in a cash bonus and the issuance of stock options.  In total, there are three accelerators,
with the maximum constituting a revenue target of $40,000,001+ and a profitability margin of 10%.  Profit is defined as EBIT, and no
bonus is paid or stock option granted until the completion of the year-end financial audit.  Prior to the Company going public, Tejune
Kang, the Company’s CEO, Chairman and significant stockholder, transferred some of his stock to long-term employees, including
Matthew Sullivan and Thomas Iaciofano, which transfer vested over 4 years so long as each recipient remained an employee.  For
accounting purposes these stock transfers by Tejune Kang were recorded as compensation expenses of the Company.  During a portion of
2014, Matthew Sullivan was compensated by the Company as an independent contractor through a third party corporation. 
CEO/Chairman Tejune Kang, as part of his compensation agreement received an allowance for certain personal expenses, which was
valued at $64,700, in addition to his salary of $85,500. On March 17, 2016, Mr. Kang’s employment agreement was amended to eliminate
the allowance and reflect a base salary of $220,000 per year.  The Company’s officers participate in the normal employee compensation
strategy: a base salary, a year-end bonus and a stock option grant, as governed by the Company’s 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan.

Employment Agreements

Mr. Kang, Mr. Szynkowski, and Mr. Timchuk are the only executive employees that currently have employment agreements with the
Company.

Mr. Kang’s employment agreement was amended on March 17, 2016.  Under the amended employment agreement, Mr. Kang’s total
compensation consists of a base salary of $220,000 (without any allowance or reimbursement of personal expenses), with an opportunity
for a performance bonus based upon a combination of Company revenue and profitability targets.  If Mr. Kang’s employment is
terminated for cause by the Company or if he terminates his employment without good reason, he will be entitled to receive his accrued
base salary (and benefits, if Mr. Kang terminates without good reason), but will forfeit all stock options (whether vested or unvested).  If
Mr. Kang’s employment is terminated without cause by the Company, if he terminates his employment with good reason, or if he
terminates his employment in connection with a Change in Control, he will be entitled to a $55,000 lump sum payment and all of his
unvested stock options will immediately vest.

Mr. Szynkowski was an at-will employee and did not have a written employment agreement with the Company during 2015.  On January
1, 2016, the Company entered into a written employment agreement with Mr. Szynkowski.  The employment agreement has a two-year
term and provides for base compensation of $215,000, with an opportunity for a bonus of up to $21,500 based upon a combination of
Company revenue and profitability targets.  If Mr. Szynkowski’s employment is terminated for cause by the Company, or if he terminates
his employment without good reason, then he will be entitled to receive his accrued base salary through the date of termination (and
benefits, if Mr. Szynkowski terminates without good reason), but will forfeit all stock options (whether vested or unvested).  If Mr.
Szynkowski’s employment is terminated without cause by the Company, if he terminates his employment with good reason, or if his
employment is terminated in connection with a change of control of the Company, he will be entitled to a $53,750 lump sum payment and
all of his unvested stock options will immediately vest.

Mr. Timchuk entered into a written employment agreement with the Company on May 1, 2016, which has a two-year term and provides
him with an annual base salary of $240,000 and the opportunity for a performance and a discretionary bonus.  In addition, pursuant to the
employment agreement, the Company agreed to issue Mr. Timchuk, on May 1, 2016, stock options to purchase 200,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock, to vest annually in five equal installments.  If Mr. Timchuk’s employment is terminated for cause by the
Company or if he terminates his employment without good reason, then he will be entitled to receive his accrued base salary through the
date of termination (and benefits, if Mr. Timchuk terminates without good reason), but will forfeit all stock options (whether vested or
unvested).  If Mr. Timchuk’s employment is terminated without cause by the Company, or upon a change in control, or if Mr. Timchuk
resigns for good reason, Mr. Timchuk is entitled to a severance payment of $60,000 and any unvested stock options will terminate and be
null and void (except in the case of a Change in Control, in which case all granted but unvested stock options shall immediately vest).
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

The following table sets forth information regarding equity awards held by our named executive officers as of December 31, 2015.

  Option Awards   Stock Awards  

Name  

Number of
Securities

underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Exercisable   

Number of
Securities

underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)

Unexercisable  

Equity
incentive

plan
awards:

Number of
securities

underlying
unexercised

unearned
options (#)   

Option
Exercise

Price
($/Sh)   

Option
Expiration

Date   

Number
of

shares or
units of
stock
that

have not
vested

(#)   

Market
value of

shares or
units of
stock
that

have not
vested

($)   

Equity
incentive

plan
awards:

Number of
unearned

shares,
units or

other
rights

that have
not vested

(#)   

Equity
incentive

plan
awards:

Market or
payout
value

of
unearned

shares,
units

or other
rights

that have
not

vested ($)  
Tejune
Kang   -    45,000(3)  -   $ 8.28  

April 1,
2025   -   $ -   -    -  

Mark
Szynkowski   -    50,000(3)  -   $ 8.28  

April 1,
2025   -   $ -   -    -  

Bradley
Timchuk (1)  -    -    -    -    -    -   $ -   -    -  
Thomas
Iaciofano   -    20,000(3)  -   $ 8.28  

April 1,
2025   150,000  $ 435,000   -    -  

Matthew
Sullivan (2)   -    -    -    -    -    -   $ -   -    -  

(1) Bradley Timchuk began serving as President and Chief Operations Officer on May 1, 2016.
(2) Matthew Sullivan served as Executive Vice President until July, 2015 upon which options and future stock grants were

forfeited.
(3) Stock options granted April 1, 2015 have a yearly vesting schedule over a 5-year period.

Compensation of Directors

Name  

Fees
earned or

paid in
cash ($)   

Stock
awards ($)   

Option
awards ($)   

Non-equity
incentive plan
compensation

($)   

Nonqualified
deferred

compensation
earnings ($)   

All other
compensation

($)   
Total

($)  
Adam Hartung
(1)   37,500   -    73,100   -    -    -    110,600 
David S.
Kaufman (2)   15,000   -    73,100   -    -    -    88,100 
Terry McEwen
(3)   15,000   -    73,100   -    -    -    88,100 
Anubhav Saxena
(4)   15,000   -    73,100   -    -    -    88,100 
Piotr A.
Chrzaszcz (5)   14,500   -    21,400   -    -    -    35,900 
Michael Bannout
(6)   14,500   -    21,400   -    -    -    35,900 

(1) Adam Hartung served as a Director until April, 2016.
(2) David S. Kaufman served as a Director until October, 2015.
(3) Terry McEwen served as a director until November, 2015.
(4) Anubhav Saxena served as a director until October, 2015.
(5) Piotr A. Chrzaszcz began serving as a director on October 24, 2015.
(6) Michael Bannout began serving as a director on October 27, 2015.

The Company has agreed to compensate its independent directors $5,000 for each full quarter for which they serve and actively
participate in Board activities, such as attending meetings of the Board and committees of the Board.  For the fourth quarter of 2015 and
forward, the Company agreed to compensate its independent directors $10,000 for director fee, $2,500 fee for being a chairman of the
Nominating and Compensation Committee, $3,750 for Chairman of the Audit Committee, and $1,000 fee for being a member of each
committee for each full quarter for which they serve and actively participate in Board and Committee activities.  Directors are also eligible
to receive stock options as granted.  As discussed in more detail below under the heading “Equity Compensation Plan,” in February 2015,
the Company and its stockholders adopted an Omnibus Compensation Plan.
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During 2015 the Board held 4 meetings in person, 15 telephonic meetings and acted by written consent 1 time. One director attended in
person or telephonically or by written consent 36% of all board and applicable meetings during the time they were active board members.
All other directors attended in persons, telephonically or by written consent at least 75% of all board and applicable meetings during the
time they are active board members.

Arrangements or Understandings

There was no arrangement or understanding between any of our directors and any other person pursuant to which any director was to be
selected as a director.

Item 12. – Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The following table shows certain information as of June 30, 2016 with respect to the beneficial ownership of the Company’s common
stock by: (i) each person the Company believes beneficially holds more than 5% of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common
stock based solely on the Company’s review of SEC filings; (ii) each director; (iii) each named executive officer; and (iv) all directors and
executive officers as a group. Unless otherwise noted below, the address of each beneficial owner listed in the table is c/o 6D Global
Technologies, Inc., 17 State Street, Suite 2550, New York, NY 10004.

We have determined beneficial ownership in accordance with the rules of the SEC. Except as indicated by the footnotes below, we
believe, based on the information furnished to us, that the persons and entities named in the table below have sole voting and investment
power with respect to all shares of common stock that they beneficially own, subject to applicable community property laws.

Applicable percentage ownership is based on 78,247,864 shares of Common Stock outstanding at June 30, 2016.  In computing the
number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that person, we deemed outstanding
shares of common stock subject to options or warrants held by that person that are currently exercisable or exercisable within sixty days
of June 30, 2016.  We did not deem these shares outstanding, however, for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any
other person. Beneficial ownership representing less than one percent is denoted with an asterisk (*).
 

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner  

Amount of
Beneficial

Ownership   
Percentage of

Class  
Executive Officers and Directors       
Tejune Kang, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board (1)   23,296,474   29.8%
Mark Szynkowski, Chief Financial Officer   *   * 
Matthew Sullivan, former Executive Vice President   *   * 
Thomas J. Iaciofano, Executive Vice President   *   * 
Adam Hartung, former Director   *   * 
Piotr A. Chrzaszcz, Director   *   * 
Michael Bannout, Director   *   * 
Sarah Michael, Director   *   *
All executive officers and directors as a Group (8 persons)   23,646,474   30.2%
Other > 5% Security Holders         
NYGG (Asia) Ltd. (2)   35,149,883   44.9%
Epics Grantor Retained Annuity Trust II (3)   4,000,000   5.1%

(1) Pursuant to a stockholders’ agreement, Mr. Kang, Chairman and CEO of the Company and any successor to or designee of the
CEO, was appointed as proxy of NYGG (Asia) Ltd., with the full power to vote NYGG (Asia) Ltd.’s shares in the same
manner and in the same proportion as shares of common stock that are not held by NYGG (Asia) Ltd. are voted.  The
stockholders’ agreement shall terminate upon delisting of the shares from NASDAQ or dilution of NYGG (Asia) Ltd.’s stake in
the Company or its possible successor below 5% of the Company’s outstanding common stock.

(2) The address of the beneficial owner is 12th Floor, Ruttonjee House, 11 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong, China.  See (1)
above regarding stockholders’ agreement.

(3) The address of the beneficial owner is PO Box 3477 San Ramon, CA 94583.
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Equity Compensation Plan

The Company had no equity compensation plans in effect as of December 31, 2014, and therefore, there were no outstanding equity
awards at fiscal year-end.  On January 22, 2015, the Board approved the Company’s 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) pursuant
to which the Company is authorized to issue up to 4,800,000 shares of Common Stock to qualified participants.  On January 27, 2015,
NYGG (Asia), Ltd., Kang Kapital LLC, Kang Family LLC, and TKO, LLC, who collectively own 58,400,444 shares of Common Stock
(representing 75.28 percent of the voting power of the Company on such date) executed a written consent adopting the Plan (the “Written
Consent”).  The company filed and commenced mailing of an Information Statement on Schedule 14C on February 5, 2015, disclosing
the adoption of the Plan by the Board and by the stockholders pursuant to the Written Consent.  In accordance with Rule 14c-2 of the
Exchange Act, the Plan became effective on February 25, 2015.

As of March 29, 2016, the Company’s common stock was traded over-the-counter as a grey market security.  These securities are not
currently traded on the OTCQX, OTCQB or OTC Pink marketplaces.  Broker-dealers are not willing or able to publicly quote grey market
securities because of a lack of investor interest, company information availability or regulatory compliance.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth information regarding compensation plans under which securities of the Company are authorized for
issuance, as of December 31, 2015:

Plan Category  

(a)
Number of

securities to be
issued upon
exercise of

outstanding
options,

warrants and
rights   

(b)
Weighted-

average
exercise price of

outstanding
options,

warrants and
rights   

(c)
Number of
securities
remaining

available for
future issuance

under equity
compensation

plans
excluding
securities

reflected in
column
(a)(1)  

Equity compensation plan approved by security holders (1)   1,116,000  $ 8.23   3,684,000 
Equity compensation plan not approved by security holders   -    -    -  
Total   1,116,000       3,684,000 

(1) Represents options issued pursuant to the Company’s 2015 Omnibus Incentive Plan.
 
Item 13. – Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Review, Approval or Ratification of Transactions with Related Persons

The Code of Ethics contains a policy for the review of transactions in which the Company conducts business with a relative or significant
other of a director, officer, or employee of the Company (a “Related Party Transaction”).  The Related Party Transaction must be
disclosed to the Company’s Chief Financial Officer to determine whether or not it is material to the Company.  In the event the Related
Party Transaction is determined to be material, it must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Audit Committee in advance of the
consummation of such Related Party Transaction.  Significant Related Party Transactions, including those involving the Company’s
directors or executive officers, must be reviewed and approved in writing in advance by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Transactions with Related Persons

Six Dimensions Inc., the private company predecessor to the Company, had a loan outstanding to its largest stockholder/owner at the time,
Tejune Kang, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014.  This loan bore interest at 2.64% with no definite repayment terms. 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, interest totaled $46,433, which was included in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheet.  During the year ended December 31, 2014, and prior to the Company becoming a reporting company, the loan balance of
$456,563 was eliminated, as the Company treated the loan as a stockholder distribution.
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Director Independence

The Board has determined that Sarah Michael, Piotr A. Chrzaszcz, and Michael Bannout are independent directors under the applicable
laws and regulations of the SEC and the Listing Rules of NASDAQ.  Adam Hartung was an independent director under these applicable
laws and regulations until his resignation in April 2016.  Anubav Saxena, Adam Hartung, and David Kaufman were independent directors
under these applicable and regulations laws until their resignation in September 2015.  Terry McEwen was not an independent director
under these applicable laws and regulations until his resignation in October 2015.  In making these determinations, the Board considered
the types and amounts of the commercial dealings between the Company and the companies and organizations with which the directors
are affiliated.

There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.

Item 14. – Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Principal Accounting Fees and Services

On October 22, 2014, the Company, with the approval of the Audit Committee, engaged BDO USA, LLP as the Company’s new
independent registered public accounting firm.  Marcum LLP (“Marcum”) and Li and Company, PC (“Li & Co.”), were previously
engaged at separate times as the independent accounting firm of Six Dimensions, LLC (“Six Dimensions”), the predecessor and now
subsidiary of the Company, while it was a privately-held company.  On October 24, 2014, the Company notified and confirmed with
Marcum that it had been dismissed as the independent accounting firm of Six Dimensions LLC.  Marcum was never engaged as the
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, nor had they issued any financial reports related to the Company prior to its
dismissal. Li & Co. was previously engaged separately from Marcum as the independent accounting firm of Six Dimensions while it was
a privately-held company.  On October 24, 2014 Six Dimensions notified Li & Co. that it had been dismissed as the independent
accounting firm of Six Dimensions. Li & Co. was not engaged as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm at any
time.

On March 17, 2016, BDO USA, LLP resigned as the auditors to the Company.  On April 18, 2016, The Company engaged with
SingerLewak LLP as the Company’s new independent registered public accounting firm.  SingerLewak LLP conducted the audit for years
ending December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2015.

The following table sets forth all fees paid or accrued by the Company for the audit and other services provided by the Company’s public
accounting firms for the years ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

BDO USA, LLP(1)  2015   2014  
Audit Fees(2)  $ 322,467  $ 127,150 
Audit-Related Fees(3)   -    -  
Tax Fees(4)   -    -  
All Other Fees(5)   -    -  
Total  $ 322,467  $ 127,150 

SingerLewak LLP(1)  2015   2014  
Audit Fees(2)  $ -  $ - 
Audit-Related Fees(3)   -    -  
Tax Fees(4)   -    -  
All Other Fees(5)   -    -  
Total  $ -  $ - 

(1)  BDO USA, LLP resigned as company auditor on March 17, 2016. SingerLewak LLP was engaged by the Company on April 18,
2016.

(2)  Audit fees relate to professional services rendered in connection with the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements
and quarterly review of financial statements included in the Company’s Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

(3)  Audit-related fees comprise fees for professional services that are reasonably related to the performance of the worldwide audit
or review of the Company’s financial statements.

(4)  Tax fees relate to professional services rendered in connection with tax audits, international tax compliance, and international tax
consulting and planning servicer.

(5)  Other Fees consist of fees for services other than the services reported in audit fees, audit-related fees, and tax fees.
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PART IV
 
Item 15. – Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
 
3.1 (8) Certificate of Incorporation, as amended by the Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation
  

3.2 (1)
Certificate of Designations of Preferences, Powers, Rights and Limitations of Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Stock

  
3.3 (2) Bylaws
  

10.1 (3)
Divesture and Exchange Agreement, dated June 11, 2014, by and among the Company and Ping Chen, Shengfen Lin,
Wenge Chen, Bei Lu and Dianfu Lu

  

10.2 (3)
Escrow Agreement, dated June 11, 2014, by and among the Company, Ping Chen, Shengfen Lin, Wenge Chen, Bei Lu and
Dianfu Lu., and Holland & Knight, LLP

  

10.3 (3)
Forbearance and Waiver Agreement, dated June 11, 2014, by and between the Company and NYGG (Asia) Ltd., dated June
11, 2014

  

10.4 (3)
Release and Waiver Agreement, dated June 11, 2014, by and among NYGG (Asia), Ltd., and Liaoning Creative Bellows
Co., Ltd. and Liaoning Creative Wind Power Equipment Co., Ltd.

  

10.5 (4)
Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange, dated June 13, 2014, by and among CleanTech Innovations, Inc., Initial Koncepts,
Inc., d/b/a Six Dimensions, Inc., and Tejune Kang

  
10.6 (2) Debt Conversion Agreement, dated September 29, 2014 by and between the Company and NYGG (Asia) Ltd.
  

10.6*
Form of Subscription Agreement, dated September 29, 2014, by and between the Company and the subscribers on the
signature pages thereto.

  

10.7 (5)
Form of Subscription Agreement, dated November 13, 2014, by and between the Company and the subscribers on the
signature pages thereto.

  
10.8 (6) Securities Purchase Agreement, dated March 4, 2015, by and between the Company and Ms. Topaz and Mr. Porath.
  
10.9 (6) Securities Purchase Agreement, dated March 20, 2015, by and between the Company and SwellPath, Inc.
  
10.10 (6) Goodwill Purchase Agreement, dated March 20, 2015, by and between the Company and Adam Ware.
  
10.11 (1) Stock Purchase Agreement, dated August 10, 2015, by and between the Company and the investor named therein.
  

10.12 (7)
Stockholders’ Agreement, dated January 14, 2016, by and between the Company and NYGG (Asia) Ltd., and Exhibit A
thereto, Irrevocable Proxy, dated January 14, 2016, by and between the Company and NYGG (Asia) Ltd.

  
10.13* Employment Agreement, dated January 1, 2016, by and between the Company and Mark Szynkowski.
  
21.1* Subsidiaries
  
24.1* Power of Attorney (included on the Signatures page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K)
  
31.1* Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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31.2* Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

  
32.1** Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
  
32.2** Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
  
101.INS* XBRL Instance Document
  
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
  
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase
  
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
  
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase
  
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 13, 2015.
(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 1, 2014.
(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 16, 2014.
(4) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 17, 2014.
(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 21, 2014.
(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 15, 2015.
(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 20, 2016.
(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 9, 2015.

* Filed Herewith

** This certification is deemed not filed for purposes of section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act),
or otherwise subject to the liability of that section, nor shall it be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended or the Exchange Act.
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Signatures
 
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 
 
 6D Global Technologies Inc.  
    
Dated: July 8, 2016 By: /s/ Tejune Kang  
  Tejune Kang, Chief Executive Officer  
  (Principal Executive Officer)  
    

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Tejune Kang
his true and lawful attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in any and
all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and
other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents,
and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in
connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming that all
said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or their or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by
virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Tejune Kang   
Tejune Kang, Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)  July 8, 2016

  
/s/ Mark Szynkowski   
Mark Szynkowski, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)  July 8, 2016
   
/s/ Piotr A. Chrzaszcz   
(Director)  July 8, 2016
   
/s/ Michael Bannout   
(Director)  July 8, 2016
   
/s/ Sarah Michael   
(Director)  July 8, 2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

 
 
 
Board of Directors and Stockholders
6D Global Technologies, Inc.
New York, New York
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of 6D Global Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ (deficit) equity and cash flows for the years then
ended.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall consolidated financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 6D
Global Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 6D
Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in
2013.  Our report dated July 8, 2016 expressed an opinion that 6D Technologies, Inc. had not maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in 2013.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern.  As discussed
in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and the Company is currently a
defendant in several class action lawsuits with various shareholders.  This raises substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.  Management's plans in regard to these matters also are described in Note 2.  The financial statements do
not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

[Firm Signature]
 
/s/ SingerLewak LLP
Los Angeles, California
July 8, 2016
 

F-2



Table of Contents

6D GLOBAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

 

  

December 31,
2015

(Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
Assets       

 Current Assets       
  Cash  $ 6,096,417  $ 4,888,797 
  Accounts receivable   1,713,112   1,316,448 
  Other receivable   105,799   -  
  Unbilled revenues   491,714   62,049 
  Deferred tax assets   -    161,255 
  Prepaid expenses and other current assets   309,773   165,907 
    Total Current Assets   8,716,815   6,594,456 
         
  Property and Equipment, net   473,051   154,917 
         
 Other Assets         
  Restricted cash   655,707   110,699 
  Security deposits   65,216   24,075 
  Internally developed software   208,749   -  
  Goodwill   8,218,940   -  
  Intangible assets, net   2,533,350   -  
 Total Other Assets   11,681,962   134,774 
         
   Total Assets  $ 20,871,828  $ 6,884,147 
         
Liabilities, Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity         
         
 Current Liabilities         
  Current maturities of capital lease liability  $ 129,857  $ 53,610 
  Current maturities of notes payable   6,600   6,600 
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   1,881,448   1,039,301 
  Due to factor   -    833,938 
  Short-term debt   623,642   -  
  Deferred revenue   257,586   68,420 

  Contingent consideration, current portion
  343,777   -  

    Total Current Liabilities   3,242,910   2,001,869 
         
 Long-Term Liabilities         
  Capital lease liability, net of current maturities   184,852   111,130 
  Notes payable, net of current maturities   46,820   53,420 
  Security deposit payable   50,000   30,000 
  Deferred rent, net of current portion   69,415   55,429 
  Derivative liability   17,220,000   -  
  Contingent consideration, net of current portion   274,260   -  
    Total Long-Term Liabilities   17,845,347   249,979 
         
   Total Liabilities  $ 21,088,257  $ 2,251,848 
         
Commitment and Contingencies (Note 18)         
         
Redeemable convertible preferred stock net of issuance costs, par value $0.00001; 10,000,000
shares authorized; 1,088 and 0 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively  $ 1,458,318  $ - 
         
 Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity         
  Common stock, par value $0.00001; 150,000,000 shares authorized; 78,247,864 and 77,575,617
shares  issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively   783   776 
  Additional paid-in capital   16,007,516   5,203,279 
  Accumulated deficit   (17,683,046)   (571,756)
    Total Stockholders' (Deficit) Equity   (1,674,747)   4,632,299 
    Total Liabilities, Redeemable convertible preferred stock and Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity  $ 20,871,828  $ 6,884,147 
 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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6D GLOBAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

 
  For the Year Ended  

  

December 31,
2015

(Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
       
 Revenues  $ 12,789,892  $ 11,797,813 
         
 Cost of revenues   7,728,244   7,425,857 
         
 Gross margin   5,061,648   4,371,956 
         
 Operating expenses         
 Selling, general and administrative   9,801,377   3,309,079 
 Professional and legal fees   1,778,612   486,654 
 One-time professional and legal fees   911,456   -  
 Depreciation and amortization   564,839   82,342 
   Operating expenses   13,056,284   3,878,075 
         
 (Loss) income from operations   (7,994,636)   493,881 
         
 Other expense (income)         
 Interest expense, net   281,411   147,069 
 Loss on debt extinguishment   -    57,502 
 Loss on derivative liability   9,292,720   -  
 Other income   (5,619)   (20,000)
   Other expenses, net   9,568,512   184,571 
         
 (Loss) income before income tax benefit   (17,563,148)   309,310 
         
 Income tax benefit   451,858   161,255 
         
Net (loss) income  $ (17,111,290)  $ 470,565 
         
Net (loss) income per common share – basic  $ (0.22)  $ 0.01 
         
Weighted average common shares – basic   78,227,127   48,500,156 
         
Net (loss) income per common share – diluted  $ (0.22)  $ 0.01 
         
Weighted average common share - diluted   78,227,127   48,668,720 
 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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6D GLOBAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS’

(DEFICIT) EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 and 2014 (Audited)

 

  
Redeemable Convertible

Preferred Stock   Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity  

  Stock   Amount  

 Common Stock  

 

Additional
paid-in
capital   

Accumulated
deficit   

Total
(Deficit)
Equity   Stock   Amount  

                      
Balance at
January 1, 2014   -   $ -   38,215,054  $ 382  $ 2,618  $ (539,950)  $ (536,950)
Promissory note
conversion   -    -    300,001   3   402,499   -    402,502 
Private placements,
net of issuance costs   -    -    2,859,300   29   4,798,524   -    4,798,553 
Reverse
recapitalization   -    -    36,201,262   362   (362)   -    -  
Distribution to
stockholders   -    -    -    -    -    (502,371)   (502,371)
Net income   -    -    -    -    -    470,565   470,565 
Balance at
December 31, 2014   -    -    77,575,617  $ 776  $ 5,203,279  $ (571,756)  $ 4,632,299 
Acquisitions   -    -    600,000   6   9,379,565   -    9,379,571 
Warrant exercise   -    -    72,247   1   -    -    1 
Issuance of
convertible preferred
stock   1,088   10,000,000   -    -    -    -    -  
Bifurcation of anti-
dilution derivative   -    (7,927,280)   -    -    -    -    -  
Equity issuance costs   -    (614,402)   -    -    -    -    -  
Stock based
compensation   -    -    -    -    1,424,672   -    1,424,672 
Net loss   -    -    -    -    -    (17,111,290)   (17,111,290)
Balance at
December 31, 2015   1,088  $ 1,458,318   78,247,864  $ 783  $ 16,007,516  $ (17,683,046)  $ (1,674,747)
  

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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6D GLOBAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 
  For the Years Ended  

  
December 31,

2015
(Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
     Cash Flows From Operating Activities:       
Net (loss) income  $ (17,111,290)  $ 470,565 
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash (used in)
provided by operating activities:         

 Depreciation and amortization   564,839   82,342 
 Stock-based compensation   1,424,672   -  
 Loss on debt extinguishment   -    57,502 
 Change in contingent consideration liability   145,997   -  
 Loss on derivative liability   9,292,720   -  
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:         
 Accounts receivable   (396,664)   (198,824)
 Other receivable   (105,799)   -  
 Unbilled revenues   (429,665)   69,795 
 Deferred tax benefit   (459,512)   (161,255)
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets   (143,866)   (118,450)
 Restricted cash   (545,008)   (200)
 Security deposits   (41,141)   24,632 
 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   842,147   220,985 
 Deferred revenue   61,832   68,420 
 Security deposit payable   20,000   30,000 
 Deferred rent   13,986   (17,763)
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities   (6,866,752)   527,749 
         
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:         
 Purchase of property and equipment   (260,285)   (15,137)
 Internally developed software   (208,749)   -  
 Consideration paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired   (542,399)   -  
 Loans to related parties   -    (46,433)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities   (1,011,433)   (61,570)
         
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:         
 Gross proceeds from factor borrowing   4,167,113   11,283,679 
 Repayments of factor borrowing   (5,001,051)   (11,320,036)
 Distribution to stockholders   -    (45,808)
 Proceeds from the issuance of short-term debt   623,642   -  
 Proceeds from the issuance of Series A redeemable convertible preferred stock, net of issuance

costs   9,385,598   -  
 Repayment of capital lease obligations   (82,897)   (57,781)
 Repayment of notes payable   (6,600)   (261,600)
 Proceeds on issuance of notes payable   -    20,000 
 Proceeds from private placement, net of issuance costs   -    4,798,553 
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities   9,085,805   4,417,007 
         
Net Change in Cash   1,207,620   4,883,186 
         
Cash, beginning of period   4,888,797   5,611 
         
Cash, end of period  $ 6,096,417  $ 4,888,797 
         
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:         
 Cash paid for taxes  $ 13,031  $ 4,495 
 Cash paid for interest  $ 113,635  $ 151,041 
         
Non-Cash Transactions:         
 Reclassification of due from related party to distribution  $ -  $ 456,563 
 Conversion of notes payable into common stock issuable  $ -  $ 345,000 
 Warrant issuance in connection with private placement  $ -  $ 1,751,962 
 Addition of capital leases  $ 228,038  $ 38,281 
 Common stock issued in connection with acquisitions  $ 4,929,000  $ - 
 Contingent consideration in connection with acquisitions  $ 4,922,613  $ - 
 Cashless exercise of warrants  $ 222,299  $ - 
 Deferred revenue in connection with acquisitions  $ 127,334  $ - 

 
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 – Organization and Operations

6D Global Technologies, Inc. (the “Company or “6D Global”) is a digital business solutions company serving the digital marketing and
technology needs of enterprise-class organizations worldwide.  6D Global offers a full suite of services and solutions to help large
organizations optimize digital business channels and create better experiences for their customers.  Services include web content
management, web analytics, marketing automation, mobile applications, business intelligence, marketing cloud, and IT infrastructure
staffing solutions.  In addition, the Company provides digital marketing and digital technology consulting services to leading enterprises
during periods of critical change and growth.

As more fully described below, on September 29, 2014, CleanTech Innovations Inc. (“CleanTech”) consummated an Agreement and Plan
of Share Exchange (the “Exchange Agreement” or the “Exchange”) with Six Dimensions, Inc., a Nevada corporation formerly known as
Initial Koncepts, Inc. (“Six Dimensions”), whereby CleanTech acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Six Dimensions,
29,643,068 shares, in exchange for 38,664,871 shares of Common Stock (an exchange ratio of approximately 1.3 shares of CleanTech
common stock for each share of Six Dimensions stock), and, simultaneously therewith, CleanTech completed a private placement equity
offering to accredited investors.  Pursuant to this private placement, CleanTech received $4,556,100 in gross proceeds and issued
2,201,031 shares of Common Stock to the purchasers thereunder.  Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, in September 2014, CleanTech
converted into a Delaware corporation whereby it changed its name to 6D Global Technologies, Inc. (stock symbol: “SIXD”, website:
www.6DGlobal.com), increased the number of its authorized shares of capital stock from 28,985,507 to 160,000,000 shares, of which
150,000,000 shares were designated common stock, par value $0.00001 per share (the “Common Stock”) and 10,000,000 shares were
designated preferred stock, par value $0.00001 per share (the “Preferred Stock”).

Reverse Recapitalization

Six Dimensions was originally incorporated as Initial Koncepts, Inc. in the State of California on February 9, 2004.  On June 25, 2014,
Initial Koncepts, Inc. converted from an S-Corporation into a California limited liability company and changed its name to Six
Dimensions, LLC.  On June 27, 2014, Six Dimensions, LLC converted into a Nevada C-Corporation and changed its name to Six
Dimensions, Inc.

On September 29, 2014, the Company undertook the following events:

· Converted into a Delaware corporation.
· Changed its name to 6D Global Technologies, Inc.
· Increased the number of its authorized shares of capital stock from 28,985,507 to 160,000,000 of which 150,000,000 shares

were designated Common Stock, par value $0.00001 per share and 10,000,000 shares were designated Preferred Stock, par
value $0.00001 per share.

On the same date and concurrently to the transactions described above, the Company also undertook the following transactions:

· Share exchange - CleanTech consummated the Exchange Agreement with Six Dimensions, Inc., whereby the Company
acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Six Dimensions in exchange for 38,664,871 shares of Common Stock.

· Private placement - CleanTech completed a private placement equity offering to accredited investors.  The Company received
$4,556,100 in gross proceeds and issued 2,201,031 shares of Common Stock.

· Debt conversion - CleanTech converted approximately $16,000,000 of debt owed to NYGG (Asia) LTD. in exchange for
35,149,883 shares of Common Stock.

· Stock split - CleanTech shares of Common Stock were increased by 1,051,379 after a 2 for 3 reverse stock split.
 
The Exchange is being treated as a reverse recapitalization effected by a share exchange for financial accounting and reporting purposes
since substantially all of CleanTech's operations were disposed of prior to the consummation of the transaction.  Six Dimensions is treated
as the accounting acquirer as its stockholders control the Company after the Exchange Agreement, even though CleanTech was the legal
acquirer.  As a result, the assets and liabilities and the historical operations that are reflected in these financial statements are those of Six
Dimensions as if Six Dimensions had always been the reporting company and, on the date of the Exchange Agreement, changed its name
and reorganized its capital stock.  Since CleanTech had no operations upon the Exchange Agreement taking place, the transaction was
treated as a reverse recapitalization for accounting purposes and no goodwill or other intangible assets were recorded by the Company as
a result of the Exchange Agreement.  Historical common stock amounts and additional paid-in capital have been retroactively adjusted
using the exchange ratio of approximately 1.3 shares of CleanTech Common Stock for each one common share of Six Dimensions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 
Note 2 – Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern,
which contemplates, among other things, the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business.

During the period from September through December 2015, the litigation matters did impair management’s ability to execute on growth
initiatives and consumed significant liquidity resources.  As a result, the Company continued to sustain net losses and relied on the
proceeds of the capital raises to supplement cash needs for operations.

In 2014, we completed multiple private placements amounting to $5,809,598 in gross proceeds.  In addition, we completed a Stock
Purchase Agreement for Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock in August 2015 amounting to $10,000,000 of gross proceeds to fund
expanding the business, potential mergers and acquisitions, and on-going operations.  We experienced larger losses as a result of
increased legal and professional fees beginning in September 2015 through December 31, 2015 related to the NASDAQ halt of trading
of our shares and delisting procedures, along with costs associated with defending claims against us and certain members of the
management team from the Discover Growth Fund and Class Action suits of various shareholders.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company had a cash balance of $6,096,417, accounts receivable of $1,713,112 and
$3,242,910 in current liabilities as well as an immaterial amount of notes payable.  At the current cash consumption rate, the Company
may need to consider additional funding sources toward the end of fiscal 2016.  The Company is taking proactive measures to reduce
operating expenses, drive growth in revenue and expeditiously resolve any remaining legal matters.

The Company anticipates meeting its cash obligations on indebtedness that is payable on or prior to December 31, 2016 from earnings
from operations.

The successful outcome of future activities cannot be determined at this time and there is no assurance that, if achieved, the Company
will have sufficient funds to execute its intended business plan or generate positive operating results.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments related to this uncertainty and as to the recoverability and
classification of asset carrying amounts or the amount and classification of liabilities that might result should the Company be unable to
continue as a going concern.

Note 3 – Acquisitions

The following transactions were accounted for using the purchase accounting method which requires, among other things, that the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are recognized at their acquisition date fair value.

Storycode

On March 4, 2015, the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding membership interests of the two co-founders (the “Interests”)
of Topaz Interactive, LLC, an Oregon limited liability company doing business as “Storycode” pursuant to a Securities Purchase
Agreement (the “Storycode SPA”) dated as of that date. The purpose of the acquisition of Storycode was to increase our service offering
in our existing digital solutions clients and to obtain new client relationships.

Storycode is headquartered in Portland, Oregon and provides mobile development and creative design services for medium and large
businesses.  Storycode creates mobile applications that feature award-winning UX (user experience) and UI (user interface) design
working exclusively with the Adobe DPS platform.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

In consideration for the Interests, the Company paid Ms. Topaz and Mr. Porath, the two members of Storycode (collectively, the
“Storycode Members”): cash in the amount of $300,000; an additional $300,000 paid in escrow to be earned by the members upon the one
year anniversary of their employment; an aggregate of 300,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.00001 per share (the
“Common Stock”); and additional, potential earn-out shares of Common Stock based on Storycode’s financial performance for the three
years following the closing of the acquisition.  The Company also agreed to employment agreements with the Storycode Members.  Total
acquisition costs for the Storycode acquisition incurred during the year ended December 31, 2015 was $86,161, and is included in selling
general and administrative expenses in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.  The purchase price in excess of the fair
value of the net book values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed was allocated to intangible assets based on management’s best
estimate of fair values, taking into account all relevant information available at the time of acquisition, and the excess was allocated to
goodwill.  The goodwill is deductible for tax purposes.  The intangible assets are being amortized over their expected period of benefit.

The Company has completed the valuation of the acquisition of Storycode to determine the value of the intangible assets and goodwill.

The Company’s allocation of the purchase price in connection with the acquisition of Storycode was calculated as follows:
 

Cash  $ 300,000 
Stock consideration   2,604,000 
Contingent consideration   2,733,334 
Total consideration  $ 5,637,334 

 
The consideration transferred for the Storycode acquisition was allocated across the net assets of the Company as follows:

Description  Fair Value   

Weighted
Average Useful

Life
(in years)  

Cash  $ 100,000    
Deferred revenue   (59,384)    
Trade name   330,000  7  
Customer relationship   900,000  5  
Non-compete agreement   61,000  1.5  
Due from seller   46,368    
Goodwill   4,259,350    
Total consideration  $ 5,637,334    

 
The criteria contained in the Storycode SPA related to the contingent consideration payable to Storycode is from April 1, 2015 through
March 31, 2018, and based on performance milestones and other terms set forth in the Storycode SPA, the Storycode Members may
receive up to 400,000 restricted shares of 6D Global’s Common Stock.

In addition, the Company after one year of employment with the Company, the Storycode Members will receive $300,000 cash, which
was placed in escrow at the closing of the transaction.

The Company determined the fair value of the contingent consideration to be $2,733,334.  The potential range of contingent
consideration can range from $0 cash and no issuance of Common Stock, in the event that the Storycode Members are not employed by
the Company for one year and the performance milestones are not reached, to $300,000 in cash and 400,000 restricted shares of
Common Stock.  The Company recorded the potential earn-out of 400,000 restricted shares which is part of the purchase price in the
amount of $2,604,000 as additional paid-in capital included in stockholders’ equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Since the
contingent cash consideration is contingent upon the Storycode Members remaining employees of the Company for a one-year period,
the Company will record this as compensation expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations when earned.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 
SwellPath

On March 20, 2015, the Company entered into and consummated a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “SwellPath SPA”) to acquire all
of the issued and outstanding shares (the “SwellPath Shares”) of SwellPath, Inc., (“SwellPath”) an Oregon corporation.

SwellPath is a professional services firm that delivers analytics consulting, search engine optimization and digital advertising services to
medium and large scale enterprises across North America.  SwellPath enables clients to align and maximize their digital marketing
initiatives by tracking both on and offline marketing campaigns and performing more effective targeting to enhance return on
investment.  SwellPath complements the Company’s overall acquisition strategy to provide a full-service digital marketing solutions
offering to its clients, particularly in areas where the Company’s clients have expressed needs, while leveraging the Company’s
partnership with Adobe Systems Incorporated to expand its Adobe Analytics offering.

The purchase price for the SwellPath Shares was comprised of: (i) cash in the amount of $300,000; (ii) 300,000 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock; and (iii) up to an additional 300,000 shares of Common Stock and $650,000, based upon the achievement by SwellPath
of certain performance milestones within the first and second anniversaries of the closing of the transaction.  In addition, the Company
acquired all of the goodwill associated with SwellPath from its founder, Adam Ware, for cash in the amount $300,000.  Also, the
Company agreed to an employment agreement with Mr. Ware to serve as Vice-President, containing customary terms, conditions and
covenants for such an agreement.  Total acquisition costs incurred for the SwellPath acquisition during the year ended December 31,
2015 was $83,030 and is included in selling general and administrative expenses in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations.  The purchase price in excess of the fair value of the net book values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed was allocated to intangible assets based on management’s best estimate of fair values, taking into account all relevant
information available at the time of acquisition, and the excess was allocated to goodwill.  The goodwill and identifiable intangible
assets are not deductible for tax purposes.  The intangible assets are being amortized over their expected period of benefit.

The Company has completed the valuation of the acquisition of SwellPath to determine the value of the intangible assets and goodwill.

The Company’s allocation of the purchase price in connection with the acquisition of SwellPath was calculated as follows:
 

Cash  $ 600,000 
Stock consideration   2,325,000 
Contingent consideration   2,189,279 
Total consideration  $ 5,114,279 

 
The consideration transferred for the SwellPath acquisition was allocated across the net assets of the Company as follows:
 

Description  Fair Value   

Weighted
Average Useful

Life
(in years)  

Cash  $ 257,601    
Deferred revenue   (67,950)   
Accrued liability   (51,195)   
Deferred tax liability   (620,767)   
Trade name   10,000  3  
Customer relationship   1,560,000  5  
Non-compete agreement   67,000  1.5  
Goodwill   3,959,590    
Total consideration  $ 5,114,279    
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The following are the criteria contained in the SwellPath SPA related to the contingent consideration payable to SwellPath:
 
1.  If SwellPath’s financial performance for the period from April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016 exceeds certain performance

milestones and other terms set forth in the SwellPath SPA, the Company is may be required to pay SwellPath up to $650,000
in cash.

2.  If SwellPath’s financial performance for the period from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017 exceeds certain performance
milestones and other terms set forth in the SwellPath SPA, SwellPath may receive up to 300,000 restricted shares of 6D
Global’s Common Stock.

The Company determined the fair value of the contingent consideration to be $2,189,279.  The potential range of contingent
consideration can range from $0 cash and no issuance of Common Stock, in the event SwellPath fails to achieve the minimum
financial performance in the required time, to $650,000 in cash and 300,000 shares of Common Stock, in the event SwellPath
achieves the financial performance target as of March 31, 2017.  The Company recorded contingent consideration in the amount of
$472,040 as a liability in its Consolidated Balance Sheets which represents the fair value of the cash contingent consideration.  The
Company recorded the potential earn-out of 300,000 restricted shares in the amount of $1,717,238 as Additional paid-in capital
included in stockholders’ equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.  As of December 31, 2015, the Company recorded $145,997 of
related accretion associated with the cash contingent consideration as interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.  The Company will continue to assess earn-out calculations related to the contingent consideration in future periods and
any future adjustments will affect operating income.
 
Unaudited Pro Forma Results

The following table presents the unaudited pro forma results of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 as if the
acquisitions of Storycode and SwellPath occurred on January 1, 2014.  The pro forma results include estimates and assumptions which
management believes are necessary.  However, pro forma results do not include an anticipated cost savings or their effects of the
planned integration of Storycode and SwellPath and are not necessarily indicative of the result that would have occurred if the business
combination had been in effect on the dates indicated, or which may result in the future.  The unaudited pro forma revenue and net
income for Storycode was $145,712 and $6,042, respectively, for the pre-acquisition period.  The unaudited pro forma revenue and net
income for SwellPath was $472,442 and $904, respectively, for the pre-acquisition period.
 

  

Unaudited Pro Forma Results of
Operations for the Acquisitions

of Storycode and SwellPath  
  For the Year Ended  

  

December 31,
2015

(Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
       
Revenues  $ 13,408,046  $ 13,455,455 
(Loss) income  $ (7,987,605)  $ 1,254,127 
Net (loss) income from operations  $ (17,104,343)  $ 1,230,637 
Basic and diluted (loss) income per share  $ (0.22)  $ 0.03 

 
Note 4 – Significant and Critical Accounting Policies and Practices

The management of the Company is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies and the appropriateness of
accounting policies and their application.  Critical accounting policies and practices are those that are both most important to the portrayal
of the Company’s financial condition and results and require management’s most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, often as a
result of the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain.  The Company’s significant and critical
accounting policies and practices are disclosed below as required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“U.S. GAAP”).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP for year-end financial
information and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).  Accordingly, since they are year-end
statements, the accompanying consolidated financial statements include all of the information and notes required by U.S. GAAP for
annual financial statements, but reflect all adjustments consisting of normal, recurring adjustments, that are necessary for a fair
presentation of the financial position for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of operations and cash flows for
the annual periods presented.

Principles of Consolidation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements include all of its accounts and any intercompany balances have been eliminated in
accordance with U.S. GAAP.  The Company has three subsidiaries, Six Dimensions Inc., Storycode, and SwellPath organized as two
operating segments that are combined into one reporting segment.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions and Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date(s) of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period(s).

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with U.S. GAAP, and the Company’s discussion and
analysis of its financial condition and operating results require the Company’s management to make judgments, assumptions and estimates
that affect the amounts reported in its consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.  Management bases its estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumptions it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities.  Actual results may differ from these estimates and such
differences may be material.

Management believes the Company’s critical accounting policies and estimates are those related to revenue recognition, allowances,
leases and income taxes.

Cash

Cash consists of checking accounts, marketable securities and money market accounts.  The Company considers all highly-liquid
investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash.  The Company maintains cash balances, which, at
times, may exceed the amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”).
 
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.  The Company performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customers and adjusts credit limits based upon payment history and the customer’s current credit worthiness, as
determined by the review of their current credit information; and determines the allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical
write-off experience, customer specific facts and economic conditions.

Management charges balances off against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery
is considered remote.  The Company determines when receivables are past due or delinquent based on how recently payments have been
received.
 
Outstanding account balances are reviewed individually for collectability.  The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company’s best
estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the Company’s existing accounts receivable.  For the years ended December 31, 2015
and 2014, the allowance for doubtful accounts was not material.  Additionally, there were no write-offs of the Company accounts
receivables for the years ended December 31, 2015 or 2014.  The Company does not have any off-balance-sheet credit exposure to its
customers.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost.  Expenditures for major additions and betterments are capitalized.  Maintenance and repairs
are charged to operations as incurred.  Depreciation of property and equipment is computed by the straight-line method (after taking into
account their respective estimated residual values) over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets as follows:

  
Estimated Useful Life

(Years)  
Machinery and Equipment  1 – 3  
Furniture  4 – 5  
Software  3  

Business Combinations

The Company accounts for its business combinations under the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 805-10,
Business Combinations ("ASC 805-10"), which requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all business
combinations.  Assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including non-controlling interests, are recorded at the date of acquisition at their
respective fair values.  ASC 805-10 also specifies criteria that intangible assets acquired in a business combination must meet to be
recognized and reported apart from goodwill.  Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of the tangible net assets
and intangible assets acquired in a business combination.  Acquisition-related expenses are recognized separately from the business
combinations and are expensed as incurred.  If the business combination provides for contingent consideration, the Company records the
contingent consideration at fair value at the acquisition date and any changes in fair value after the acquisition date are accounted for as
measurement-period adjustments.  Changes in fair value of contingent consideration resulting from events after the acquisition date, such
as earn-outs, are recognized as follows: 1) if the contingent consideration is classified as equity, the contingent consideration is not re-
measured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity, or 2) if the contingent consideration is classified as a liability, the
changes in fair value are recognized in earnings.

The estimated fair value of net assets acquired, including the allocation of the fair value to identifiable assets and liabilities, was
determined using established valuation techniques.  The estimated fair value of the net assets acquired was determined using the income
approach to valuation based on the discounted cash flow method.  Under this method, expected future cash flows of the business on a
stand-alone basis are discounted back to a present value.  The estimated fair value of identifiable intangible assets, consisting of customer
relationships, the trade names and non-compete agreements acquired were determined using the multi-period excess earnings method,
relief of royalty method and discounted cash flow methods, respectively.

The multi-period excess earnings method used to value customer relationships requires the use of assumptions, the most significant of
which include: the remaining useful life, expected revenue, survivor curve, earnings before interest and tax margins, marginal tax rate,
contributory asset charges, discount rate and tax amortization benefit.

The most significant assumptions under the relief of royalty method used to value trade names include: estimated remaining useful life,
expected revenue, royalty rate, tax rate, discount rate and tax amortization benefit.  The discounted cash flow method used to value non-
compete agreements includes assumptions such as: expected revenue, term of the non-compete agreements, probability and ability to
compete, operating margin, tax rate and discount rate.  Management has developed these assumptions on the basis of historical
knowledge of the business and projected financial information of the Company.  These assumptions may vary based on future events,
perceptions of different market participants and other factors outside the control of management, and such variations may be significant to
estimated values.

The discounted cash flow valuation method requires the use of assumptions, the most significant of which include: future revenue growth,
future earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, estimated synergies to be achieved by a market participant as a result
of the business combination, marginal tax rate, terminal value growth rate, weighted average cost of capital and discount rate.
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Contingent Consideration
 
The fair value of the Company’s contingent consideration is based on the Company’s evaluation as to the probability and amount of any
earn-out that will be achieved based on expected future performance by the acquired entity.  The Company utilizes established valuation
techniques to assist in the calculation of the contingent consideration at the acquisition date.  The Company evaluates the forecast of the
acquired entity and the probability of earn-out provisions being achieved when it evaluates the contingent consideration at initial
acquisition date and at each subsequent reporting period.  The fair value of contingent consideration is measured at each reporting period
and adjusted as necessary.  The Company evaluates the terms in contingent consideration arrangements provided to former owners of
acquired companies who become employees of the Company to determine if such amounts are part of the purchase price of the acquired
entity or compensation.

Goodwill and Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets
 
Goodwill, which represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired, is carried at cost.  Goodwill is not
amortized; rather, it is subject to a periodic assessment for impairment by applying a fair value based test.  Goodwill is assessed for
impairment on an annual basis as of October 1st of each year or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
asset might be impaired.  When conducting its annual goodwill impairment assessment, the Company initially performs a qualitative
evaluation of whether it is more likely than not that goodwill is impaired. If it is determined by a qualitative evaluation that it is more
likely than not that goodwill is impaired, the Company then applies a two-step impairment test. In the first step, the Company determines
the fair value of its reporting units using a discounted cash flow analysis.  If the net book values of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value,
the Company would then perform the second step of the impairment test which requires allocation of the reporting unit's fair value to all
of its assets and liabilities using the acquisition method prescribed under authoritative guidance for business combinations.  Any residual
fair value is being allocated to goodwill.

An impairment charge is recognized only when the implied fair value of the Company’s reporting unit’s goodwill is less than its carrying
amount.

Long-Lived Assets, Including Definite-Lived Intangible Assets

Long-lived assets, other than goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangibles, are evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable through the estimated undiscounted future cash
flows derived from such assets.

Definite-lived intangible assets primarily consist of trade names, non-compete agreements and customer relationships.  Definite-lived
assets are principally amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. For long-lived assets used in
operations, impairment losses are only recorded if the asset's carrying amount is not recoverable through its undiscounted, probability-
weighted future cash flows.  The Company measures the impairment loss based on the difference between the carrying amount and the
estimated fair value.  When an impairment exists, the related assets are written down to fair value.

Leases

Lease agreements are evaluated to determine if they are capital leases meeting any of the following criteria at inception: (a) transfer of
ownership; (b) bargain purchase option; (c) the lease term is equal to 75 percent or more of the estimated economic life of the leased
property; or (d) the present value at the beginning of the lease term of the minimum lease payments, excluding that portion of the
payments representing executory costs such as insurance, maintenance, and taxes to be paid by the lessor, including any profit thereon,
equals or exceeds 90 percent of the excess of the fair value of the leased property to the lessor at lease inception over any related
investment tax credit retained by the lessor and expected to be realized by the lessor.
 
If at its inception a lease meets any of the four lease criteria above, the lease is classified by the Company as a capital lease; and if none of
the four criteria are met, the lease is classified by the Company as an operating lease.
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Contingencies

Occasionally, the Company may be involved in claims and legal proceedings arising from the ordinary course of its business.  The
Company records a provision for a liability when it believes that it is both probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount
can be reasonably estimated.  If these estimates and assumptions change or prove to be incorrect, it could have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.  Contingencies are inherently unpredictable and the assessments of the value can involve
a series of complex judgments about future events and can rely heavily on estimates and assumptions.
 
Revenue Recognition

The Company provides its services under time-and-materials contracts.  Revenues earned under time-and-material arrangements are
recognized as services are provided.  The Company recognizes revenue from the provision of professional services when it is realized or
realizable and earned.  The Company considers revenue realized or realizable and earned when all of the following criteria are met: (i)
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) the services have been rendered to the customer, (iii) the sales price is fixed or
determinable and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured.  Appropriate allowances for discounts are recorded concurrent with revenue
recognition.

For fixed price service arrangements, we apply the proportional performance model or a ratable model to recognize revenue.  When
customer acceptance provisions exist, we are generally able to reliably demonstrate that the service meets, or will meet upon completion,
the customer acceptance criteria.  If circumstances exist which prevent us from verifying compliance with the acceptance provisions until
the service has been completed, revenue is not recognized until compliance can be verified.

Revenues recognized in excess of the amounts invoiced to clients are classified as unbilled revenues in the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets.  As of December 31, 2015 and 2014 the balance of unbilled revenue was $491,714 and $62,049, respectively.

In accordance with ASC 605, Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for Out-of-Pocket Expenses, the
Company classifies reimbursed expenses as revenue and the related expense within cost of revenue in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations.  For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the reimbursed expenses of $673,572 and $732,107,
respectively were included in revenue.

The Company may record deferred revenue in circumstances where the customer’s contract calls for pre-billing of services.  Amounts in
deferred revenue are realized when the services are provided and the criteria noted above are met.  As of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
the balance of deferred revenues was $257,586 and $68,420, respectively.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in selling, general and administrative expenses and amounted to $561,108 and
$75,707 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Research and Development

Because the industries in which the Company competes are characterized by rapid technological advances, the Company’s ability to
compete successfully depends heavily upon the Company’s ability to ensure a continual and timely flow of competitive services to the
marketplace.  Our employees continually train to enhance their skills and review third party software products.  Because these expenses
are not categorized as Research and Development expense, the Company’s total Research and Development expense was $0 for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.
 
Operating Expenses

The Company’s operating expenses encompass selling, general and administrative expenses consisting primarily of compensation and
related costs for personnel and costs related to the Company’s facilities, finance, human resources, information technology and fees for
professional services.  Professional services are principally comprised of outside legal, audit, information technology consulting,
marketing and outsourcing services as well as the costs related to being a publically traded company.
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Earnings (Loss) Per Share Applicable to Common Stockholders

The Company follows ASC 260, Earnings Per Share (“EPS”), which requires presentation of basic and diluted EPS on the face of the
income statements for all entities with complex capital structures, and requires a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of the
basic EPS computation to the numerator and denominator of the diluted EPS computation.  In the accompanying financial statements,
basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders by the weighted average
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding during the period.  Diluted EPS excludes all dilutive potential shares if their effect is
anti-dilutive.
 
The following is the computation of (loss) income per share applicable to common stockholders for the periods indicated:
 
  For the Years Ended  

  

December 31,
2015

(Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
       
Net loss  $ (17,111,290)  $ 470,565 
Basic and diluted (loss) income per share  $ (0.22)  $ 0.01 
         
Weighted average common outstanding:         
Basic   78,227,127   48,500,156 
Diluted   78,227,127   48,668,720 
         
Potentially dilutive securities (1)         
Outstanding stock options   1,116,000   -  
Common stock warrants   189,806   290,394 
Convertible preferred stock as converted to common shares   1,904,762   -  
 

(1) The impact of potentially dilutive securities on earnings per share is anti-dilutive in a period of net loss.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method.  This approach requires the recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities of the expected future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and for the benefit of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.  The U.S. GAAP guidance for income taxes
prescribes a two-step approach for the financial statement recognition and measurement of income tax positions taken or expected to be
taken in an income tax return.  The first step evaluates an income tax position in order to determine whether it is more likely than not that
the position will be sustained upon examination, based on the technical merits of the position.  The second step measures the benefit to
be recognized in the financial statements for those income tax positions that meet the more likely than not recognition threshold.  U.S.
GAAP also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, recognition and classification of interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosers and transition.  Under U.S. GAAP, the Company may recognize a previously unrecognized tax benefit if the
tax position is effectively (rather than “ultimately”) settled through examination, negotiation or litigation.  The Company reevaluates
these uncertain tax positions on a quarterly basis.  This evaluation is based on factors including, but not limited to, changes in facts and
circumstances, changes in tax law, effectively settled issues, and new audit activity.  Any changes in these factors could result in
changes to a tax benefit or tax provision.
 
Deferred tax assets and/or liabilities, if any, are classified as current and non-current based on the classification of the related asset or
liability for financial reporting purposes, or based on the expected reversal date for deferred taxes that are not related to an asset or
liability.  Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to that amount which is more likely than not to be realized. 
The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2015.
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Stock-Based Compensation

The Company established an Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) during 2015 and issued stock-based awards to certain individuals
under this plan.  The Company’s board of directors approved the Plan on January 22, 2015 as disclosed in the Company’s Form DEF-
14C filed on February 5, 2015 and the Plan became effective on February 25, 2015.  The purpose of the Plan is to enhance the
Company’s ability to attract and retain highly qualified officers, non-employee directors, key employees, consultants and advisors, and
to motivate such service providers to serve the Company and to expend maximum effort to improve the business results and earnings of
the Company, by providing to such persons an opportunity to acquire or increase a direct proprietary interest in the operations and future
success of the Company.  The Plan also allows the Company to promote greater ownership in the Company by such service providers in
order to align their interests more closely with the interests of the Company’s stockholders.  The Company’s policy going forward will
be to issue awards under the Plan.

The Plan will provide the Company with flexibility as to the types of incentive compensation awards that it may provide, including
awards of stock options, stock appreciation rights (“SAR”s), restricted stock, restricted stock units, other stock-based awards and cash
incentive awards.  The number of shares of common stock authorized for issuance under the Plan is 4,800,000, all of which may be
granted as incentive stock options under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) Section 422.
 
The Company accounts for its stock-based compensation plans in accordance with ASC 718, Stock Compensation.  Accordingly, stock-
based compensation for employees and non-employee directors is measured at the grant date based on the estimated fair value of the
award using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.  This model contains certain assumptions including expected volatility is a
combination of the Company’s competitors’ historical volatility over the expected life of the option, the risk-free rate of return based on
the Unites States treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant for the expected term of the option, the expected life based on the
period of time the options are expected to be outstanding using historical data to estimate option exercise and employee termination; and
dividend yield based on history and expectation of dividend payments.  Stock options generally vest ratably over the terms stated in each
Award Agreement and are exercisable over a period up to ten years.

The Company’s stock-based compensation expense is recognized as an expense over the requisite service period and is reduced for
estimated future forfeitures which are revised in future periods if actual forfeitures differ from the estimates.  Changes in forfeiture
estimates impact compensation expense in the period in which the change in estimate occurs.

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company accounts for its Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock (“Redeemable Preferred Stock”) under the provisions
of Accounting Series Release 268, SEC Comments and Interpretations (“ASR 268”), ASC 505 – Equity, ASC 480 – Distinguishing
Liabilities from Equity and ASC 815 – Derivatives and Hedging. Accordingly, these shares along with the embedded conversion feature,
the redemption feature, and the conversion feature are all part of temporary equity (“mezzanine equity”) in the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets based upon the terms and conditions of the Stock Purchase Agreement (“SPA”).  In accordance with ASC 480 the initial
carrying amount of Redeemable Preferred Stock is equal to the amount of proceeds received upon issuance, as reduced for the derivative
liability associated with the dividend anti-dilution protection and a conversion premium which has been bifurcated.
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The valuation of the derivative liability at issuance and as of December 31, 2015, was based on the following Monte Carlo inputs:
 

  
August 10,

2015   
December 31,

2015  
Preferred A shares   1,088   1,088 
Total consideration without discount  $ 10,880,000  $ 10,880,000 
Price per share  $ 5.25  $ 5.25 
Stock price on valuation date  $ 5.10  $ 1.01 
Shares outstanding as of measurement date   78,247,864   78,247,864 
Warrants and options outstanding as of measurement date   1,440,852   1,440,852 
Fully diluted shares outstanding as of measurement date   79,688,716   79,688,716 
Maximum allowed shares   7,960,903   70,311,284 

Expiration date  
August 10,

2022  August 10, 2022  
Risk-free rate   1.13%  1.85%
Remaining term (in years)   7.00   5.58 
Rounded annual volatility   50%  50%
Trials   100,000   100,000 

 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) ASU No.
2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statements-Going Concern-Disclosures of Uncertainties about an entity’s Ability to Continue as a
Going Concern.  ASU 2014-15 provides new guidance related to management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial
doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern by incorporating and expanding upon certain principles that are currently in
U.S. auditing standards and to provide related footnote disclosures. This new guidance is effective for the annual period ending after
December 15, 2016, and for annual periods and interim periods thereafter. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2014-15
to have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
 
In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, “Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.”  ASU 2015-03 requires debt
issuance costs to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the associated debt liability.  ASU 2015-03 is effective for
interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.  The new guidance will be applied on a retrospective basis and
early adoption is permitted.  The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2015-03 to have a significant impact on the Company's
consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
 
In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-17, “Income Taxes (Topic 740) – Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes.”  To
simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes, the amendments in this Update require that deferred tax liabilities and assets be
classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position.  The amendments in this Update apply to all entities that present a
classified statement of financial position.  The current requirement that deferred tax liabilities and assets of a tax-paying component of
an entity be offset and presented as a single amount is not affected by the amendments in this Update.  For public business entities, the
amendments in this Update are effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and
interim periods within those annual periods.  For all other entities, the amendments in this Update are effective for financial statements
issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15,
2018.  Earlier application is permitted for all entities as of the beginning of an interim or annual reporting period.  The amendments in
this Update may be applied either prospectively to all deferred tax liabilities and assets or retrospectively to all periods presented.  If an
entity applies the guidance prospectively, the entity should disclose in the first interim and first annual period of change, the nature of
and reason for the change in accounting principle and a statement that prior periods were not retrospectively adjusted.  If an entity applies
the guidance retrospectively, the entity should disclose in the first interim and first annual period of change the nature of and reason for
the change in accounting principle and quantitative information about the effects of the accounting change on prior periods.  The
Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2015-17 to have a significant impact on the Company's consolidated results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.
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In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01 – “Financial Instruments – Overall (Subtopic 825-10) – Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.”  ASU 2016-01, among other changes, requires equity investments (except those accounted
for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee) to be measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in net income.  This Update also simplifies the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily
determinable fair values by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairment.  The amendments in ASU 2016-01 will become
effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal
years.  The Company is currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of ASU 2016-01 will have on its consolidated results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02 – “Leases (Topic 842).” Under ASU 2016-02, entities will be required to recognize of
lease asset and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases.  Among other changes in accounting for leases, a
lessee should recognize in the statement of financial position a liability to make lease payments (the lease liability) and a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term.  When measuring assets and liabilities arising from a lease, a lessee
(and a lessor) should include payments to be made in optional periods only if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend the lease or not to exercise an option to terminate the lease.  Similarly, optional payments to purchase the underlying asset should
be included in the measurement of lease assets and lease liabilities only if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that purchase option. 
The amendments in ASU 2016-02 will become effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods
with those fiscal years, for public business entities.  The Company is currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of ASU 2016-02 will
have on its consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASC 2016-09 – “Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718) – Improvements to Employee Share-
based Payment Accounting.”  The areas for simplification in this Update involve several aspects of the accounting for share-based
payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on
the statement of cash flows.  In addition to these simplifications, the amendments eliminate the guidance in Topic 718 that was
indefinitely deferred shortly after the issuance of FASB Statement No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment.  This should not result
in a change in practice because the guidance that is being superseded was never effective.  The amendments in ASC 2016-09 will become
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods.  Early adoption is permitted
for any entity in any interim or annual period.  If an entity early adopts the amendments in an interim period, any adjustments should be
reflected as of the beginning of the fiscal year that includes that interim period.  An entity that elects early adoption must adopt all of the
amendments in the same period.  The Company is currently evaluating the effect of the adoption of ASU 2016-09 will have on its
consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
 
In April 2016 the FASB issued ASC 2016-10 – “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) - Identifying Performance
Obligations and Licensing.”  The core principle of the guidance in Topic 606 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.  To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply the following steps:

1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer.
2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract.
3. Determine the transaction price.
4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
5. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The amendments in this Update do not change the core principle of the guidance in Topic 606.  Rather, the amendments in this Update
clarify the following two aspects of Topic 606: identifying performance obligations and the licensing implementation guidance, while
retaining the related principles for those areas.  The amendments in this Update affect the guidance in Accounting Standards Update
2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), which is not yet effective.  The effective date and transition requirements
for the amendments in this Update are the same as the effective date and transition requirements in Topic 606 (and any other Topic
amended by Update 2014-09).  Accounting Standards Update 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral
of the Effective Date, defers the effective date of Update 2014-09 by one year.  The Company is currently evaluating the effect of the
adoption of ASU 2016-10 will have on its consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
 

F-19



Table of Contents

6D GLOBAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Internally Developed Software

ASC 350, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other, Subtopic 350-40, Internal-Use Software specifies standards of financial accounting and
reporting for the costs of internal-use computer software.  The Company capitalizes direct costs incurred in the development of
internal-use software.  For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 the Company capitalized internal-use software development
costs of $208,749 and $0, respectively.
 
Reclassification

Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to the presentation used in December 31, 2015 consolidated
financial statements.  The results of the reclassification did not affect the Company’s consolidated Statement of Operations.
 
Note 5 – Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has categorized its financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value into a three level hierarchy in accordance with U.S.
GAAP.  Fair value is defined as an exit price, the amount that would be received upon the sale of an asset or paid upon the transfer of a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The degree of judgment utilized in measuring the
fair value of assets and liabilities generally correlates to the level of pricing observability.  Financial assets and liabilities with readily
available, actively quoted prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices in active markets generally have
more pricing observability and require less judgment in measuring fair value.  Conversely, financial assets and liabilities that are rarely
traded or not quoted have less price observability and are generally measured at fair value using valuation models that require more
judgment.  These valuation techniques involve some level of management estimation and judgment, the degree of which is dependent on
the price transparency of the asset, liability or market and the nature of the asset or liability.

The three levels of fair value hierarchy are described below:
 
Level 1 Quoted market prices available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date.
  
Level 2 Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1, which are either directly or indirectly observable

as of the reporting date.
  
Level 3 Pricing inputs that are generally observable inputs and not corroborated by market data.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, such as cash, accounts receivable, unbilled revenues, accounts
payable, and due to factor, approximate their fair values because of the short maturity of these instruments.

The Company’s notes payable approximate the fair value of such instruments based upon management’s best estimate of interest rates that
would be available to the Company for similar financial arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.
 
The following tables disclose the assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis for the period indicated and the basis for
that measurement:

  Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 2015  
  Total   Level 1   Level 2   Level 3  
Liabilities             
 Contingent SwellPath acquisition consideration  $ 618,037  $ -  $ -  $ 618,037 
 Derivative liability   17,220,000   -    -    17,220,000 
  $ 17,838,037  $ -  $ -  $ 17,838,037 

As of December 31, 2014, the Company had no assets or liabilities measured at fair value.
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Note 6 – Property and Equipment, net

The following is a summary of property and equipment, net for the periods indicated:
 

  
December 31,

2015 (Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
       
Property and equipment  $ 782,564  $ 302,699 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization   (309,513)   (147,782)
Property and equipment, net  $ 473,051  $ 154,917 

Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $170,189 and $82,342 for the years ended December 31, 2015, and 2014, respectively.
 
Note 7 – Goodwill and Intangible Assets, net

Goodwill

The following table summarizes the Company’s goodwill for the periods indicated resulting from the acquisitions by the Company:
 

  Goodwill  
    
Balance at December 31, 2014  $ - 
Storycode acquisition   4,259,350 
SwellPath acquisition   3,959,590 
Balance at December 31, 2015  $ 8,218,940 

 
During the year ended December 31, 2015 the Company recognized an adjustment to goodwill to reflect the fair value of the stock
consideration for the business acquisitions made during the first quarter of 2015.
 
Intangible Assets, net
 
The following table summarizes the Company’s intangible assets, net for the period indicated:

    December 31, 2015  

  

Estimated
Useful Life

(Years)  
Gross Carrying

Amount  
Accumulated
Amortization   Impairment  Net Book Value  

             
Trade names  3 to 7   $ 340,000  $ 41,925  $ -  $ 298,075 
Customer relationships  5    2,460,000   283,475   -    2,176,525 
Non-compete agreements  1.5    128,000   69,250   -    58,750 
Total Intangible assets, net     $ 2,928,000  $ 394,650  $ -  $ 2,533,350 
 
Amortization expense related to intangible assets totaled $394,650 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2015, and 2014,
respectively.  As of December 31, 2014 the Company had no intangible assets.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s future amortization expense for the periods indicated:
 

2016  $ 572,653 
2017   570,415 
2018   590,917 
2019   591,928 
2020   152,437 
Thereafter   55,000 
Total future amortization expense  $ 2,533,350 

Note 8 – Related Party Transactions

Due from Related Party

The Company had a loan outstanding to its largest stockholder.  The receivable bore interest at 2.64% with no definite repayment terms
and during the year ended December 31, 2014 interest totaled $46,433.  During the year ended December 31, 2014, and prior to the
Company becoming a C Corporation, the loan balance of $456,563 was eliminated as the Company treated the loan balance as a
stockholder distribution.  No amounts were due from the related party for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.  Stockholder
distributions for the periods ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 totaled $0 and $502,371 respectively.
 
Note 9 – Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consist of the following for the periods indicated:
 

  

December 31,
2015

(Audited)   
December 31,

2014 (Audited)  
       
Accrued trade payables  $ 1,150,438  $ 703,725 
Accrued compensation   731,010   335,576 
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 1,881,448  $ 1,039,301 

 
Note 10 – Letter of Credit and Restricted Cash
 
On January 9, 2015, the Company amended the lease for office space at its corporate headquarters in New York.  As a result of the
amended lease, the Company has secured a standby letter of credit for the benefit of the landlord for the required security deposit (see
Note 18 - Commitments and Contingencies).

The letter of credit is in the amount of $354,814. The letter of credit expires in July 2020 and contains renewal periods of one year.

The letter of credit was collateralized by $355,707 and $110,699 of cash for the periods ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, which was reported as restricted in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In March 2015, the Company established a restricted cash account in the amount of $300,000 related to the Storycode acquisition.
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Note 11 – Due to Factor

On August 6, 2013, the Company signed a one-year agreement with a financial services company for the purchase and sale of accounts
receivables on a recourse basis.  The financial services company commenced funding during August 2013.  The financial services
company advanced up to 90% of qualified customer invoices, less applicable discount fees, and held the remaining 10% as a reserve
until the customer paid the financial services company.  The released reserves were returned to the Company.  The Company was
charged 0.7% for the first thirty (30) days outstanding. As well as each subsequent month prime plus 1.75% daily for funds outstanding
over thirty (30) days.
 
On August 21, 2014, the Company renewed this agreement which included among other changes, an elimination of the interest rate and
the adoption of a Service Fee of 1.15% per month for all periods covered under the renewed agreement.  Since inception, uncollectable
customer invoices are charged back to the Company after ninety (90) days.  The renewed agreement was scheduled to expire in August
2015.

On July 27, 2015, the Company terminated its factor agreement with the financial services company.  As of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
the advances from the factor, inclusive of fees, amounted to $0 and $970,541, respectively, which were offset against due from factor of
$0 and $136,603, respectively.  Advances from the factor were collateralized by substantially all assets of the Company.

Note 12 – Short-Term Debt

On July 27, 2015, the Company implemented an Asset Based Lending Agreement (the “ABL”) with The California Bank of
Commerce.  The Company may borrow up to $3,000,000 of their eligible Accounts Receivable.  Interest accrues at a rate of 3.75% plus
the prime rate with a minimum of 7.00%.  In connection with this line of credit the Company paid $22,500 in fees which was recorded in
the Company’s Selling, general and administrative expense in its Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31,
2015.  The line of credit automatically renews annually unless the Company provides prior written notice of its intent to cancel the
agreement.  Through the ABL the Company will achieve lower interest expenses and greater scalability in their credit facility.
 
During the term of the ABL the Company shall maintain and satisfy the following financial ratios (each of which shall be determined in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, consistently applied: (a) Minimum Income Requirements . Maintain an Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) on a quarterly and non-cumulative basis of at least One Dollar ($1.00) per quarter starting with
the fourth quarter of 2015.
 
As of December 31, 2015, the Company had an outstanding balance and unused balance in the ABL of $623,642 and $2,376,358,
respectively.  For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company paid $66,456 in interest on the ABL.
 
Note
13

– Notes Payable

In 2013 and prior, the Company issued $580,000 of notes payable to various individuals for business operations and growth
opportunities.
 
Prior to 2013, the Company executed a note for $94,060.  The note matures in January 2021 and bears no interest.  The monthly fixed
principal payment is $550. The note is secured by all assets of the Company. The total outstanding balance as of December 31, 2015
and December 2014 is $53,420 and $60,020, respectively.

Future minimum debt repayments at December 31, 2015 are as follows:
 

2016  $ 6,600 
2017   6,600 
2018   6,600 
2019   6,600 
2020   6,600 
Thereafter   20,420 
Total  $ 53,420 
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On May 27, 2014, the Company sold a $20,000 promissory note maturing in August 2014.  The note bore interest at 1% per month with
interest payable monthly.  The promissory note was subsequently converted into equity.

During May and June of 2014, certain note holders converted their promissory notes into common stock.  In total, $345,000 of promissory
notes was converted into 300,001 shares of Common Stock.  In connection with the note conversions, the Company recorded a loss on
debt extinguishment of $57,502 in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.
 
In June 2014, the Company repaid the remaining $255,000 of outstanding notes payable issued in 2013 and prior that had not converted
into equity.

Note 14 – Stock Based Compensation

The fair values of stock option grants during the year ended December 31, 2015 were calculated on the date of the grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model.  There were no stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2014.  Compensation expense is
recognized over the period of service, generally the vesting period (see Note 3 - Significant and Critical Accounting Policies and
Practices).  During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company granted a total of 80,000 stock options to certain members of its
Board of Directors. 

The following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes options pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock options on the grant
date:

 
Fair value of Company’s Stock Options Granted  $ 292,400 
Volatility   45.00%
Exercise price  $ 8.60 
Estimated life   5.50  years
Risk free interest rate (based on 5-year treasury rate)   1.38%
Dividend   0.00%

 
During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company granted a total of 1,201,000 options to certain employees and officers of the
Company.  The following assumptions were used in the Black-Scholes options pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock options
on the grant date:

Fair value of Company’s Stock Options Granted  $ 2,904,000 
Volatility   45.00– 50.00%
Exercise price  $2.63 to 11.25 
Estimated life   6.50  years
Risk free interest rate (based on 5-year treasury rate)  1.57 to 2.03%
Dividend   0.00%

The following table summarizes the Company’s stock option activity and related information for the period indicated:
 

  
Number of

Shares   

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Fair Value   

Weighted
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Term   

Weighted
Average

Exercise Price  
Outstanding at January 1, 2015   -   $ -   -    -  
Granted   1,281,000  $ 2.50   4.15   8.24 
Exercised   -   $ -   -    -  
Forfeited   (165,000)  $ 2.40   4.39   8.35 
Outstanding at December 31, 2015   1,116,000  $ 2.51   4.10   8.23 
                 
Exercisable at December 31, 2015   80,000   3.66   4.10   8.60 
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In accordance with ASC 718, Share Based Payment (“ASC 718”), total compensation expense for stock based compensation awards was
$1,424,672 for the year ended December 31, 2015.  Expenses for stock based compensation are included in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations in cost of goods sold of $123,455 as well as in selling, general and administrative expense of
$1,301,217 for the year ended December 31, 2015.

As of December 31, 2015 there was $1,771,728, of total unrecognized stock-based compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures,
related to stock options which is expected to be recognized over the next 4.3 years.

The Black Scholes valuation model requires the Company to estimate key assumptions such as expected volatility, expected terms, risk-
free interest rates and dividend yields. The Company determined the assumptions in the Black Scholes valuation model as follows:
expected volatility is a combination of the Company’s competitors’ historical volatility; expected term is calculated using the
“simplified” method prescribed in ASC 718; and the risk free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield on 5 and 7-year instruments in
effect at the time of grant. A dividend yield is not used, as the Company has never paid cash dividends and does not currently intend to
pay cash dividends other than as required to settle out the dividend derivative liability. The Company periodically reviews the
assumptions and modifies the assumptions accordingly.

As part of the requirements of ASC 718, the Company is required to estimate potential forfeitures of stock option and restricted stock
unit grants and adjust compensation cost recorded accordingly.  The estimate of forfeitures will be adjusted over the requisite service
period to the extent that actual forfeitures differ, or are expected to differ, from such estimates.  Changes in estimated forfeitures will be
recognized through a cumulative catch-up adjustment in the period of change and will also impact the amount of stock based
compensation expense to be recognized in future periods.  The fair values of stock option and restricted stock unit grants are amortized
as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the grants.  Compensation expense recognized is shown in
the operating activities section of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

During 2014 an additional $354,409 of stock compensation expense was determined to be unrecorded.  During the period from
September 30, 2014 to September 30, 2015, an additional approximate $397,646 of stock compensation expense was determined to be
unrecorded.  The Company has since adjusted its consolidated financial statements to include these amounts in their respective periods
and has restated its consolidated financial statements accordingly.  See Note 22 – Prior Year Restatement for further information.
  
Note 15 – Common Stock

The table below shows the Company’s par value, authorized shares, issued shares and outstanding shares of its Common Stock for the
periods indicated:
 

Common Stock  

December 31,
2015

(Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
Authorized; par value $0.00001   150,000,000   150,000,000 
Issued   78,247,864   77,575,617 
Outstanding   78,247,864   77,575,617 

During June 2014, the Company issued 142,362 shares of Common Stock to investors in private placements at $1.75 per share for total
proceeds of $191,000.
 
During July 2014, the Company issued 7,454 shares of Common Stock to an investor in a private placement at $1.75 per share for total
proceeds of $10,000.
 
During May and June of 2014, certain note holders converted their promissory notes into Common Stock.  In total, $345,000 of
promissory notes was converted into 300,001 shares of Common Stock.  In connection with the note conversions, the Company recorded
a loss on debt extinguishment of $57,502 in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

In September 2014, the Company completed a private placement equity offering to accredited investors pursuant to an Agreement and
Plan of Share Exchange (the “Exchange Agreement”).  The Company received $4,556,100 in gross proceeds and issued 2,201,031 shares
of Common Stock.  The issuance costs associated with the private placement were $774,213.  These costs have been recorded as a
reduction to additional paid-in capital as of the year ended December 31, 2014.
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The Exchange Agreement completed in September 2014 had the following impact on stockholders’ equity:
 

· In January 2014, the beginning balance of common shares, Common Stock and additional paid in capital were changed to
reflect the exchange of 1.3 CleanTech Innovations Inc. (“CleanTech”) shares for each share of Six Dimensions, Inc., a Nevada
corporation formerly known as Initial Koncepts, Inc. (“Six Dimensions”).

· The stockholders’ equity balances of CleanTech as of September 2014 were added to total stockholders’ equity to reflect the
reverse recapitalization transaction.

 
On November 21, 2014, the Company completed a private placement equity offering to accredited investors.  The Company received
$1,052,498 in gross proceeds, and issued 508,453 shares of Common Stock.  The issuance costs associated with the private placement
were $236,832.  These costs have been recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in-capital for the year ended December 31, 2014.

On March 4, 2015 and March 20, 2015, the Company issued 300,000 shares, respectively, of its Common Stock to each of Storycode and
SwellPath, as part of the respective acquisitions of each of these entities (see Note 2 - Acquisitions).

During the period ended December 31, 2015, 100,588 warrants were exercised through a cashless exercise provision for the issuance of
72,248 shares of the Company’s Common Stock (see Note 16 - Warrants).
 
Note 16 – Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
 
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
 
The table below shows the Company’s par value, authorized shares, issued shares and outstanding shares of its Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock for the periods indicated:

Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock  

December 31,
2015

(Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
Authorized; par value $0.00001   10,000,000   10,000,000 
Issued   1,088   -  
Outstanding   1,088   -  

Background

On August 10, 2015, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with a single institutional investor pursuant to
which the Company agreed to issue and sell 1,088 shares of the Company’s newly designated Series A Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock of the Company, par value $0.00001 per share (the “Redeemable Preferred Stock”), convertible into shares of the
Company’s Common Stock, at a fixed conversion price of $5.25 per share, at a purchase price of $10,000 per share with an 8% original
issue discount, for total gross proceeds of $10.0 million, or the sale of approximately $10.88 million.

Conversion Feature

The Redeemable Preferred Stock may be converted to shares of the Company’s Common Stock at either the holder or the Company’s
option provided certain equity conditions are met.
 
Redemption Feature

The Stock Purchase agreement contains a redemption and an early redemption option at the Company’s option, not the holders (provided
that no Trigger Event has occurred).
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Dividends

The dividend rate amounts to 8.5% per annum subject to certain upward or downward adjustments based upon the market value of the
Company’s Common Stock, with a maximum dividend rate of 17.0% and a minimum dividend rate of 0.0%, and will accrue until the
earlier of conversion, redemption, or maturity.  In addition, the dividend rate will increase by 10 percentage points in the event of certain
“triggering events,” including as described below.  The Redeemable Preferred Stock will mature seven years following the issuance date,
at which time such shares will automatically convert into shares of Common Stock.

Conversion Premium

Upon conversion, the Company shall pay the holders of the Redeemable Preferred Stock being converted a conversion premium equal to
the amount of dividends that such shares would have otherwise received if they had been held through the dividend maturity date.  The
conversion premium is only payable in certain circumstances and meets the definition of a contingent dividend.  The dividends and
conversion premium may be paid in cash or, at the Company’s option, shares of Common Stock.  If the Company elects to pay the
dividends or conversion premium amount in the form of Common Stock, the number of shares to be issued shall be calculated (subject to
adjustment under certain triggering events) by using 90.0% of the average of the five lowest daily volume weighted average prices during
the measurement period, less $0.05 per share of Common Stock, not to exceed 100% of the lowest sales price on the last day of such
measurement period, less $0.05 per share of Common Stock.  The Company will not issue any of its Common Stock that would result in
the holder being deemed to beneficially own more than 4.99% of the total Common Stock outstanding at any one-time (which may be
increased to 9.99% at the option of the holder).  The net proceeds of the transaction are intended to be used to finance potential future
acquisitions, global expansion, increase sales and marketing efforts, and for general corporate purposes, including working capital to foster
the Company’s continued growth.
 
Authorized, issued and outstanding stock are as follows for the periods indicated:

Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock  
December 31,

2015 (Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
Stock authorized   1,088   -  
Stock outstanding   1,088   -  
Par value  $ 0.00001   -  
Conversion price  $ 5.25   -  
Dividend rate   26.00%  - 

Original issue date  
August 10,

2015   -  

Redemption date  
August 10,

2022   -  

Triggering Event

On September 10, 2015 the Company’s trading was halted at a closing bid of $2.90.  As a result, the “Triggering Event” as defined within
the SPA as “a suspension from trading or the failure of the Common Stock to be trading or listed on the NASDAQ Capital Market;" is
considered to be met.  Accordingly, this event had the following implications on the Redeemable Preferred Stock:
 

· The dividend rate will adjust upward by 10 percentage points from the applicable dividend rate.
· If the Company elects to pay dividends or the conversion premium amount in Common Stock, the number of shares to be

issued will be calculated by using 80.0% of the lowest daily volume weighted average price during any Measurement Period for
any conversion by Holder, less $0.05 per share of Common Stock, not to exceed 80.0% of the lowest sales price on the last day
of any Measurement Period, less $0.05 per share of Common Stock.

· The Company no longer has the option to redeem the shares prior to the dividend maturity date.
· As the equity conditions per the SPA were not met at December 31, 2015, the Company does not have the ability to convert the

Redeemable Preferred Stock to Common Shares prior to the Dividend Maturity date.
· The measurement date is adjusted to the period beginning from the Issuance date and ending 30 trading days after all applicable

Conversion shares have actually been received into the Holder’s designated brokerage account.  For each trading day during the
Measurement Period on which less than all of the conditions of the agreements are not met, 1 Trading Day will be added to
what otherwise would have been the end of the Measurement Period.
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Administrative and legal fees incurred as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 related to the issuance of the Redeemable Preferred Stock are
$614,402 and $0, respectively, and are recorded as a reduction to the carrying value of the Redeemable Preferred Stock.
 
Classification and Accounting of Redeemable Preferred Stock

The Redeemable Preferred Stock are to be classified as part of temporary equity (mezzanine equity) along with the associated
identified financial instruments including the embedded conversion feature and the redemption feature in the Company’s Consolidated
Balance Sheets based upon the terms and conditions of the SPA.  The initial carrying amount of Redeemable Preferred Stock is equal
to the amount of proceeds received upon issuance, as reduced for the derivative liability associated with the dividend anti-dilution
protection and conversion premium.

The conversion premium and the dividends associated with the Redeemable Preferred Stock contain an anti-dilution feature within the
dividend rate, which fluctuates inversely to the changes in the value of the Company’s stock price.  Under ASC 480 Distinguishing
Liabilities from Equity (“ASC 480”) the Company’s management noted that this inverse relationship triggers liability treatment of such
features.  Accordingly, the conversion premium and the dividends are identified as a derivative liability which require bifurcation from
the Redeemable Preferred Stock. Initial and subsequent measurement of these feature will be recorded at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognized in earnings on a quarterly basis.

The fair value of the conversion premium and dividend anti-dilution features were determined to be $7,927,280 upon issuance at
August 10, 2015 and $17,220,000 as of December 31, 2015.  The change between the two valuations of $9,292,720 is recorded as part
of the Loss on derivative liability.
 
Below is the activity for the Company’s preferred issuances for the periods presented:

  
Redeemable Convertible

Preferred Stock  
  Shares   Amount  
December 31, 2014   -   $ - 
Issuance of preferred stock   1,088   10,000,000 
Bifurcation of anti-dilution features   -    (7,927,280)
Equity issuance costs   -    (614,402)
December 31, 2015   1,088  $ 1,458,318 

Note 17 – Warrants

On September 29, 2014, in connection with the Exchange Agreement, the Company completed a private placement equity offering to
accredited investors, raising $4,556,100 in gross proceeds.  For its assistance in this private placement of equity, the Company paid a
placement agent commissions representing 10% of the gross proceeds and issued it warrants to purchase 258,155 shares of the Company’s
Common Stock.  The fair value of the warrants was calculated using the Black-Scholes model and the following assumptions: estimated
life of five years, volatility of 46.5%, risk-free interest rate of 1.77% and dividend yield of 0%.  The fair value of the warrants at grant
date was $1,660,526.

On November 21, 2014, the Company completed a private placement equity offering to accredited investors, raising $1,052,498 in gross
proceeds.  For its assistance in this private placement of equity, the Company paid a placement agent commissions representing 10% of
the gross proceeds and issued it warrants to purchase 32,239 shares of the Company’s Common Stock.  The fair value of the warrants was
calculated using the Black-Scholes model and the following assumptions: estimated life of five years, volatility of 46.5%, risk-free
interest rate of 1.63% and dividend yield of 0%.  The fair value of the warrants at grant date was $91,436.
 

F-28



Table of Contents

6D GLOBAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
 
During the year ended December 31, 2015, 100,588 warrants were exercised through a cashless exercise provision for the issuance of
72,247 shares of the Company’s Common Stock with an exercise price of $2.21.
 
The fair values of warrants during the year ended December 31, 2015 were calculated on the date of the grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model.  The Black Scholes valuation model requires the Company to estimate key assumptions such as
expected volatility, expected terms, risk-free interest rates and dividend yields. The Company determined the assumptions in the
Black Scholes valuation model as follows: expected volatility is a combination of the Company’s competitors’ historical volatility;
expected term is calculated using the “simplified” method prescribed in ASC 718; and the risk free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury
yield on 5 and 7-year instruments in effect at the time of grant.  A dividend yield is not used, as the Company has never paid cash
dividends and does not currently intend to pay cash dividends other than as required to settle out the dividend derivative liability.  The
Company periodically reviews the assumptions and modifies the assumptions accordingly.
 
The following table summarizes the warrant activity for the periods indicated:

  Warrants   

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price  
Balance at December 31, 2014 (Audited)   290,394  $ 2.21 

Granted   -    -  
Exercised   (100,588) $ 2.21 

Balance at December 31, 2015 (Audited)   189,806  $ 2.21 

The warrants outstanding at December 31, 2015 are immediately exercisable at $2.21, and have a weighted average remaining term of
approximately 3.69 years.
 
The Company uses the basis for the accounting of warrants issued in connection with the private placement to the placement agent in
accordance with ASC 480 Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity and ASC 815 Derivatives and Hedging.  The warrants were considered
an issuance cost for the private placement and therefore were deducted from the gross proceeds reducing equity.
 
Note 18 – Commitments and Contingencies

Occasionally, the Company may be involved in claims and legal proceedings arising from the ordinary course of its business.  The
Company records a provision for a liability when it believes that is both probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be
reasonably estimated.  If these estimates and assumptions change or prove to be incorrect, it could have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.  Contingencies are inherently unpredictable and the assessments of the value can involve a
series of complex judgments about future events and can rely heavily on estimates and assumptions.

Legal Proceedings
 
The defense costs related to the legal proceeding against the Company may be offset by payment of our claims from our insurance
carriers.

Discover Growth Fund v. 6D Global Technologies, Inc., et al., Case No. 15-cv-7618 (PKC) (S.D.N.Y.)

On September 28, 2015, Discover Growth Fund (“Discover”) filed an action in the United States District Court for the Southern District
of New York (the “District Court”) against 6D Global Technologies, Inc., its officers and directors, and certain third-parties.  In its
complaint, Discover alleges, among other things, that it was fraudulently induced into executing the Stock Purchase Agreement (the
“SPA”), because the Company allegedly made misrepresentations regarding Benjamin Wey - also a defendant in the pending action - and
his alleged involvement with the Company.  Discover’s complaint further asserts claims for violations of federal securities laws,
rescission, breach of contract, and fraud, all substantially arising out of the same factual allegations.

Discover’s suit was assigned to District Court Judge P. Kevin Castel.  Discover made a motion in the District Court for a pre-judgment
attachment of the Company’s assets in aid of arbitration, and for a temporary restraining order pending a decision on its motion for
attachment of the Company’s assets, which was initially granted by the court and then revised.  The Company opposed Discover’s
attachment motion and cross-moved to compel arbitration of Discover’s claims in accordance with the terms of the SPA.
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On October 30, 2015, Judge Castel completely denied Discover’s motion for an attachment of the Company’s assets and vacated the
temporary restraining order. The Court found that the plaintiff had not satisfied their burden of proof regarding any alleged wrongdoing by
the Company, or its officers and directors. As of the date of this filing, Discover has not filed for arbitration of its underlying claims.

The Company vigorously disputes Discover’s underlying claims and intends to aggressively defend them if any arbitration is filed by
Discover. The extent of the Company’s potential liability in this matter has not yet been determined.  And as a result, no accrual for this
exposure was made in the consolidated financial statements.
 
Puddu et al. v. 6D Global Technologies, Inc., et al., Case No. 15-cv-8061 (RWS) (S.D.N.Y.)

On October 13, 2015, an individual named Sixto Castillo IV filed a putative class action complaint in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of New York against the Company, certain officers and directors, and certain third-parties, putatively on behalf of
the Company’s stockholders.  The lawsuit seeks damages arising from alleged material misstatements and omissions concerning
defendant Benjamin Wey, in violation of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b) and 78t(a),
respectively) and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder (17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5).  Plaintiffs Joseph Puddu, Mark Ghitis, Valery Burlak,
and Adam Butter, on behalf of the putative class, subsequently filed an amended complaint and second amended complaint on March 23,
2016 and April 4, 2016, respectively.

Plaintiffs allege, among other things, that defendants made false and/or misleading statements and/or failed to disclose: (1) the extent of
Benjamin Wey’s purported involvement in the Company’s operations, and (2) Benjamin Wey’s purported beneficial ownership of more
than 5% of the Company’s stock.

Plaintiffs seek an undetermined amount of compensatory damages allegedly sustained by the putative class a result of these purported
misstatements and omissions.

The Company vigorously disputes the allegations made in the complaint and intends to assert an aggressive defense.  The extent of the
Company’s potential liability in this matter has not yet been determined.  And as a result, no accrual for this exposure was made in the
consolidated financial statements.
 
Scott v. Wei et al. and 6D Global Technologies, Inc., Case No. 1:15-cv-09691 (S.D.N.Y.) 

On December 11, 2015, an individual named Allan Scott filed a shareholder action in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of New York derivatively on behalf of 6D Global Technologies Inc. against certain officers and directors of the Company, certain
third-parties, and the Company itself (as a nominal defendant).  Mr. Scott seeks damages and injunctive relief arising from alleged
breaches of fiduciary duties, unjust enrichment, and purported material misstatements and omissions in violation Section 14 of the
Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78n) and Rule 14a-9 promulgated thereunder (17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-9).

Specifically, the complaint alleges, among other things, that defendants have harmed the Company: (1) by permitting defendant Benjamin
Wei to manipulate the share price and trading volume of the Company’s stock, (2) by lacking adequate internal controls to prevent such
alleged manipulation, and (3) by failing to disclose Wei’s purported actions and involvement in the Company.  Mr. Scott seeks an award
to the Company in an undetermined amount for damages it allegedly sustained as a result of these alleged violations, as well as injunctive
relief requiring 6D Global to reform and improve its corporate governance and internal procedures.  The lawsuit has been stayed by the
Court pending the outcome of the motion to dismiss that defendants intend to file in the Puddu lawsuit.

The Company and the named directors and officers dispute the allegations made in the complaint and intend to amount an aggressive
defense.  The extent of the potential liability in this matter has not yet been determined.  And as a result, no accrual for this exposure was
made in the consolidated financial statements.

Cottam v. Glob. Emerging Capital Grp. et al., Case No. 16-cv-04584 (S.D.N.Y.)

The Company has learned that on June 16, 2016, an individual named John Cottam filed a complaint in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of New York against the Company, its CEO, and certain third-parties.  To the Company’s knowledge, neither the
Company nor its CEO has been served with this complaint. 
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With regard to the Company and its CEO, Mr. Cottam seeks damages arising from an alleged breach of contract, as well as purported
material misstatements or omissions in violation of Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act (15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)) and Rule 10b-5
promulgated thereunder (17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5).  Specifically, the complaint alleges, among other things, that defendants induced Mr.
Cottam to invest in a private offering of Company shares by misrepresenting (i) the nature of a reorganization facilitated by the offering;
(ii) certain restrictions on the selling of Company shares; and (iii) the involvement of non-party Benjamin Wey in the offering.  Mr.
Cottam further alleges that the Company and its CEO breached a subscription agreement by purportedly failing to issue Mr. Cottam the
contracted for number of shares.

Plaintiff seeks an undetermined amount of compensatory and punitive damages allegedly sustained as a result of defendants’ purported
breaches, misstatements, and omissions.

The Company and its CEO dispute the allegations made in the complaint and, if served, intend to mount an aggressive defense.  The
extent of the potential liability in this matter has not yet been determined.  And as a result, no accrual for this exposure was made in the
consolidated financial statements.
 
Operating Leases

The Company is obligated under various operating lease agreements for office facilities in California, New York, and Ohio.  As a result
of the acquisitions, the Company is also obligated under operating leases for facilities in Oregon and Minnesota.  In addition, the
Company leases office facilities on a month-to-month basis in Minnesota and Colorado.

Rent expense under all office leases aggregated to $918,045 and $342,170 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.  Rent expense was recorded in selling general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements
of Operations.
 
Future minimum payments of the Company’s operating leases are as follows:
 

2016  $ 1,148,759 
2017   1,117,905 
2018   968,639 
2019   792,846 
2020   476,112 
Thereafter   766,401 
Total  $ 5,270,662 

Equipment Lease

Rent expenses under all equipment leases aggregated $92,114 and $81,036 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.  The Company is also obligated under various operating lease agreements for equipment.  Rent expenses under all
equipment leases are recorded in selling general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations. 
 
Ohio Office Lease

On June 21, 2013, the Company signed a lease commitment for its office and apartment space in Cincinnati, Ohio.  The lease expires on
August 30, 2018 and requires annual payments of $53,676 with increases in increments of 3% each year thereafter.  Rent expense will be
recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.  The lease contains one option to renew the lease for a term of sixty (60)
months at the then prevailing market rates.
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New York Office Lease

On January 9, 2015, the Company signed an amendment to its corporate headquarter lease.  The amendment covers an additional 8,887
square feet of floor space in the same building as the original lease.  The new floor space lease expires in March 31, 2020.  This lease
requires base annual rental payments of $488,785 for the term of the lease.  Lease payments will be recognized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.  As part of this lease agreement, among other requirements, the Company is obligated to obtain a Letter of
Credit in the amount of $244,393 which will expire on July 31, 2020 (see Note 10 - Letter of Credit and Restricted Cash).

New York Office Sub-lease

On February 15, 2014, the Company signed a twenty-four month agreement to sub-lease a portion of its office facilities in New York City
expiring in February 29, 2016.  The lease requires base annual rental payments to the Company of $120,000 for the term of the
lease.  Rental income will be recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  As part of the lease agreement, the Company
received a $30,000 security deposit, which is shown as a liability on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.  On April 1, 2015,
the Company amended and extended the sub-lease through August 31, 2018 and increased the rental payments to include variable
increases to offset a portion of increases from the Company’s corporate headquarter lease.

On April 1, 2015, the Company signed a forty-one (41) month agreement to sub-lease a portion of its office facilities in New York City
expiring August 31, 2018.  The lease requires increasing rental payments over the next year of the lease, followed by base annual rental
payments to the Company of $102,000, plus variable increases for the remaining term of the lease.  As part of the lease agreement, the
Company received a $20,000 security deposit, which is shown as a liability on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.  Rental
income will be recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
 
California Office Leases

On April 29, 2014, the Company signed a lease amendment for its office facilities in San Ramon, California.  The amendment extends
the lease past the May 31, 2014 expiration date on a month to month basis with monthly rental payments of $2,836.  On June 30, 2014,
the Company cancelled the lease, and the lease expired on September 30, 2014.
 
On April 16, 2014, the Company signed a thirty-eight month lease agreement for its office facilities in Pleasanton, California expiring on
August 31, 2017.  The lease requires base annual rent of approximately $34,000 for the first year, with increases in increments of 3%
each year thereafter.  The lease contains a two month rent abatement period starting in July 2014.  Rent expense will be recognized on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease.  The lease contains one option to renew for a term of thirty-six months.

Oregon Office Lease

On September 24, 2015 the Company signed an eighty-five month agreement for up to approximately 12,187 square feet of office and
warehouse space which commences on March 1, 2016 and expires on March 31, 2023.  The lease requires an initial base annual rental
payments of $188,466 with increases in base rent of approximately 3%.  Rental income will be recognized on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.  As part of the lease agreement, the Company paid a $27,819 security deposit, which will be shown as a security deposit
asset on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Deferred Rent

To induce the Company to enter into certain operating leases, landlords have granted free rent for various months over the term of
occupancy.  Rent expenses recorded on the straight-line basis in excess of rents paid is recognized as deferred rent.  For the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, deferred rent was $69,415 and $55,429, respectively, which is shown as a liability in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.
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The Company’s capital lease obligations for computer software and hardware as of December 31, 2015 are as follows:
 

2016  $ 148,811 
2017   124,167 
2018   72,910 
2019   -  
2020   -  
Thereafter   -  
Total   345,888 
Amount representing interest   31,179 
Present value of future minimum lease payments   314,709 
Current portion of capital lease obligations   129,857 
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion  $ 184,852 

Future minimum payments of the Company’s capital leases are as follows:
 

2016  $ 129,857 
2017   114,066 
2018   70,786 
2019   -  
2020   -  
Thereafter   -  
Total  $ 314,709 

 
Note 19 – Concentrations and Credit Risks

Revenues

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company had two significant customers that accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s
total revenues: one company generated $1,438,151, a second company generated $2,867,298 in revenues for services provided in the
CMS business segment.  For the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company had two significant customers that accounted for more
than 10% of the Company’s total revenues: one company generated $1,572,140 and a second company generated $1,699,599 in revenues
for services provided in the CMS business segment.

The Company’s sales to its top five customers accounted for approximately 56% and 52% of revenues during the year ended December
31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.  During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company had one foreign customer accounting for 22%
of its revenues.  During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Company had one foreign customer accounting for just under 9% of its
revenues.

Accounts Receivable

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had approximately 56% and 57% of its accounts receivable balance held
by the largest five customers, respectively.  During each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had three
customers accounting for more than 10% each of its accounts receivables balances, respectively.

Accounts Payable

For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had approximately 42% and 26% of its accounts payable balances held
by its largest five vendors, respectively.  During each of these same periods, the Company had one and none of its vendors accounting for
more than 10% each of the Company’s accounts payables balances, respectively.
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Note 20 – Income Taxes

Effective June 27, 2014, the Company converted into a C-Corporation.  Going forward, the Company will be subject to federal and state
income taxes and will have to recognize income tax expense and deferred taxes for financial statement purposes.  Deferred taxes are
computed based on the tax liability or benefit in future years of the reversal of temporary differences in the recognition of income or
deduction of expenses between financial and tax reporting purposes, increased by net operating loss carryforwards of which expire
through 2035. 

Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards are approximately $6,846,000 and $53,692 at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.  A valuation allowance has been established for the full amount of the net deferred tax assets to reduce such net assets to
zero, as a result of the significant uncertainty regarding their ultimate realization.  The aggregate valuation allowance increased
$2,570,000 in 2015.  The net difference, if any, between the provision for taxes and taxes currently payable is reflected in the balance
sheet as deferred taxes.  Deferred tax assets and/or liabilities, if any, are classified as current and non-current based on the classification
of the related asset or liability for financial reporting purposes, or based on the expected reversal date for deferred taxes that are not
related to an asset or liability.  Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to that amount which is more likely than
not to be realized.  The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2015.
 
The provision for income taxes includes the following:
 

  

December 31,
2015

(Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
Current:       
Federal  $ (7,654)  $ - 
State   -    -  
         

Total Current Provision   (7,654)   -  
         
Deferred:         
Federal  $ (415,969)  $ (136,111)
State   (43,543)   (25,144)
         

Total deferred   (459,512)   (161,255)
         

Income tax benefit  $ 451,858  $ 161,255 
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The effects of temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards that give rise to significant portions of federal deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are presented below for the periods indicated:
 

  

December 31,
2015

(Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
       
Deferred tax assets:       
       
Net operating loss carry-forwards  $ 2,680,597  $ 53,692 
         
Accrued compensated absences   -    60,164 
Charitable contributions   2,451   -  
Acquisition costs   76,705   -  
Deferred revenues   -    26,294 
Share based compensation   555,504   -  
Deferred rent   27,066   21,302 
         
Net deferred tax assets   3,342,323   161,452 
         
Valuation allowance   (2,570,190)   -  
         
Deferred tax liabilities:         
         
Property and equipment   -    (197)
Prepaid expenses   (135,003)     
Depreciation and amortization   (637,130)   -  
Total deferred tax liabilities   (772,133)   (197)
         
Net deferred tax assets  $ -  $ 161,255 
 
 
On June 25, 2014, Initial Koncepts, Inc. converted from an S-Corporation into a California limited liability company (“LLC”) and
changed its name to Six Dimensions, LLC.  From inception through June 26, 2014, the Company was taxed as an S-Corporation under
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and applicable state statutes.  Under an S-Corporation election, the income of the
Company flows through to the stockholders to be taxed at the individual level rather than the corporate level.  Accordingly, the
Company had no tax liability at the federal level (with limited exceptions) as long as the S-Corporation election was in effect.  On June
27, 2014, Six Dimensions, LLC converted into a Nevada C-Corporation and changed its name to Six Dimensions, Inc.

When the Company was an S-Corporation, the income allocable to each shareholder is subject to examination by federal and state
taxing authorities. In the event of an examination of the income tax returns, the tax liability of the stockholders could be changed if an
adjustment in the income is ultimately determined by the taxing authorities.
 
Deferred taxes are computed based on the tax liability or benefit in future years of the reversal of temporary differences in the
recognition of income or deduction of expenses between financial and tax reporting purposes.  The net difference, if any, between the
provision for taxes and taxes currently payable is reflected in the balance sheet as deferred taxes.  Deferred tax assets and/or liabilities,
if any, are classified as current and non-current based on the classification of the related asset or liability for financial reporting
purposes, or based on the expected reversal date for deferred taxes that are not related to an asset or liability.  Valuation allowances are
recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to that amount which is more likely than not to be realized.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions.  The Company’s income tax
returns are open to examination by federal, state and foreign tax authorities, generally for the years ended December 31, 2012 and later,
with certain state jurisdictions open for audit for earlier years.  The Company has no amount recorded for any unrecognized tax
benefits as of December 31, 2015, nor did the Company record any amount for the implementation of ASC 740.  The Company’s
policy is to record estimated interest and penalty related to the underpayment of income taxes or unrecognized tax benefits as a
component of its income tax provision.  The Company did not recognize any interest or penalties in its consolidated statements of
operations and there are no accruals for interest or penalties at December 31, 2015.  The Company is not currently under examination
by any tax jurisdiction.
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The difference between the total income taxes computed at the federal statutory rate and the benefit rom income taxes consists of the
following for the periods indicated:
 

  

December 31,
2015

(Audited)   

December 31,
2014

(Audited)  
       
Federal statutory rate   34.00%   34.00%
         
State taxes net of federal benefit   2.21%   5.16%
         
Changes in valuation allowance   (14.63)%  -%
         
Changes in tax filing status   -%   8.99%
         
Non-deductible expenses   (18.75)%  3.99%
         
Other   (0.26)%  -%
         
Income tax benefit – Federal   2.57%   52.14%

 
The Company is subject to U.S. federal income taxes and income taxes in various states in the U.S. Tax regulations within each
jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and regulations and require significant judgment to apply.  Due to the
Company’s NOL’s, all years remain open to examination by the major domestic taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subject.  In
addition, all the NOL’s and credit carryforwards that may be used in future years are still subject to adjustment.  The Company is not
currently under examination by any tax jurisdiction.
 
Note 21 – Business Geographic Segment Information

ASC 280, Segment Reporting, establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments.  Operating segments are
defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief
operating decision maker, or decision making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.  The
Company’s chief operating decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer, who reviews the financial performance and the results of
operations of the segments prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP when making decisions about allocating resources and assessing
performance of the Company.  The Company has determined that its two reportable segments are CMS and IT Staffing.  CMS offers
web content management solutions, marketing cloud solutions, mobile applications, analytics, front-end user experience and design, and
marketing automation.  The IT Staffing segment provides contract and contract-to-hire IT professional staffing services.  During the
current year, the Company has allocated additional selling, general, and administrative expenses and other expenses to the CMS business
segment to reflect the Company’s focus on the digital market space most serviced by the CMS business Segment.  Costs excluded from
segment operating income include various corporate expenses such as share-based compensation expense, income taxes, other income
and expenses, various nonrecurring charges, and other separately managed general and administrative costs.
 
There are currently no intersegment revenues.  Asset information by operating segment is not presented below since the chief operating
decision maker does not review this information by segment.  The reporting segments follow the same accounting policies used in the
preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements which are described in Note 4 – Significant and Critical Accounting
Policies and Practices.
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Segment information relating to the Company’s results of operations was as follows for the periods indicated:

  For the Years Ended  

Revenues  
December 31,

2015 (Audited)   
December 31,

2014 (Audited)  
       
CMS  $ 11,229,654  $ 6,863,959 
IT Staffing   1,560,238   4,933,854 
Total  $ 12,789,892  $ 11,797,813 

  For the Years Ended  

Gross Margin  
December 31,

2015 (Audited)   
December 31,

2014 (Audited)  
       
CMS  $ 4,737,208  $ 3,243,563 
IT Staffing   324,440   1,128,393 
Total  $ 5,061,648  $ 4,371,956 

  For the Years Ended  
 
Business Segment Performance  

December 31,
2015 (Audited)   

December 31,
2014 (Audited)  

       
CMS  $ (4,267,719)  $ 813,722 
IT Staffing   (406,759)   (237,499)
Total  $ (4,674,478)  $ 576,223 

 
 

  For the Years Ended  

Net (Loss) Income  
December 31,

2015 (Audited)   
December 31,

2014 (Audited)  
Business Segment Performance  $ (4,674,478) $ 576,223 
Interest expense, net   (281,411)  (147,069)
Depreciation and amortization   (564,839)  (82,342)
Income tax benefit   451,858   161,255 
Stock Based Compensation to Employees and Board of
Directors   (1,424,672)  -  
Compensation expense of former principals of acquired
companies   (250,000)  -  
Acquisition related expenses   (169,191)  -  
One-time Professional and Legal fees   (911,456)  -  
Loss on debt extinguishment   -    (57,502)
Loss on derivative liability   (9,292,720)  -  
Other income   5,619   20,000 
Net (loss) income  $ (17,111,290) $ 470,565 

 
Note 22      – Prior Year Restatement

In connection with completing the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2015, the Company identified that prior to the
2014 recapitalization, personal shares of common stock had been granted by the Founder and CEO to various employees and contractors
for services provided to the Company.  The shares have a grant date of September 20, 2014 and vest over a period of four years.  The
corresponding 2014 and 2015 expense will be reflected within the 2015 Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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In accordance with the guidance provided by the SEC’s Staff Accounting Bulletin 99, Materiality (“SAB 99”) and Staff Accounting
Bulletin 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements (“SAB 108”), the Company has determined that the impact of adjustments relating to the corrections of this accounting error
are not material to previously issued annual audited and unaudited consolidated financial statements.  Accordingly, these changes are
disclosed herein and will be disclosed prospectively.

As a result of the aforementioned correction of accounting errors, the relevant quarterly and annual financial statements have been
restated as follows (all amounts in $USD except per share data):

Item  

As of
September 30,

2014 as
Previously
Reported   

As of
September 30,

2014
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Current Assets   6,238,952   6,238,952   -  
Current Liabilities   2,175,634   2,175,634   -  
Working Capital   4,063,318   4,063,318   -  
Total Assets   6,498,465   6,498,465   -  
Long Term Liabilities   245,756   245,756   -  
Total Liabilities   2,421,390   2,421,390   -  
Total Equity   4,077,075   4,077,075   -  

 

Item  

As of
December 31,

2014 as
Previously
Reported   

As of
December 31,

2014
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Current Assets   6,594,456   6,594,456   -  
Current Liabilities   2,001,869   2,001,869   -  
Working Capital   4,592,587   4,592,587   -  
Total Assets   6,884,147   6,884,147   -  
Long Term Liabilities   249,979   249,979   -  
Total Liabilities   2,251,848   2,251,848   -  
Total Equity   4,632,299   4,632,299   -  

 

Item  

As of
March 31,

2015 as
Previously
Reported   

As of
March 31,

2015
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Current Assets   4,862,542   4,862,542   -  
Current Liabilities   2,566,956   2,566,956   -  
Working Capital   2,295,586   2,295,586   -  
Total Assets   14,906,830   14,906,830   -  
Long Term Liabilities   4,368,495   4,368,495   -  
Total Liabilities   6,935,451   6,935,451   -  
Total Equity   7,971,379   7,971,379   -  
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Item  

As of
June 30, 2015

as
Previously
Reported   

As of
June 30, 2015
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Current Assets   3,707,612   3,707,612   -  
Current Liabilities   3,073,374   3,073,374   -  
Working Capital   634,238   634,238   -  
Total Assets   13,700,149   13,700,149   -  
Long-Term Liabilities   690,203   690,203   -  
Total Liabilities   3,763,577   3,763,577   -  
Total Equity   9,936,572   9,936,572   -  

Item  

As of
September 30,

2015 as
Previously
Reported   

As of
September 30,

2015
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Current Assets   11,626,581   11,626,581   -  
Current Liabilities   3,289,524   3,289,524   -  
Working Capital   8,337,057   8,337,057   -  
Total Assets   21,411,714   21,411,714   -  
Long-Term Liabilities   13,026,037   13,026,037   -  
Total Liabilities   16,315,561   16,315,561   -  
Total Deficit   (5,181,709)   (5,181,709)   -  

 

Item  

Quarter Ended
September 30,

2014
as Previously

Reported   

Quarter Ended
September 30,

2014
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Revenues   2,709,066   2,709,066   -  
Cost of revenues   1,713,409   1,713,409   -  
Gross margin   995,657   995,657   -  
Operating expenses   874,389   1,038,358   163,969 
Income (loss) from operations   121,268   (42,701)   (163,969)
Other expense   (81,934)  (81,934)   -  
Income (loss) before tax expense   39,334   (124,635)   (163,969)
Net income (loss)   31,589   (132,380)   (163,969)
Basic EPS   -    -    -  
Diluted EPS   -    -    -  
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Item  

Year-to-date
September 30,

2014
as Previously

Reported   

Year-to-date
September 30,

2014
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Revenues   8,299,053   8,299,053   -  
Cost of revenues   4,952,021   4,952,021   -  
Gross margin   3,347,032   3,347,032   -  
Operating expenses   2,504,776   2,668,745   163,969 
Income from operations   842,256   678,287   (163,969)
Other expense   (163,371)  (163,371)   -  
Income before tax expense   678,885   514,916   (163,969)
Net income   731,007   567,038   (163,969)
Basic EPS   0.02   0.02   -  
Diluted EPS   0.02   0.02   -  

 

Item  

Quarter Ended
December 31,

2014
as Previously

Reported   

Year Ended
December 31,

2014
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Revenues   3,498,760   3,498,760   -  
Cost of revenues   2,473,836   2,473,836   -  
Gross margin   1,024,924   1,024,924   -  
Operating expenses   1,373,299   1,563,739   190,440 
Loss from operations   (348,375)  (538,815)   (190,440)
Other expense   (21,200)  (21,200)   -  
Loss before tax benefit   (369,575)  (560,015)   (190,440)
Net loss   (260,442)  (450,882)   (190,440)
Basic EPS   (0.01)  (0.01)   -  
Diluted EPS   (0.01)  (0.01)   -  

 

Item  

Year-to-date
December 31,

2014
as Previously

Reported   

Year-to-date
December 31,

2014
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Revenues   11,797,813   11,797,813   -  
Cost of revenues   7,425,857   7,425,857   -  
Gross margin   4,371,956   4,371,956   -  
Operating expenses   3,878,075   4,232,484   354,409 
Income from operations   493,881   139,472   (354,409)
Other expense   (184,571)  (184,571)   -  
Income before tax expense   309,310   (45,099)   (354,409)
Net income   470,565   116,156   (354,409)
Basic EPS   0.01   0.01   -  
Diluted EPS   0.01   0.01   -  
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Item  

Quarter Ended
March 31,

2015
as Previously

Reported   

Quarter Ended
March 31, 2015

as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Revenues   3,275,585   3,275,585   -  
Cost of revenues   1,903,828   1,903,828   -  
Gross margin   1,371,757   1,371,757   -  
Operating expenses   1,900,615   2,082,247   181,632 
Loss from operations   (528,858)  (710,490)   (181,632)
Other expense   (33,004)  (33,004)   -  
Loss before tax benefit   (561,862)  (743,494)   (181,632)
Net loss   (379,445)  (561,077)   (181,632)
Basic EPS   (0.01)  (0.01)   -  
Diluted EPS   (0.01)  (0.01)   -  

 

Item  

Quarter Ended
June 30, 2015
as Previously

Reported   

Quarter Ended
June 30, 2015
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Revenues   3,220,343   3,220,343   -  
Cost of revenues   2,041,679   2,041,679   -  
Gross margin   1,178,664   1,178,664   -  
Operating expenses   3,064,487   3,175,577   111,090 
Loss from operations   (1,885,823)  (1,996,913)   (111,090)
Other expense   (148,024)  (148,024)   -  
Loss before tax benefit   (2,033,847)  (2,144,937)   (111,090)
Net loss   (1,762,637)  (1,873,727)   (111,090)
Basic EPS   (0.02)  (0.02)   -  
Diluted EPS   (0.02)  (0.02)   -  

 

Item  

Year-to-date
June 30, 2015
as Previously

Reported   

Year-to-date
June 30, 2015
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Revenues   6,495,928   6,495,928   -  
Cost of revenues   3,945,507   3,945,507   -  
Gross margin   2,550,421   2,550,421   -  
Operating expenses   4,965,102   5,257,824   292,722 
Loss from operations   (2,414,681)  (2,707,403)   (292,722)
Other expense   (181,028)  (181,028)   -  
Loss before tax benefit   (2,595,709)  (2,888,431)   (292,722)
Net loss   (2,142,082)  (2,434,804)   (292,722)
Basic EPS   (0.04)  (0.04)   -  
Diluted EPS   (0.04)  (0.04)   -  
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Item  

Quarter Ended
September, 30

2015
as Previously

Reported   

Quarter Ended
September 30,

2015
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Revenues   3,115,726   3,115,726   -  
Cost of revenues   1,857,173   1,857,173   -  
Gross margin   1,258,553   1,258,553   -  
Operating expenses   3,194,060   3,298,985   104,925 
Loss from operations   (1,935,507)  (2,040,432)   (104,925)
Other expense   (4,479,676)  (4,479,676)   -  
Loss before tax benefit   (6,415,183)  (6,520,108)   (104,925)
Net loss   (6,408,718)  (6,513,643)   (104,925)
Basic EPS   (0.22)  (0.22)   -  
Diluted EPS   (0.22)  (0.22)   -  

 

Item  

Year-to-date
September 30,

2015
as Previously

Reported   

Year-to-date
September 30,

2015
as Corrected   

Difference
Increase

(Decrease)  
Revenues   9,611,654   9,611,654   -  
Cost of revenues   5,802,680   5,802,680   -  
Gross margin   3,808,974   3,808,974   -  
Operating expenses   8,159,162   8,556,809   397,647 
Loss from operations   (4,350,188)  (4,747,835)   (397,647)
Other expense   (4,660,704)  (4,660,704)   -  
Loss before tax benefit   (9,010,892)  (9,408,539)   (397,647)
Net loss   (8,550,800)  (8,948,447)   (397,647)
Basic EPS   (0.25)  (0.25)   -  
Diluted EPS   (0.25)  (0.25)   -  

 
Note 23       – Subsequent Events

On January 1, 2016, the Company entered into a written employment agreement with Mark Szynkowski, the Company’s Chief Financial
Officer.  Mr. Szynkowski previously was an at-will employee without an employment agreement.  Refer to the Company’s Form 8-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 19, 2016 or further details regarding this employment agreement.

On January 14, 2016, the Company and NYGG (Asia) Ltd., and on behalf of its affiliates (the “Stockholders”), entered into a
stockholders’ agreement (the “Stockholders’ Agreement”) in regards to the 35,629,883 shares of Common Stock owned by the
Stockholders (the “Shares”).  Pursuant to the Stockholders’ Agreement, the Stockholders granted to Tejune Kang, Chairman and CEO of
the Company, and any successor to or designee of the CEO, as Stockholders’ proxy with the full power to vote the Shares at any annual
or special meeting of stockholders, or in connection with any action taken by written consent, in the same manner and in the same
proportion as shares of Common Stock that are not held by the Stockholders are voted or consents are given.  Refer to the Company’s
Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 20, 2016 for further details regarding the Stockholders’
Agreement.
 
During 2015, the Company had entered into a Loan and Security Agreement through California Bank of Commerce for a term of one
year which automatically renews yearly.  The agreement includes an Interest Rate of 3.75% plus the prime rate with a minimum of
7.00% in addition to specific performance covenants which provides California Bank of Commerce with recourse in the event that the
Company is deemed to be out of covenant.
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The Company had entered into a First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement effective March 1 st, 2016.  The amendment
provides succession of specific sections of the original loan agreement as follows;

· Percentage of Net Collateral available was changed from 85% to 80%.  All other terms and provisions herein are unchanged.

· Depending on the interest rate determined with respect to this First Amendment, and from and after the March 1, 2016 reference
date, the “Interest Rate” shall be either the “Standard Rate” Rate of 4.75% plus the prime rate with a minimum of 8.00% or the
“Preferred Rate” Rate of 3.75% plus the prime rate with a minimum of 7.00%.  To the extent the Interest Rate is calculated with
reference to the Base Rate, any change in the Interest Rate shall be effective as of the date of any change in the Base Rate. 
Subject to the Company satisfying the certain conditions such as the Company satisfies or exceeds each and every one of the
financial ratio and covenant thresholds, suspension of trading of Guarantor’s securities as a publicly traded company is lifted and
Guarantor is then actively listed as a publicly traded company, and current or new litigation is dismissed, or is settled or resolved
on terms and conditions acceptable to Lender, the interest rate for any current accounting period shall be the Preferred Rate.

If the Preferred Rate Conditions set forth in the agreement are not satisfied, then the Interest Rate for any Current Accounting Period
shall be the Standard Rate; provided however, imposition of interest at the Standard Rate shall be subject to the provisions of this First
Amendment and the Loan Agreement related to the imposition of the Alternative Interest Rate, Special Credit Accommodation Fees,
the Default Interest Rate, and/or other fees and charges imposed under the Loan Agreement.

The Company was informed by the California Bank of Commerce on May 1 st, 2016 that we are out of covenant in the following
section:
 
The company was informed on May 1st, 2016 that the California Bank of Commerce is entitled to and will assess interest at the
Alternative Interest Rate of a 6% increase to the Interest Rate in the Loan Agreement of 3.75% plus the prime rate as provided for in
the covenants.
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CONFIDENTIAL SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

This CONFIDENTIAL SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT (this “Subscription Agreement”) is dated as of the 29th day of
September, 2014, between 6D Acquisitions, Inc., a Nevada corporation, with principal offices at 17 State Street, Suite 450, New York,
New York 10004 (the “Company”) and the person or persons listed and signing on the signature page hereto (the “Subscriber”).  All
documents mentioned herein are incorporated by reference.

W I T N E S S E T H :

WHEREAS, the Company is a special purpose vehicle formed for the purpose of investing in the reorganized entity following a
proposed share exchange (the “Share Exchange”) between CleanTech Innovations, Inc., a publicly traded Nevada corporation
(“CleanTech”), and Initial Koncepts, Inc., a California corporation d/b/a Six Dimensions (“6D”) (www.sixdimensions.com) whereby
CleanTech will issue 266,787,609 shares of its common stock, equal to approximately fifty percent (50%) of its outstanding shares of
common stock, to the shareholders of 6D in exchange for all of the outstanding shares of 6D (the “Exchange”), thereby rendering 6D a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CleanTech prior to the Exchange, Initial Koncepts, Inc. will convert into a Nevada corporation “Six
Dimensions, Inc.”;

WHEREAS, prior to or simultaneous with the closing of the Share Exchange, and as a condition thereto, CleanTech shall have
(i) obtained shareholder approval to amend its Articles of Incorporation to: (A) increase its authorized common stock to 1,200,000,000
shares, par value $0.0000001 per share, (B) change the name of the company to “6D Global Technologies, Inc.” and (C) authorize the
conversion of the company into a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Delaware; (ii) obtained approval by NASDAQ of
the listing of the company’s common stock on the NASDAQ Capital Market; (iii) obtained the resignation of all of the company’s China-
based officers and directors and the appointment of new officers and directors; (iv) completed the spin-off of all of the company’s China-
based operations and assets in exchange for the satisfaction and/or assumption of all liabilities of the company in excess of $500.00 and
the return of 17,729,403 shares of common stock by the shareholders of the company to be retired and returned to CleanTech’s treasury;
and (v) completed the conversion by NYGG (Asia) Ltd., the largest creditor of the company, of all of its outstanding debt and liabilities
held in CleanTech into 242,534,190 shares of CleanTech’s common stock immediately following the closing.  (The form of the proposed
Agreement and Plan of Share Exchange is attached as Appendix “D”);

WHEREAS, there are currently an aggregate of 24,982,822 shares of CleanTech Common Stock issued and outstanding and
pursuant to the provisions of the proposed Share Exchange, 17,729,403 shares will be cancelled in the Spin-Out, NYGG (Asia) Ltd. will
be issued 242,534,190 shares of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant to the Conversion of all of its notes, loans, debts, advances and
liabilities made to, in, by or on behalf of the Company, and 266,787,609 Exchange Shares will be issued to the shareholders of 6D.  Upon
raising the Maximum Offering of $5.1 million, CleanTech will be capitalized as follows:

266,787,609 shares Exchange Shares issued to 6D
242,534,190 shares Exchange Shares issued to NYGG Asia post-conversion
7,253,419 shares Public Shares post-cancellation of 17,729,403 shares
17,000,000 shares Investors in Offering (assuming $5,100,000 maximum)

2,550,000 shares
Placement Agent’s 15% equity fee
(5-year Warrants, assuming $5,100,000 maximum offering is completed)

536,125,218 shares Total Issued and Outstanding (including Warrants)

WHEREAS, it shall be a condition to the closing of the Share Exchange that the Company complete the Offering (as defined
herein);

WHEREAS, upon completion of the Offering and Share Exchange, CleanTech’s operations shall be conducted through its new
subsidiary 6D (such post-Share Exchange Nasdaq listed parent entity to be referred to herein as “6DT”);

WHEREAS, upon the completion of the Offering and immediately upon the closing of the Share Exchange, all of the
Company’s common stock underlying the Units (as defined herein) offered hereby will be automatically exchanged into shares of 6DT on
a 1:1 basis;

WHEREAS, the Company has engaged Radnor Research & Trading Company, LLC, as the Company’s exclusive placement
agent (the “Placement Agent”) to assist the Company selling the Units;



WHEREAS, in the event the Share Exchange is not consummated, all subscriptions shall be returned to the subscribers herein
without interest, deduction or offset; and

WHEREAS, upon completion of the Offering, the Share Exchange and the Financing Exchange, 6DT may undergo a reverse-
split of its then-outstanding common stock at the Company’s sole discretion (the “Reverse Split”).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and respective mutual covenants, representations and warranties herein
contained, the parties hereto, intending to be legally bound hereby, agree as follows:

1. The Offering.

(a) This Subscription Agreement is for the purchase of subscription units (the “Units”), each Unit to consist of fifty
thousand (50,000) shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”).  The purchase price for
each Unit shall be fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000), and the minimum subscription per Subscriber shall be $10,000, or two-thirds (2/3)
of one (1) Unit (the “Offering”).  The Company reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to accept fractional subscriptions.

(b) Immediately upon the closing and effectiveness of the Share Exchange, each share of Common Stock underlying
the Units purchased herein shall be automatically converted on a 1:1 basis into shares of 6DT’s Nasdaq listed common stock (the
“Financing Security Exchange”), such shares shall be distributed to the Subscribers herein and the Company shall subsequently be
dissolved.  The shares comprising the Units will subject to the Split

(c) The minimum offering (the “Minimum Offering”) shall be three million dollars ($3,000,000) and the maximum
offering (the “Maximum Offering”) shall be five million one hundred thousand dollars ($5,100,000).

(d) This Offering is being made only to accredited investors who qualify as accredited investors pursuant to the
suitability standards for investors described under Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and
those investors whom have no need for liquidity in their investments.

 
2. The Parties.
 
(a) Initial Koncepts, Inc, doing business as Six Dimensions (“6D”) (www.sixdimensions.com) is a California

corporation originally formed in California as Initial Koncepts, Inc. in 2004 by Silicon Valley entrepreneurs with extensive technology
and management consulting services industry backgrounds, previously having held positions at PeopleSoft (now Oracle Corporation) and
other global technology firms. With offices in Ohio, New York and California, 6D has evolved quickly into a reputable and award-
winning technology services provider that counts many of the largest U.S.-based technology players, Fortune 500 companies and
universities, among other institutions, as its clients.  From enterprise software upgrades to complete implementation, 6D offers multi-
faceted and deep domain technology expertise across the widest range of markets and programming languages, earning the Company and
its senior management numerous accolades by industry observers and its peers.  The unaudited financial statements of 6D for the period
ended March 31, 2014 are attached hereto as Annex “A”.  6D has retained Marcum LLP as its independent auditor.  Initial Koncepts, Inc.,
will convert into a Nevada corporation named Six Dimensions, Inc. prior to the closing of the Exchange.

 
(b) CleanTech Innovations, Inc. is a NASDAQ-listed public company domiciled in the State of Nevada with its main

operations in China. The Company designs and manufacturers structural towers for megawatt-class wind turbines serving China’s clean
technology industry as well as highly engineered metal components used in China’s steel and energy industries.  This Offering
contemplates, that CleanTech will acquire 6D and will conduct all its operations through 6D.

 
(c) 6D Acquisitions, Inc. is a special purpose vehicle formed for the purpose of investing in the reorganized entity

following a proposed share exchange (the “Share Exchange”) between CleanTech and Six Dimensions.  Following the closing of the
Share Exchange and the issuance of the shares purchased in the Offering to the Subscribers, the Company will be dissolved.

 
3. Conditional Closing.  The closing of the Offering and the transactions contemplated hereby are conditioned upon

the closing of the Share Exchange and the transactions and conditions contemplated thereby.  It is a condition to close the Share Exchange
that the Company shall have received the Minimum Offering amount in the Company’s designated escrow account at Continental Stock
Transfer & Trust Company. In the event the Minimum Offering amount is not received by the Escrow Agent into the Company’s
designated escrow account



by June 30, 2014 (unless otherwise extended by the Company and the Placement Agent  in their sole discretion to September 30, 2014),
all subscriptions shall be returned to the Subscribers without interest, deduction or offset.
 

4. Risks Related to Investing in the Units.  Investing in the Units involves a high degree of risk.  Upon
consummation of the Share Exchange, 6D will become the operational subsidiary of CleanTech.  The Financing Security Exchange will
cause each share of Common Stock underlying the Units to be exchanged for shares of CleanTech’s common stock.  Therefore, an
investment in the Units is subject to the general and operational risks of both 6D and CleanTech.   The Subscriber acknowledges
that there are significant risks associated with the purchase of the Units and that such securities are highly speculative and should
not be purchased by anyone who cannot afford a total loss of his and her investment.  6D is subject to a number of risk factors,
including but not limited to:

 
Risks Specific to 6D

6D’s business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially impacted by economic conditions and related
fluctuations in client demand for marketing, business, technology and other consulting services.  The market for our consulting
services and the technologies used in our solutions historically has tended to fluctuate with economic cycles, particularly those cycles in
the U.S., where we earn the majority of our revenues.  During economic cycles in which many companies are experiencing financial
difficulties or uncertainty, clients and potential clients may cancel or delay spending on marketing, technology and other business
initiatives. Our efforts to down-size, when necessary, in a manner intended to mirror downturned economic conditions could be delayed
and costly and could also result in us having inadequate people resources as economic conditions improve. A downturn could result in
reduced demand for our services, assignment cancellations or delays, lower revenues and operating margins resulting from price reduction
pressures for our services, and payment and collection issues with our clients. Any of these events could materially and adversely impact
our business, financial condition and results of operations.
 
Our markets are highly competitive and we may not be able to continue to compete effectively.  The markets for the services we provide
are highly competitive.  We compete principally with large systems consulting and implementation firms, traditional and digital
advertising and marketing agencies, offshore consulting and outsourcing companies, and clients’ internal information systems
departments.  To a lesser extent, other competitors include boutique consulting firms that maintain specialized skills and/or are
geographically focused.  Some of our competitors have significantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources, and generate
greater revenues and have greater name recognition, than we do. Often, these competitors offer a larger and more diversified suite of
products and services than we offer. If we cannot keep pace with the intense competition in our marketplace, our business, financial
condition and results of operations will suffer.
 
6D operates in a highly competitive environment, which could adversely affect its sales and pricing.  6D operates in a highly
competitive environment, and its outlook depends on a forecast of 6D’s share of sales based on its ability to compete with others in the
marketplace. 6D competes on the basis of price, quality, product performance and customer service. There can be no assurance that 6D’s
products and services will be able to compete successfully with other companies’ products.  Thus, 6D’s share of industry sales could be
reduced due to aggressive pricing or product strategies pursued by competitors, unanticipated raw material shortages, refurbishing or
remanufacturing difficulties, 6D’s failure to price its products competitively, its failure to produce products at a competitive cost or an
unexpected buildup in inventories, leading to severe downward pressure product prices.  Changes in market acceptance of prices, changes
in market requirements for price discounts or changes in competitors’ behavior could have an adverse impact on 6D’s business, results of
operations and financial condition.
 
6D anticipates it may require additional financing in the future .  While 6D believes the proceeds from this Offering will be sufficient to
expand and grow its business in the near future, it may require additional financing to expand and grow its business.  There can be no
assurance that financing sufficient to enable 6D to expand and grow its business will be available in the future.  The inability to obtain
future financing or to produce levels of revenue to meet financial needs could result in 6D’s inability to operate, grow and expand the
business.
 
6D’s business, financial condition and results of operations may be materially impacted by military actions, global terrorism, natural
disasters and political unrest.  Military actions in Iraq, Afghanistan and elsewhere, global terrorism, natural disasters and political unrest
in the Middle East and other countries are among the factors that may adversely impact regional and global economic conditions and,
concomitantly, 6D’s clients’ ability, capacity and need to invest in 6D’s services.  Additionally, hurricanes or other unanticipated
catastrophes, both in the U.S. and globally, could disrupt 6D’s operations and negatively impact 6D’s business as well as disrupt 6D’s
clients’ businesses, which may result in a further adverse impact on 6D’s business.  As a result, significant disruptions caused by such
events could materially and adversely affect 6D’s business, financial condition and results of operations.



If 6D does not attract and retain qualified professional staff, 6D may be unable to perform adequately 6D’s client engagements and
could be limited in accepting new client engagements.  6D’s performance is largely dependent on the talents and efforts of highly skilled
individuals.  6D’s future success depends on its continuing ability to identify, hire, develop, motivate and retain highly skilled personnel
for all areas of its organization.  6D’s continued ability to compete effectively depends on its ability to retain and motivate its existing
employees.  Failure to attract, integrate, motivate, and retain current and/or additional key employees could have a material adverse effect
on 6D’s business, operating results and financial condition.
 
The success of 6D’s business depends in large part on 6D’s ability to develop solutions and service offerings that keep pace with the
changes in the markets in which 6D provides its services.  The professional services markets in which 6D operates are characterized by
rapid technological change, evolving industry standards, changing customer preferences and new product and service introductions.  6D’s
future success will depend on 6D’s ability to develop solutions and service offerings that keep pace with changes in the markets in which
6D provides services.  No assurances can be made that 6D will be successful in developing new services addressing evolving technologies
in a timely or cost-effective manner or, if these services are developed, that 6D will be successful in offering and deploying them in the
marketplace.  In addition, 6D cannot be sure that products, services or technologies developed by others will not render 6D’s services
non-competitive or obsolete.  6D’s failure to address the demands of the rapidly evolving technological environment could have a
material adverse effect on 6D’s business, results of operations and financial condition.  6D’s ability to remain competitive will also
depend on our ability to design and implement, in a timely and cost-effective manner, solutions for clients that both leverage their legacy
systems and appropriately utilize newer technologies.
 
Changes in 6D’s effective tax rate or tax liability may have an adverse effect on 6D’s results of operations.  6D’s effective tax rate
could be adversely impacted by several factors, some of which are outside 6D’s control, including: (a) changes in relative amounts of
income before taxes in the various jurisdictions in which 6D operates that have differing statutory tax rates; (b) 6D’s ability to accurately
value certain assets, including intellectual property; (c) changes in tax laws and the interpretation of those tax laws; (d) changes to 6D’s
assessments about the realizability of 6D’s deferred tax assets which are based on estimates of 6D’s future results, the prudence and
feasibility of possible tax planning strategies and 6D’s internal structure, and the economic environment in which we do business; (e) the
outcome of future tax audits and examinations; and (f) changes in generally accepted accounting principles that affect the accounting for
taxes.
 
6D may not be able to recognize revenue in the period in which 6D’s services are performed, which may contribute to fluctuations in
6D’s revenue and margins .  6D provides its services under time-and-materials, fixed-price and retainer contracts.  All revenue is
recognized pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles. These principles require 6D to recognize revenue once evidence of an
arrangement has been obtained, services are delivered, fees are fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.  If 6D
performs its services prior to the period in which 6D is able to recognize the associated revenue, 6D’s revenue and margins may fluctuate
from quarter to quarter.
 
6D’s profitability will be adversely impacted if 6D is unable to maintain 6D’s pricing and utilization rates as well as control 6D’s
costs.  6D’s profitability derives from and is impacted by three primary factors: (a) the prices for 6D’s services; (b) 6D’s professionals’
utilization or billable time; and (c) 6D’s costs.  To achieve 6D’s desired level of profitability, 6D’s utilization must remain at an
appropriate rate, and 6D must contain its costs.  Should 6D reduce its prices in the future as a result of pricing pressures, or should 6D be
unable to achieve 6D’s target utilization rates and costs, 6D’s profitability could be adversely impacted.
 
6D’s clients could unexpectedly terminate their contracts for 6D’s services .  Most of 6D’s contracts can be canceled by the client with
limited advance notice and without significant penalty.  A client’s termination of a contract for 6D’s services could result in a loss of
expected revenues and additional expenses for staff that were allocated to that client’s assignment.  6D could be required to maintain
underutilized employees who were assigned to the terminated contract.  The unexpected cancellation or significant reduction in the scope
of any of 6D’s large assignments, or client termination of one or more recurring revenue contracts could have a material adverse effect on
6D’s business, financial condition and results of operations.
 
6D may be unable to achieve anticipated benefits from acquisitions.  The anticipated benefits from any acquisitions that 6D has
undertaken in the past or may undertake might not be achieved.  For example, if 6D acquires a company, 6D cannot be certain that clients
of the acquired business will continue to conduct business with 6D, or that employees of the acquired business will continue their
employment or integrate successfully into 6D’s operations and culture.  The identification, consummation and integration of acquisitions
require substantial attention from management.  The diversion of management’s attention, as well as any difficulties encountered in the
integration process, could have an adverse impact on 6D’s business, financial condition and results of operations.  Further, we may incur
significant expenses in completing any such acquisitions, and 6D may assume significant liabilities, some of which may be unknown at
the time of the acquisition.



Risks Related to the Securities Markets and Investments in the Units
 
6D’s management team does not have extensive experience in public company matters.  6D’s  management team has had limited public
company management experience or responsibilities, which could impair our ability to comply with legal and regulatory requirements
such as the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and applicable federal securities laws including filing required reports and other information
required on a timely basis.  There can be no assurance that our management will be able to implement and affect programs and policies in
an effective and timely manner that adequately respond to increased legal, regulatory compliance and reporting requirements imposed by
such laws and regulations. Our failure to comply with such laws and regulations could lead to the imposition of fines and penalties and
further result in the deterioration of 6D’s business.
 
There may be limitations on the effectiveness of 6D’s internal controls, and a failure of our control systems to prevent error or fraud
may materially harm our company.  Proper systems of internal controls over financial accounting and disclosure are critical to the
operation of a public company.  6D is at the very early stages of establishing, and 6D may not be unable to effectively establish such
systems, especially in light of the fact that 6D expects to operate as a subsidiary of a publicly reporting company. This would leave 6D
without the ability to reliably assimilate and compile financial information about 6D and significantly impair 6D’s ability to prevent error
and detect fraud, all of which would have a negative impact on 6D’s company from many perspectives.  Moreover, 6D does not expect
that disclosure controls or internal control over financial reporting, even if established, will prevent all error and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s
objectives will be met.  Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and the benefits of
controls must be considered relative to their costs.  Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. Failure of its control systems to
prevent error or fraud could materially adversely impact 6D.
 
6D does not intend to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future and, therefore, any return on your investment in our capital
stock must come from increases in the fair market value and trading price of the capital stock.  6D has not paid any cash dividends on
our common stock and do not intend to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.  6D intends to retain future
earnings, if any, for reinvestment in the development and expansion of 6D’ business.  Any credit agreements, which 6D may enter into
with institutional lenders, may restrict 6D’s ability to pay dividends.  Whether we pay cash dividends in the future will be at the discretion
of 6D’s board of directors and will be dependent upon 6D’s financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements and any other
factors that the board of directors decides is relevant.  Therefore, any return on your investment in 6D’s capital stock must come from
increases in the fair market value and trading price of the capital stock.
 
6D may issue additional equity shares to fund 6D’s operational requirements which would dilute your share ownership.  6D’s
continued viability depends on its ability to raise capital.  Changes in economic, regulatory or competitive conditions may lead to cost
increases.  Management may also determine that it is in the best interest of 6D to develop new services or products.  In any such case
additional financing is required for 6D to meet its operational requirements.  In such event, 6D may be required to materially alter its
business plan or curtail all or a part of its operational plans.  While 6D currently has no offers to sell it securities to obtain financing, sale
or the proposed sale of substantial amounts of its common stock in the public markets may adversely affect the market price of 6D’s
common stock and 6D’s stock price may decline substantially.  In the event that 6D is unable to raise or borrow additional funds, 6D may
be required to curtail significantly its operational plans.
 
The offering price of the Units was determined arbitrarily. The offering price of the Units does not bear any relation to book value,
assets, earnings or other objective criteria of value and has been arbitrarily determined by the Company, 6D, CleanTech or 6DT; nor does
it necessarily reflect the market price of CleanTech’s common stock .  There can be no assurance that the shares will trade at a value
commensurate with the offering price.
 
Because a small number of shareholders will own a large percentage of the Company’s stock, you will have minimal influence over
shareholder decisions.  Certain individuals will have significant ownership in 6DT and will retain significant control of 6DT in the
future.  As a result of such ownership concentration, this group of individuals will have significant influence over the management and
affairs of 6D, 6T and its business.  They will also exert considerable, ongoing influence over matters subject to stockholder approval,
including the election of directors and significant corporate transactions, such as a merger, sale of assets or other business combination or
sale.  This concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying, deferring, or preventing a change in control, impeding a merger,
consolidation, takeover or other business combination involving us, or discouraging a potential acquirer from making a tender offer or
otherwise attempting to obtain control of 6DT, even if such a transaction would benefit other stockholders.



IN ADDITION TO THE ABOVE RISKS, AN INVESTMENT IN THE UNITS IS SUBJECT TO THE RISKS OF
CLEANTECH.  The Subscriber should carefully consider the Risk Factors contained in CleanTech’s most recent annual report on
Form 10-K, as updated or supplemented by subsequent quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and current reports on Form 8-K to the extent
filed, each of which are incorporated herein by reference, as the same may be updated from time to time by future filings under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, before making an investment decision.  If any of such Risk Factors actually occur, the
CleanTech’s business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could be materially adversely affected, the trading
price of its common stock could decline significantly, and the Subscriber might lose all or part of its investment.  Additional risks and
uncertainties that CleanTech’s is unaware of or that CleanTech’s believes are not material at this time could also materially adversely
affect CleanTech’s business, financial condition or results of operations.  In any case, the value of the CleanTech’s common stock or
other securities could decline, and the Subscriber could lose all or part of its investment.  The Subscriber represents and warrants that
he or she has carefully considered and reviewed all the information contained within the reports CleanTech’s files with the
Commission.

 
5. Representations and Warranties of the Subscriber .  The Subscriber hereby represents and warrants to the

Company as follows:
 
(a) The Subscriber hereby irrevocably agrees to purchase the Units for the amount set forth by Subscriber on the

signature page to this Subscription Agreement if and when such subscription is accepted by the Company in its sole discretion.  The
Subscriber shall tender to the Company, at the time of his or her subscription, the entire amount of Subscriber’s subscription.  Payment of
such amount shall be made by wire transfer to the Escrow Agent in accordance with the instructions on the second page of this offering
booklet at the time Subscriber tenders Subscriber’s subscription documents.

 
(b) The Subscriber understands and agrees that, after the Company’s receipt of this Agreement, the Company will

review Subscriber’s eligibility and will determine whether to accept or reject this subscription in whole or in part, in its sole and absolute
discretion, for any reason whatsoever.  The purchase and sale of Units pursuant to this Agreement will be effective only if, when and to
the extent the Company, in its sole discretion, accepts Subscriber’s subscription by countersignature on the signature page hereof
indicating the Units being sold and, if Subscriber’s payment for the Units is made.  If the subscription has been rejected for any reason,
payment relating to any Units will be promptly returned, without interest, deduction or offset.

 
(c) The Subscriber acknowledges that the Company has not made nor is making any representations or warranties,

express or implied, concerning, among other things, the present or likely value of the Units, or the prospects of the Company.  The
Subscriber is aware that the purchase of Units involves a high degree of risk and can result in a complete loss of the Subscriber’s
investment.  In subscribing for Units, Subscriber acknowledges that, notwithstanding any financial projections or sources and uses of
proceeds provided to the Subscriber for illustrative purposes, the Subscriber is not relying upon the Company or 6DT attaining any
projected results of operations, cash flow or financial condition in making an investment in Units.

 
(d) The Subscriber (i) is an accredited investor within the meaning of Rule 501 of the Securities and Exchange

Commission (the “Commission”) under the Securities Act; (ii) understands the meaning of the term “accredited investor” and that, in
order to be treated as an accredited investor, Subscriber must meet one of the tests for an accredited investor set forth on Appendix A to
this Agreement; and (iii) has read Appendix A and is an accredited investor based on satisfying the test for accredited investors as set forth
on the signature page of this Agreement;

 
(e) The Subscriber is a sophisticated investor in securities of companies and acknowledges that Subscriber can bear

the economic risk of the Subscriber’s investment, and that the Subscriber has such knowledge and experience in financial and business
matters as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in Units.  The Subscriber acknowledges that the information
set forth in the Offering materials is not intended to be exhaustive and is provided only as a guide to assist the Subscriber in making an
independent investigation of the Company.  The Subscriber understands that the Offering materials does not contain all of the information
that would normally be contained in a prospectus used in a public offering, or in an offering memorandum typically used in a private
offering.  The Subscriber acknowledges having had the opportunity to ask questions of the Company concerning the Company’s business
and activities and prospects, the Units and the terms and conditions of this Offering, 6DT’s planned operations and prospects, and obtained
such additional information and reviewed such documents as the Subscriber deemed necessary.

 
(f) The Company has fully answered all inquiries of the Subscriber, if any, concerning such matters and has afforded

the Subscriber the opportunity to obtain any additional information (to the extent that the Company possesses such information or could
acquire it without unreasonable effort or expense) necessary to verify the accuracy of any information given to the Subscriber.  The
Subscriber has discussed the Offering



materials and all related matters, to the extent the Subscriber deems necessary, with the Subscriber’s legal, tax, accounting, financial and
other advisors, including, without limitation, to the extent relevant, the matters referred to in subsections (d) and (e) of this Section.  The
Subscriber is aware of the tax consequences of owning Units, is aware of the ability of the Company, and upon conclusion of the Merger,
6DT, to issue additional shares of common stock, and that the Subscriber may suffer significant dilution in the event that the Company or
6DT raises additional funds through the issuance of its securities.  The Subscriber has independently determined that the Units are a
suitable investment of Subscriber.
 

(g) The Subscriber recognizes, understands and acknowledges that there are substantial restrictions on the
transferability of Units, and that Subscriber may have to hold Units indefinitely and may not be able to liquidate Subscriber’s investment
in Units when Subscriber wishes to do so, if at all, because among other things: (i) Units cannot be offered or sold unless an exemption
from registration is available under the Securities Act or the Units are registered under the Securities Act, and (ii) the Company is under
no obligation to register the Units or assist the Subscriber in complying with any exemption from registration.  Accordingly, the
Subscriber will not transfer any Units except in compliance with all applicable federal and state securities laws and regulations, and, in
such connection, the Company may request an opinion of counsel reasonably acceptable to the Company as to the availability of any
exemption.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares of Common Stock underlying the Units shall be automatically exchanged into
shares of 6DT upon the effectiveness of the Merger.

 
(h) The Subscriber’s overall commitment to investments is not disproportionate to the Subscriber’s net worth; the

purchase of Units will not cause the Subscriber’s overall commitments to such investments to become disproportionate or excessive; and
the Subscriber has adequate means of providing for the Subscriber’s current needs and personal contingencies and has no need for
liquidity in this investment.

 
(i) The Subscriber agrees, acknowledges and understands that if it is a Registered Representative of a FINRA

member firm, he or she must give such firm the notice required by FINRA’s Rules of Fair Practice, receipt of which must be
acknowledged by such firm in the investor questionnaire attached hereto as Exhibit A.

 
(j) The Subscriber is acquiring Units pursuant to this Agreement for investment and not with a view to the sale or

distribution thereof, for Subscriber’s own account and not on behalf of others and has not granted any other person any interest or
participation in or right or option to purchase all or any portion of the Units.  No other person has, or will upon acquisition or
immediately thereafter, have a direct or indirect beneficial interest in the Units.  Subscriber is aware that the Units are restricted securities
within the meaning of Rule 144 of the Securities Act, and may not be sold or otherwise transferred other than pursuant to an effective
registration statement or an exemption from registration.  The Subscriber understands the meaning of these restrictions.  The Subscriber is
not participating, directly or indirectly, in an underwriting or any such distribution or other transfer of the Units.  The Subscriber does not
now have reason to anticipate any change in the Subscriber’s circumstances or any other particular event which would cause the
Subscriber to have a need to sell the Units.

 
(k) The Subscriber is not subscribing for the Units as a result of or subsequent to any advertisement, article, notice or

other communication published in any newspaper, magazine or similar media or broadcast over television or radio, or presented at any
seminar or meeting.

 
(l) The Subscriber has relied on the advice of, or has consulted with, only the Subscriber’s own legal, tax, financial,

investment and other advisors to the extent that Subscriber deems advisable.
 
(m) The Subscriber is a resident of the jurisdiction set forth on the signature page hereto.
 
(n) If the Subscriber is a corporation, partnership, trust, limited liability company or other entity, it represents that:

(i) it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing in its jurisdiction of incorporation or organization and has all requisite power
and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and to invest in the Units provided herein; (ii) an investment in the Company will
not result in any violation of, or conflict with, any term or provision of the charter, bylaws or other organizational documents of the
Subscriber or any other instrument or agreement to which the Subscriber is a party or is subject; (iii) an investment in the Company has
been duly authorized by all necessary action on behalf of the undersigned; and (iv) this Subscription Agreement has been duly executed
and delivered on behalf of the Subscriber and constitutes a legal, valid and binding agreement of the undersigned.

 
(o) If the Subscriber is a corporation, partnership, trust, limited liability company or other entity, the person signing

this Agreement on its behalf hereby represents and warrants that the information being provided by signing this Agreement is true and
correct with respect to such corporation, partnership, trust, limited liability company or other entity, as the case may be.



(p) If the Subscriber is purchasing the Units subscribed for hereby in a representative or fiduciary capacity, the
representations and warranties contained herein (and in any other written statement or document delivered to the Company in connection
herewith) shall be deemed to have been made on behalf of the person or persons for whom such Units are being purchased.

 
(q) There is no requirement applicable to the Subscriber to make any filing with, or to obtain any permit,

authorization, consent, waiver or approval of, any person or any governmental or regulatory authority as a condition to the lawful
consummation by the Subscriber of the purchase of Units pursuant to this Agreement, which has not already been obtained.

 
(r) Neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Subscriber nor the consummation of the transactions

contemplated herein will (i) result in a default or constitute an event of default or a breach (or gives rise to any right of termination,
cancellation or acceleration, or result in any lien, charge or encumbrance upon any property or assets of the Subscriber) under any of the
terms, conditions or provisions of any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, agreement, lease or other instrument or obligation to which the
Subscriber is a party or by which the Subscriber or any of its properties or assets is bound, or (ii) violate any order, writ, injunction,
decree, statute or regulation or any other restriction of any kind or character in the United States applicable to the Subscriber or any of its
properties or assets, which violation would have a material adverse effect on its business or operations.

 
(s) The Subscriber represents and warrants that no broker or finder was involved directly or indirectly in connection

with the Subscriber’s purchase of Units pursuant to this Agreement.  The Subscriber shall indemnify the Company and hold it harmless
from and against any manner of loss, liability, damage or expense, including fees and expenses of counsel, resulting from a breach of the
Subscriber’s warranty contained in this Section unless the Company has agreed in advance to payment to such finder or broker.

 
(t) The Subscriber acknowledges that none of the Offering materials have been approved or disapproved by the

Commission or any other Federal or state governmental agency or any national securities exchange.  Neither the Commission nor any
such agency or exchange of any jurisdiction has passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of any of the Offering materials or the merits of an
investment in the Units.  Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

 
(u) All of the information provided by the Subscriber to the Company in this Agreement and related documentation

is true and correct.  The Subscriber has been informed by the Company that the issuance of the Units pursuant to this Agreement is
intended to be exempt under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act and: (A) Regulation D, and in particular, Rule 506, of the Commission
promulgated under the Securities Act or (B) the safe-harbor set forth in Regulation S adopted under the Securities Act that provides
certain offerings conducted outside the United States are not subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act, and similar
exemptions under state law and applicable exemption under state securities laws, and the Subscriber understands that such exemption is
dependent upon the accuracy of the information contained in the Subscriber’s representations set forth in this Agreement.  The Subscriber
represents and warrants that the address set forth on the signature page is the Subscriber’s true and correct address, and understands that
the Company will rely on the Subscriber’s representations contained in this Agreement and the information furnished to the Company in
connection with this subscription including in making filings under state securities or blue sky laws.

 
(v) The Subscriber agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company and its directors, officers, shareholders,

affiliates, advisers, placement agent and its representatives, counsel and employees and anyone acting on behalf of the Company from and
against all damages, losses, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) which they may incur by reason of any breach of the
representations and warranties made by Subscriber in this Agreement, or in any document provided by the Subscriber to the Company.

 
(w) This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and

supersede all prior agreements, understandings, offers and negotiations, oral or written, with respect thereto and no extrinsic evidence
whatsoever may be introduced in any judicial or arbitration proceeding, if any, involving this Agreement.

 
(x) The Subscriber agrees, acknowledges and understands that the Company and its counsel, are entitled to rely on

the representations, warranties and covenants made by the Subscriber herein.
 
6. Representations and Warranties of the Company .  The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Subscriber

as follows:
 
(a) There are no material misstatements or omissions in this Subscription Agreement or any information provided in

the Offering materials.



(b) The Company is a corporation duly formed and in good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada with full
power and authority to conduct its business as presently contemplated.

 
(c) The Company has the power to execute, deliver and perform this Subscription Agreement and any other

agreement contemplated herein.
 
(d) If and when the Company accepts the Subscriber’s subscription and the applicable funds clear, the Subscriber

will become a holder of the Units.
 
7. Confidentiality.
 
(a) The Subscriber acknowledges that in connection with the Units the Subscriber may have access to books and

records of the Company and its affiliates (individually or collectively, for purposes of this Section 4, the “Company”) or other information
of the Company or its business that is proprietary or otherwise confidential, the unauthorized disclosure or use of which could cause
material harm to the Company’s business.  Accordingly, Subscriber hereby agrees that the Subscriber shall hold the Company’s
Confidential Information (as hereafter defined) strictly confidential and will not make any use of or disclose, nor authorize or permit any
third party to use or disclose, in whole or in part, any Confidential Information nor disclose any Confidential Information, in whole or in
part, to any third party, except in connection with the enforcement of the Subscriber’s rights under this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby.  However, the Subscriber may furnish or otherwise disclose the Confidential Information to any professional
adviser who needs to know such information for the purpose of assisting the Subscriber in the evaluation of any such rights or claims (the
“Subscriber’s Agent ”) provided that (i) each Subscriber’s Agent shall be informed by of the confidential nature of the Confidential
Information, and (ii) the Subscriber shall be responsible for any breach of this Agreement by each Subscriber’s Agent.

 
(b) “Confidential Information” means any and all confidential and proprietary information or trade secrets of the

Company, of any nature, whether written or oral and in any medium, relating directly or indirectly to the Company, its personnel,
customers, suppliers and other third parties, which is not generally known or which the Company deems confidential, including, without
limitation, supplier lists, distributor lists, customer lists, price lists, financial statements and other financial matters, business plans, market
research and strategies, contracts, inventions, patents, patent applications, software, hardware, manufacturing and sale processes and any
other proprietary processes, methods, research activities and/or know-how and similar items.  However, “Confidential Information” shall
not include any information which the Subscriber can demonstrate (i) is generally known outside the industry in which the Company
operates at the time of disclosure, or that subsequently becomes generally known through no fault of the Subscriber; (ii) was already
known to the Subscriber at the time of disclosure by the Company and which knowledge is supported by documentary evidence; or (iii)
was independently developed by a Subscriber, without reliance on or reference to any Confidential Information disclosed by the Company
and which independent development is supported by documentary evidence.

 
(c) The Subscriber acknowledges that the Subscriber’s covenants in this Section 6 are a material inducement to the

Company to the acceptance by the Company of the Subscriber’s subscription to purchase Units.  The Subscriber hereby agrees that the
Subscriber’s breach or threatened breach of any of the provisions of this Section 6 shall cause immediate and irreparable harm to the
Company, and, in such event, that the Company may obtain, without the posting of any bond, preliminary and permanent injunctions
prohibiting the Subscriber from use or disclosure of the Confidential Information from any court of competent jurisdiction, in addition to
and without limiting any other remedies available to the Company at law or in equity.

 
(d) The covenants and obligations of the Subscriber contained in this Section 4 shall survive any termination of this

Agreement and the payment of the Units or the termination of Subscriber’s ownership interest in the Company.  Upon the Company’s
request, the Subscriber shall return or destroy any copies of Confidential Information that Subscriber has in Subscriber’s possession or
control, as well as any documents incorporating or describing such Confidential Information, and deliver to the Company a certification
that such destruction or return has occurred.

 
8. Miscellaneous.
 
(a) Except as otherwise specifically stated herein, all notices provided for in this Agreement shall be in writing

signed by the party giving such notice, and sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier or sent by registered or certified mail (air
mail if overseas), return receipt requested.  Notices shall be deemed to have been given three days after mailing or one day after delivery
to overnight courier.  Notices shall be sent to the Company, at 17 State Street, Suite 450, New York, New York 10004, and to Subscriber
at Subscriber’s address and facsimile number set forth on the signature page, or to such other address as any party shall designate in the
manner provided in this Section 8(a).



(b) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof,
superseding any and all prior or contemporaneous oral and prior written agreements, understandings and letters of intent.  This Agreement
may not be modified or amended nor may any right be waived except by a writing which expressly refers to this Agreement, states that it
is a modification, amendment or waiver and is signed by all parties with respect to a modification or amendment or the party granting the
waiver with respect to a waiver.  No course of conduct or dealing and no trade custom or usage shall modify any provisions of this
Agreement.  The failure of either party at any time to require performance by the other party of any provision of this Agreement shall in
no way affect the right to require such performance at any time thereafter, nor shall the waiver by either party of a breach of any provision
of this Agreement be taken or held to be a waiver of any succeeding breach of such provision or as a waiver of the provision itself.

 
(c) This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York

applicable to contracts made and to be performed entirely within such State without giving effect to New York’s choice of laws rules. 
Each of the parties hereby (i) irrevocably consents and agrees that any legal or equitable action or proceeding arising under or in
connection with this Agreement, other than those seeking injunctive relief, shall be brought exclusively in any Federal or state court in the
State of New York (but may be appealed to any court with appropriate jurisdiction); (ii) irrevocably submits to and accepts, with respect
to his or its properties and assets, generally and unconditionally, the jurisdiction of the aforesaid courts; and (iii) agrees that any action
against such party may be commenced by service of process by any method of notice set forth in this Agreement other than facsimile.

 
(d) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, and their respective

successors and permitted assigns.
 
(e) Neither this Agreement nor any of Subscriber’s rights hereunder may be transferred or otherwise assigned

hereunder except with the prior written consent of the Company, which may be granted or withheld in its sole discretion.
 
(f) This Agreement may be executed and delivered in two or more counterparts and by facsimile or electronic copy

(pdf), each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same document.
 
(g) The various representations, warranties, and covenants set forth in this Agreement or in any other writing

delivered in connection therewith shall survive the issuance of the Units.

[-Signature page follows-]



SIGNATURE PAGE

The Subscriber hereby offers to purchase and subscribe to ____________ Unit(s) and encloses payment of $15,000 per unit for an
aggregate investment of $_____________.

 __________________________________
Name of Subscriber
 

  
 __________________________________

Signature of Subscriber
 

  
 __________________________________

Name of Joint Subscriber
(If Applicable)
 

  
 __________________________________

Signature of Joint Subscriber
(If Applicable)
 

  
 __________________________________

Name and Title of Authorized Signatory
(If Applicable)
 

  
 __________________________________

(Print) Street Address - Residence
 

  
 __________________________________

(Print) City, State and Zip Code
 

  
 __________________________________

Social Security/Taxpayer I.D. Number (If any):
 

AGREED TO AND ACCEPTED:

As of _______, 2014

6D ACQUISITIONS, INC.

By: ____________________________
Name: Tejune Kang
Title: Chief Executive Officer



Appendix A - Accredited Investors

A Subscriber who meets any one of the following tests is an accredited investor:
 

(a) (a)    Subscriber is an individual who has a net worth, or joint net worth with Subscriber’s spouse, of at least
$1,000,000.  For these purposes, the term “net worth” means the excess of total assets over total liabilities; however, it excludes the fair
market value of your primary residence unless the indebtedness exceeds the fair market value.

 
(b) Subscriber is an individual who had individual income of more than $200,000 (or $300,000 jointly with

Subscriber’s spouse) for the past two years, and Subscriber has a reasonable expectation of having income of at least $200,000 (or
$300,000 jointly with Subscriber’s spouse) for the current year.

 
(c) Subscriber is an executive officer of the Company.
 
(d) Subscriber is a bank as defined in section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act or any savings and loan association or

other institution as defined in section 3(a)(5)(A) of the Securities Act whether acting in its individual or fiduciary capacity.
 
(e) Subscriber is a broker or dealer registered pursuant to section 15 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
 
(f) Subscriber is an insurance company as defined in section 2(13) of the Securities Act.
 
(g) Subscriber is an investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 or a business

development company as defined in section 2(a)(48) of that Act.
 
(h) Subscriber is a small Business Investment Company licensed by the U.S. Small Business Administration under

section 301(c) or (d) of the Small Business Investment Act of 1958.
 
(i) Subscriber is an employee benefit plan within the meaning of Title I of the Employee Retirement Income

Security Act of 1974, if the investment decision is made by a plan fiduciary, as defined in section 3(21) of such Act, which is either a
bank, savings and loan association, insurance company, or registered investment adviser, or if the employee benefit plan has total assets in
excess of $5,000,000 or, if a self-directed plan, with investment decisions made solely by persons that are accredited investors.

 
(j) Subscriber is a private business development company as defined in Section 202(a)(22) of the Investment

Advisers Act of 1940.
 
(k) Subscriber is an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, corporation,

Massachusetts or similar business trust, or Company, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the securities offered, with total
assets in excess of $5,000,000.

 
(l) Subscriber is a trust, with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the

securities offered, whose purchase is directed by a sophisticated person as described in Rule 506(b)(2)(ii) of the Commission under the
Securities Act.

 
(m) Subscriber is an entity in which all of the equity owners are accredited investors (i.e., all of the equity owners

meet one of the tests for an accredited investor).
 

If an individual investor qualifies as an accredited investor, such individual may purchase the Shares in the name of Subscriber’s
individual retirement account (“IRA”).



Exhibit C

IRS Form W-9
for submission of SSN/Taxpayer Identification Number

[Attached.  Instructions for the form may be found at:
http://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf]



ANNEX A

Unaudited Financial Statements for Six Dimensions
For the Period Ending March 31, 2014

 
 
 
 



Exhibit 10.13

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of January 1, 2016, between 6D Global Technologies, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), and Mark Szynkowski (the “Employee”).

W I T N E S S E T H :

WHEREAS, the Company desires to employ the Employee as its Chief Financial Officer  and to be assured of his services on the terms
and conditions hereinafter set forth; and

WHEREAS, the Employee is willing to be employed as Chief Financial Officer of the Company on such terms and conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Compensation Committee”) has recommended to
the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) that this Agreement be entered into by the Company, and the Board has authorized and
approved the execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth in this Agreement, the Company and the
Employee hereby agree as follows:

1.Employment and Term.

The Company hereby employs the Employee as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, and the Employee accepts such continued
employment, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the
date hereof (the “Commencement Date”) and shall terminate on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Commencement Date (the “Term”),
subject to earlier termination as provided herein.

2.Duties.

(a)During the Term of this Agreement, the Employee shall serve as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and shall
perform all duties commensurate with his position and as may be assigned to him by the Board. The Employee shall
devote his full business time and energies to the business and affairs of the Company and shall use his best efforts, skills
and abilities to promote the interests of the Company, and to diligently and competently perform the duties of his
position.

(b)The Employee shall report to the Chief Executive Officer, and shall communicate regularly with the Board of Directors
on corporate financial matters.



3.Compensation, Bonus, Benefits, etc.

(a)Salary.   During the Term of this Agreement, the Company shall pay           to the Employee, and the Employee shall
accept from the Company, as compensation for the performance of services under this Agreement and the Employee’s
observance and  performance of all of the provisions hereof, an annual salary at the rate of $215,000.00 (the “Base
Compensation”).

(b)Bonus. In addition to the Base Compensation described above, the Employee shall be entitled to a Bonus for Fiscal year
2016 based upon a combination of Company revenue and targets as defined in the Corporate Bonus Program. The bonus
shall be payable to the Employee in the first payroll cycle post the completion of the six (6) month bonus period
(January 1st through June 30th  and July 1st  through December 31st).

(c)Benefits. During the Term of this Agreement, the Employee shall be entitled to participate in or benefit from, in
accordance with the eligibility and other provisions thereof, the Company’s medical insurance and other fringe benefit
plans or policies as the Company may make available to, or have in effect for, its senior executive officers from time to
time. The Company and its affiliates retain the right to terminate or alter any such plans or policies from time to time.
The Employee shall also be entitled to paid vacation, sick leave and other similar benefits in accordance with policies of
the Company from time to time in effect for its senior executive officers.

(d)Reimbursement of Business Expenses. During the Term of this Agreement, upon submission of proper invoices, receipts
or other supporting documentation reasonably satisfactory to the Company and in accordance with and  subject  to  the 
Company’s expense reimbursement policies, the Employee shall be reimbursed by the Company for all reasonable
business expenses actually and necessarily incurred by the Employee on behalf of the Company in connection with the
performance of services under this Agreement, including but not limited to: public and private transportation; business
transportation; lodging; business association memberships; and continuing education.

 
(e)Taxes. The Base Compensation and any other cash compensation paid  to Employee, including, without limitation, any

bonus, shall be subject to withholding for applicable taxes and other amounts.
 

4.Representations of Employee.

The Employee represents and warrants that he is not party to, or bound by, any agreement or commitment, or subject to any restriction,
including but not limited to agreements related to previous employment containing confidentiality or noncompetition covenants, which
limit the ability of the Employee to perform his duties under this Agreement.



5.Confidentiality, etc.

For purposes of this Section 5, all references to the Company shall be deemed to include the Company’s affiliates and subsidiaries and
their respective subsidiaries, whether now existing or hereafter established or acquired. In consideration for the compensation and
benefits provided to the Employee pursuant to this Agreement, the Employee agrees with the provisions of this Section 5. The
“Restrictive Period” is defined as one  (1)  year,  commencing  from  date employment terminates with the Company (hereafter referred to
as “Termination Date”) through the first (1st) anniversary of Termination Date.

(a)Confidential Information. (i) The Employee acknowledges that as a result of his retention by the Company, the
Employee has and will continue to have knowledge of, and access to, proprietary and confidential information of the
Company including, without limitation, research and development plans and results, software, databases, technology,
inventions, trade secrets, technical information, know-how, plans, specifications, methods of operations, product and
service information, product and service availability, pricing information (including pricing strategies), financial,
business and marketing information and plans, and the identity of customers, clients and suppliers (collectively, the
“Confidential Information”), and that the Confidential  Information, even though it may be contributed, developed or
acquired  by the Employee, constitutes valuable, special and unique assets of the Company developed at great expense
which are the exclusive property of the Company. Accordingly, the Employee shall not, at any time, either during or
subsequent to the Term of this Agreement, use, reveal, report, publish, transfer or otherwise disclose to any person,
corporation, or other entity, any of the Confidential Information without the prior written consent of the Company,
except to responsible officers and employees of the Company and other responsible persons who are in   a contractual or
fiduciary relationship with the Company and who have a need for such Confidential Information for purposes in the best
interests of the Company, and except  for  such Confidential Information which is or becomes of general public
knowledge from authorized sources other than by or through the Employee.

(ii) The Employee acknowledges that the Company would not enter into this Agreement without the assurance that
all the Confidential Information will be used for the exclusive benefit of the Company.

(b)Return of Confidential Information. Upon the termination of this Agreement or upon the request of the Company, the
Employee shall promptly return to the Company all Confidential Information in his possession or control, including but
not limited to all drawings, manuals, computer printouts, computer databases, disks, data, files, lists, memoranda, letters,
notes, notebooks, reports and other writings and copies thereof and all other materials relating to the Company’s
business, including, without limitation, any materials incorporating Confidential Information.

(c)Inventions, etc. During the Term and for a period of one year thereafter, the Employee will promptly disclose to the
Company all designs, processes, inventions, improvements, developments, discoveries, processes, techniques, and other
information related to the business of the Company conceived, developed, acquired, or reduced to practice by  him alone
or with others during the Term of this Agreement, whether or not conceived during regular working hours, through the
use of Company time, material or facilities or otherwise (“Inventions”).

The Employee agrees that all copyrights created in conjunction with his service to the Company and other Inventions, are “works made
for hire” (as that term is defined under the Copyright Act of 1976, as amended). All such copyrights, trademarks, and other Inventions
shall be the sole and exclusive property of the Company, and the Company shall be the sole owner of all patents, copyrights, trademarks,
trade secrets, and other rights and protection in connection therewith. To the extent any such copyright and other Inventions may not be
works for hire, the Employee hereby assigns to the Company any and all rights he now has or may hereafter acquire in such copyrights
and any other Inventions. Upon request the Employee shall deliver to the Company all drawings, models and other data and records
relating to such copyrights, trademarks and Inventions. The Employee further agrees as to all such Inventions, to assist the Company in
every proper way (but at the Company’s expense) to obtain, register, and from time to time enforce patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade
secrets, and other rights and protection relating to said Inventions in any and all countries, and to that end the Employee shall execute all
documents for use in applying for and obtaining such patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets and other rights and protection on and
enforcing  such Inventions, as the  Company may reasonably request, together with any assignments thereof to the Company or persons
designated by it. Such obligation to assist the Company shall continue beyond the termination of the Employee’s service to the Company,
but the Company shall compensate the Employee at a reasonable rate after termination of service for time actually spent by the Employee
at the Company’s request for such assistance. In the event the Company is unable, after reasonable effort, to secure the Employee’s
signature on any document or documents needed to apply for or prosecute any patent, copyright,  trademark,  trade  secret,  or  other  right
or protection relating  to  an  Invention,  whether  because  of  the  Employee’s  physical  or mental incapacity or for any other reason
whatsoever, the Employee hereby irrevocably designates and appoints the Company and its duly authorized officers and agents, during
the Term of this



Agreement and for a period of two years after termination of this Agreement, as his agent coupled with an interest and attorney-in-fact, to
act for and in his behalf and stead to execute and file any such application or applications and to do all other  lawfully  permitted  acts to
further the prosecution and issuance of patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets,    or similar rights or protection thereon with the
same legal force and effect as if executed by the Employee.

(d)Non-Competition. The Employee agrees not to utilize his special knowledge of the Business and his relationships with
customers, prospective customers, suppliers and others  or  otherwise  to  compete  with  the  Company  in  the Business
during  the Restricted Period. During the Restricted Period, the Employee shall not, and shall not permit any of his
respective employees, agents or others under his control, directly or indirectly, on behalf of the Employee or any other
Person, to engage or have an interest, anywhere in the world in which the Company conducts business or markets or
sells its products, alone or in association with others, as principal, officer, agent, employee, director, partner or
stockholder (except as an owner of two percent or less of the stock of any company listed on a national securities
exchange or traded in the over-the-counter market), whether through the   investment of capital, lending of money or
property, rendering of services or capital, or otherwise, in any Competitive Business. During the Restricted Period, the
Employee shall not, and shall not permit any of his respective employees, agents or others under his control, directly or
indirectly, on behalf of the Employee or any other Person, to accept Competitive Business from, or solicit the
Competitive Business of any Person who is a customer of the Business conducted by the Company, or, to the
Employee’s knowledge, is a customer of the Business conducted by the Company at any time during the Restricted
Period.

(e)Non-Disparagement and Non-Interference.  The Employee shall not, either directly or indirectly, (i) during the Restricted
Period, make or cause to be made, any statements that are disparaging or derogatory concerning the Company or its
business, reputation or prospects; (ii) during the Restricted Period, request, suggest, influence or cause any party,
directly or indirectly, to cease doing business with or to reduce its business with the Company or do or say anything
which could reasonably be expected to damage the business relationships of the Company; or (iii) at any time during or
after the Restricted Period, use or purport to authorize any Person to use any Intellectual Property owned by the
Company or exclusively licensed to the Company or to otherwise infringe on the intellectual property rights of the
Company.

(f)Non-Solicitation. During the Restricted Period, the  Employee shall  not recruit or otherwise solicit or induce any Person
who is an employee or consultant of, or otherwise engaged by Company, to terminate his or her employment or other
relationship with the Company, or such successor, or hire any person who has left the employ of the Company during
the preceding one year.

(g)Certain Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement: (i) the term “Business” shall mean the business of designing,
manufacturing, assembling, licensing, distributing, marketing and selling active outdoor performance products for
climbing, mountaineering, backpacking, skiing, cycling and other outdoor recreation activities, avalanche transceiver
technology, alpine safety products, and any other business that the Company or its subsidiaries may be engaged in
during the Term of this Agreement; (ii) the term “Competitive Business” shall mean any business competitive with the
Business; and (iii) the term “Restricted Period” shall mean the Term of this Agreement and a period of two years after
termination of this Agreement; provided, that, if Employee breaches the covenants set forth in this Section 5, the
Restricted Period shall be extended for a period equal to the period that a court having jurisdiction has determined that
such covenant has been breached.

6.Remedies.    The restrictions set forth in Section 5 are considered by the parties to be fair and reasonable. The Employee
acknowledges that the restrictions contained in Section 5 will not prevent him from earning a livelihood. The Employee
further acknowledges that the Company would be irreparably harmed and that monetary damages would not provide an
adequate remedy in the event of a breach of the provisions of Section 5. Accordingly, the Employee agrees that, in addition
to any other remedies available to the Company, the Company shall be entitled to injunctive and other equitable relief to
secure the enforcement of these provisions. In connection with seeking any such equitable remedy, including, but not limited
to, an injunction or specific performance, the Company shall not be required to post a bond as a condition to obtaining such
remedy. In any such litigation, the prevailing party shall be entitled to receive an award of reasonable attorneys’ fees and
costs.  If any provisions of Sections 5 or 6 relating to the time period, scope of activities or geographic area of restrictions is
declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to exceed the maximum permissible time period, scope of activities or
geographic area, the maximum time period, scope of activities or geographic area, as the case may be, shall be reduced to
the maximum which such court deems enforceable. If any provisions of Sections 5 or 6 other than those described in the
preceding sentence are adjudicated to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalid or unenforceable provisions shall be deemed
amended (with respect only to the jurisdiction in which such adjudication is made) in such manner as to render them
enforceable and to effectuate as nearly as possible the original intentions and agreement of the parties.  For purposes of this
Section 6, all references to the Company shall be deemed to include the Company's affiliates and subsidiaries, whether now
existing or hereafter established or acquired.



 

7.Termination.  This Agreement shall terminate at the end of the Term set forth   in Section 1. In addition, this Agreement may
be terminated prior to the end of the Term set forth in Section 1 upon the occurrence of any of the events set forth in, and
subject to the terms of, this Section 7.

(a)Death or Permanent Disability. If the Employee dies or becomes permanently disabled, this Agreement shall terminate
effective upon the Employee’s death    or when his disability is deemed to have become permanent. If the Employee is
unable to perform his normal duties for the Company because of illness or incapacity (whether physical or mental) for
45 consecutive days during the Term of this Agreement, or for 60 days (whether or not consecutive) out of any calendar
year during the Term of this Agreement, his disability shall be deemed to have become permanent.   If  this Agreement 
is  terminated  on  account   of the death or permanent disability  of  the Employee,  then  the  Employee  or  his  estate 
shall be entitled to receive accrued Base  Compensation  through  the  date  of  such termination, all granted but unvested
stock options held by the Employee shall immediately vest and the Employee or the Employee’s estate, as applicable,
shall have no  further entitlement to Base Compensation, bonus, stock options or benefits from the Company following
the effective date of such termination, except as provided in Section 3(b) and the last two sentences of Section 3(c) of
this Agreement; provided, however, that any bonus pursuant to Section 3(b) of this Agreement shall be paid only for the
year in which such termination occurred prorated for the portion of such year prior to such termination and shall be paid
at such time as the Board determines the bonuses for all senior executive officers of the Company for such year, but no
later than March 15 of the year following the year in which it was earned.

(b)Cause. This Agreement may be terminated at the Company’s option, immediately upon notice to the Employee, upon the
occurrence of any of the following (“Cause”): (i) breach by the Employee of any material provision of this Agreement
and the expiration of a 10-business day cure period for such breach after written notice thereof has been given to the
Employee (which cure period shall not be applicable to clauses (ii) through (iv) of this Section 7(b)); (ii) conviction or
plea of nolo contendre in connection with a crime; (iii) fraud, criminal conduct, dishonesty or embezzlement by the
Employee; or (iv) Employee’s misappropriation for personal use of any assets  of  a  material  value  or  business
opportunities f the Company. If this Agreement is terminated by the Company for Cause, then the Employee shall be
entitled to receive accrued Base Compensation through the date of such termination, all stock options, whether vested or
unvested, will be forfeited by the Employee and will terminate and be null and void and the Employee shall have no
further entitlement to Base Compensation, bonus, stock options, or benefits from the Company following the effective
date of such termination.

(c)Without Cause. This Agreement may be terminated, at any time by the Company without Cause immediately upon
giving written notice to the Employee of such termination. Upon the termination of this Agreement by the Company
without Cause, the Employee  shall  be  entitled  to  receive  three  (3)  months  Base  Salary or $53,750.00 in one lump
sum within five (5) days of the effective date of such termination, subject to withholding for applicable taxes and other
amounts, all granted but unvested stock options held by the Employee  shall  immediately  vest  and  the Employee shall
have no  further entitlement to Base Compensation, bonus, stock options or benefits from the Company following the
effective date of such termination, except as provided in the last two sentences of Section 3(c) of this Agreement.

(d)By Employee.

(i) Subject to the provisions of clause (ii) of this Section 7(d), the Employee may terminate this Agreement at any
time upon providing the Company with three (3) months prior written notice. If this Agreement is terminated by
the Employee pursuant to this Section 7(d)(i), then the Employee shall be entitled to receive his accrued Base
Compensation and benefits through the effective date of such termination, any unvested stock options shall
terminate and be null and void and the Employee shall have no further entitlement to Base Compensation,
bonus, stock options, or benefits from the Company following the effective  date of such termination, except as
provided in the last two sentences of Section 3(c) of this Agreement.

(ii) The Employee may terminate this Agreement upon the occurrence of any of the following: (A) a breach by the
Company of any material provision of this Agreement and the expiration of a 10-business day cure period for
such breach after written notice thereof has been given to the Company by the Employee; (B) any material
diminution in the authority or responsibilities delegated to the Employee as the chief executive officer of the
Company, unless agreed to by the Employee; or (C) any material reduction in the Employee’s Base
Compensation. Upon the termination of this Agreement by the Employee pursuant to this Section 7(d)(ii), the
Employee shall be entitled to  receive



 
three(3) months Base Salary or $53,750.00 in one lump sum within five (5) days of the effective date of such
termination, subject to withholding for applicable taxes and other amounts, all granted but unvested stock options
held by the Employee shall immediately vest and the Employee shall have no further entitlement to Base
Compensation, bonus, stock options or benefits from the Company following the effective date of such
termination, except as provided in the last two sentences of Section 3(c) of this Agreement.

(e)Change in Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change in Control (as hereinafter defined), the Employee shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement within 30 days of the occurrence of such Change in Control. Upon the termination of
this Agreement by the Employee due to the occurrence of a Change in Control, the Employee shall be entitled to receive
three (3) months Base Salary or $53,750.00 in one lump sum within five (5) days of the effective date of such
termination, subject to withholding for applicable taxes and other amounts and all granted but unvested stock options
held by the Employee shall immediately vest. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change in Control” of the Company
shall be deemed to have occurred in the event that: (i) individuals who, as of the date hereof, constitute the Board cease
for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board; provided, however, that any individual becoming a director
subsequent to the date hereof whose election, or nomination for election by the Company’s stockholders, was approved
by a vote of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the Board shall be considered as though such individual
was a member of the Board as of the date hereof; (ii) the Company shall have been sold by either (A) a sale of all or
substantially all its assets, or (B) a merger or consolidation, other than any merger or consolidation pursuant to which the
Company acquires another entity, or (C) a tender offer, whether solicited or unsolicited; or (iii) any party, other than the
Company, is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended), directly or indirectly, of voting securities of the Company representing 50% or more of the total voting power
of all the then- outstanding voting securities of the Company.

8.Miscellaneous.

(a)Survival. The provisions of Sections 4, 5, 6, 7 and 9 and the last two sentences of Section 3(c) shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

(b)Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties and, except as specifically set forth
herein, merges and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreements between the parties pertaining to the subject
matter hereof.

(c)Modification. This Agreement may not be modified or terminated orally, and no modification, termination or attempted
waiver of any of the provisions hereof shall be binding unless in writing and signed by the party against whom the same
is sought to be enforced.

(d)Waiver. Failure of a party to enforce one or more of the provisions of this Agreement or to require at any time
performance of any of the obligations hereof shall not be construed to be a waiver of such provisions by such party nor
to in any way affect the validity of this Agreement or such party’s right thereafter to enforce any provision of this
Agreement, nor to preclude such party from taking any other action at any time which it would legally be entitled to take.

(e)Successors and Assigns. Neither party shall have the right to assign this Agreement, or any rights or obligations
hereunder, without the consent of the other party; provided, however, that upon the sale of all or substantially all of the
assets, business and goodwill of the Company to another company, or upon the merger or consolidation of the Company
with another company, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, both Employee and the
company purchasing such assets, business and goodwill, or surviving such merger or consolidation, as the case may be,
in the same manner and to the same extent as though such other company were the Company; and provided, further, that
the Company shall have the right to assign this Agreement to any affiliate or subsidiary of the Company. Subject to the
foregoing, this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the parties hereto and their legal
representatives, heirs, successors and assigns.

(f)Communications. All notices, requests, demands and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and
shall be deemed to have been given at the time personally delivered or when mailed in any United States post office
enclosed in a registered or certified postage prepaid envelope and addressed to the addresses set forth below, or to such
other address as any party may specify by notice to the other party; provided, however, that any notice of change of
address shall be effective only upon receipt.



If to the Company:

6D Global Acquisitions, Inc.,
17 State Street, Suite 450
New York, NY 10004
Attention:  Secretary

With a Copy to:

K&L Gates LLP
599 Lexington Avenue
New York, New York 10022-6030
Attention: Robert S. Matlin, Esq.
Facsimile: (212) 536-3901

If to the Employee:

Mark Szynkowski
Address:   44 Lakeview Drive
Monroe, New York 10950

(g)Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the other provisions of
this Agreement and the provisions held to be invalid or unenforceable shall be enforced as nearly as possible according
to its original terms and intent to eliminate such invalidity or unenforceability.

(h)Jurisdiction; Venue. This Agreement shall be subject to the non- exclusive jurisdiction of the federal courts or state
courts of the State of Delaware, County of New Castle, for the purpose of resolving any disputes among them relating to
this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and waive any objections on the grounds of forum 
non  conveniens  or  otherwise. The parties hereto agree to service of process by certified or registered United States
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party in question. The prevailing party in any proceeding instituted in connection
with this Agreement shall be entitled to an award of its/his reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

(i)Governing Law. This Agreement is made and executed and shall be governed by the laws of the State of Delaware,
without regard to the conflicts of law principles thereof.

(j)Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts (and by facsimile or other electronic
signature), but all counterparts will together constitute but one agreement.

(k)Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for  the  sole  and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto and, except as
provided herein, shall not be deemed for the benefit of any other person or entity.

(l)Headings and References. The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect
in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. References in this Agreement to any section refer to such
section of this Agreement unless the context otherwise requires.

(m)IRC Section 409A. The parties to this Agreement intend that the Agreement complies with Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), where applicable, and this Agreement shall be interpreted in a manner
consistent with that intention. To the extent not otherwise provided by this Agreement, and solely to the extent required
by Section 409A of the Code, no payment or other distribution required to be made to the Employee hereunder
(including any payment of cash, any transfer of property and any provision of taxable benefits) as a result of his
termination of employment with the Company shall be made earlier than the date that is six (6) months and one day
following the date on which the Employee separates from service with the Company and its affiliates (within the
meaning of Section 409A of the Code).

(n)Recovery of Compensation. All payments and benefits provided under this Agreement shall be subject to any
compensation recovery or clawback policy as required under applicable law, rule or regulation or otherwise adopted by
the Company from time to time.



(o)Participation of the Parties.  The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that (i) this Agreement and all matters
contemplated herein have been negotiated among all parties hereto and their respective legal counsel, if any, (ii) each
party has had, or has been afforded the opportunity to have, this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby
reviewed by independent counsel of its own choosing, (iii) all such parties have participated in the drafting and
preparation of this Agreement from the commencement of negotiations at all times through the execution hereof, and
(iv) any ambiguities contained in this Agreement shall not be construed against any party hereto.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has duly executed this Employment Agreement as of the date set forth above.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
(Employee)

/s/ Mark Szynkowski                                             
Mark Szynkowski

6D GLOBAL COMPENSATION COMMITTEE & BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 
By: /s/ Michael Bannout                                       
Michael Bannout, Chairman Compensation Committee & Board Member
 
 
/s/ Adam Hartung                                                  
Adam Hartung, Board Member
 
 
/s/ Pete Chrzaszcz                                                  
Pete Chrzaszcz, Board Member
 
 
/s/ Tejune Kang                                                     
Tejune Kang, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer





 
Exhibit 21.1

 
SUBSIDIARIES

6D Global Technologies, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)

Six Dimensions, Inc. (a Nevada corporation)

SwellPath, Inc. (an Oregon corporation)

Topaz Interactive, LLC (an Oregon Limited Liability Company doing business as “Storycode”)
 
6D Global Technologies Web and Data Solutions Ireland Holdings, Limited

6D Global Technologies Web and Data Solutions Ireland, Limited
 
 
 
 
 



 /s/ Tejune Kang  
 Tejune Kang, Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

 

 
Exhibit 31.1

 
CERTIFICATION BY PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Tejune Kang, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of 6D Global Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

 
 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

 
 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the

registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

 
Dated: July 8, 2016
 

 
 
 
 



 /s/ Mark Szynkowski  
 Mark Szynkowski, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

 

 
Exhibit 31.2

 
CERTIFICATION BY PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Mark Szynkowski, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of 6D Global Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

 
 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

 
Dated: July 8, 2016
 

 
 
 
 



 /s/ Tejune Kang  
 Tejune Kang, Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

 

 
Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of 6D Global Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Tejune Kang, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations
of the Company.
 
 
Dated: July 8, 2016 

 
 



 /s/ Mark Szynkowski  
 Mark Szynkowski, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

 

 
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of 6D Global Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Mark Szynkowski, Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations
of the Company.

 
Dated: July 8, 2016
 

 
 


